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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)
ERBEXRZMAERAA(BRIA]) GEMBEE

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Main
Board. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in

reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the ‘Directors”) of Chong
Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the “Company’,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report

misleading.

GEMDABREMRERLTHARAETEESR
ERBHFNEATRE—BLTHHS - BE
REEETHRBRERZELTANBERR XLk
KBBREAFEREHEERERE -

ZREGEMET AR -—RAFNELF £
GEMEENEHTHEENERETNEFK
EBRANTERBER - FREEZRELGEM
BEENRSSHFARNEBENTS -

BEXGREENERAFIREEHERZHE
RG] ([BXPT) B XSS T RE - 2
HERR I\ T B T T B (BT - AR BTBE
TBAER & 2 BF 2 AE (0] 5877 2 1T 2 A S T 10 R
ZE N 5| BET 1B ASE (I E(F -

IR TIIRIEHE T GEM B35 T A([ GEM
LR TiIEH B B EINE IR B 5 B R B R 2
AR RE] ZERANERF  ZHEBEE
B ) E# - AR EFE ([ EE)FERAIHE
T ER R AL S EEZEE L - EFEIEL
— R EEHEER  HFIIRAL M A
REFEHEHETBEAX T EEEETE I
BREGHGEK L RIEERAMER - HE
A ] RAL H AR B AR -



CONTENTS
B &

CORPORATE INFORMATION
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

ARER

TEHEE

B Ew LD

EERSATEBNEREFIS

RE - g REBRS

B BAI S

mreaBmkEMEEkRR

A BIRRLR

o)

&

®

= 5 £ =k
RE A

T
o)
Nii

TRER

fin

fRA ISR

M=

18

22

37

57

100

108

109

112

114

216

2024/25 ANNUAL REPORT £ 3R



CORPORATE INFORMATION
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TRBEE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
hereby present the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
March 2025.

The Group is a vertically integrated jeweller based in Hong Kong
and is primarily engaged in the retail of its own products through its
network of seven retail stores under the brand name of “Chong Fai
Jewellery (BIFEIKE )" strategically located in Kowloon and the New

Territories.

The Group’s principal products are jewellery products including
gem-set jewellery and gold jewellery products, which are produced
in-house at its production facility in Shenzhen, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). The Group also engages in the wholesale of
its jewellery products to other jewellery retailers, and sale of gold

products which are recycled from the general public.

Looking forward, the Group will seek to expand the Group’s
jewellery design collection in line with customer needs, preferences
and market trends and expand its retail presence to capture a wider
range of market opportunities when the economic environment and
retail industry in Hong Kong further improve. We are extending our
marketing campaign to social media in the hope that it will bring a
desirable return to the shareholders of the Company and sustain a

long-term growth of the Group.

Fu Chun Keung
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 30 June 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is a vertically integrated jeweller based in Hong Kong
and is primarily engaged in the retail of its own products through
its network of seven retail stores under the brand name of “Chong
Fai Jewellery (EIfEZLKE )" strategically located in Kowloon and the
New Territories. Being vertically integrated, the Group is capable
of controlling the diversity, quality and pricing of its own jewellery
designs produced in-house at its production facility in Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The Group’s principal products are jewellery products, including
gem-set jewellery and gold jewellery products. The Group also
engages in the wholesale of its jewellery products to other jewellery
retailers, and the sale of gold products which are recycled from the

general public.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue decreased by approximately HK$7.6 million,
or approximately 5.3%, from approximately HK$142.3 million for the
year ended 31 March 2024 to approximately HK$134.7 million for
the year ended 31 March 2025. The decrease in revenue was mainly
driven by the decrease in revenue from (i) diamond, karat gold,
jade, pearl, platinum jewellery products (the “gem-set jewellery
products”) for the amount of approximately HK$8.3 million; and (ii)
pure gold products for the amount of approximately HK$28.4 million,
and such decrease was partially offset by increase in revenue from

trading of recycled gold products by approximately HK$29.1 million.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWRDN

Revenue by Products

(a)

(b)

(c)

Gem-set jewellery products

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s revenue
generated from the sales of gem-set jewellery products
decreased by approximately HK$8.3 million, or approximately
14.8%, from approximately HK$55.5 million for the year ended
31 March 2024 to approximately HK$47.2 million for the year
ended 31 March 2025. The decrease was mainly due to
the fact that local citizens tend to travel or spend money in
mainland China, and their willingness to spend in Hong Kong
has declined, which has led to a decline in the foot traffic in

our retail stores.
Gold jewellery products

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s revenue
generated from the sales of gold jewellery products
decreased by approximately HK$28.4 million, or
approximately 54.2%, from approximately HK$52.4 million
for the year ended 31 March 2024 to approximately HK$24.0
million for the year ended 31 March 2025. The decrease
was mainly due to the fact that local citizens tend to travel
or spend money in mainland China, and their willingness
to spend in Hong Kong has declined, which has led to a

decline in the foot traffic in our retail stores.
Trading of recycled gold products

The Group’s revenue from trading of recycled gold
products increased by approximately HK$29.1 million, or
approximately 84.4%, from approximately HK$34.4 million
for the year ended 31 March 2024 to approximately HK$63.5
million for the year ended 31 March 2025. The increase
was mainly attributable to the fact that the global pure gold
prices reached its peak in 2025 which attracts the customers

to sell their own gold products to us for recycling.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWRDN

Revenue by Business (sales channels)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Retail operation

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s revenue
generated from retail operation decreased by approximately
HK$32.1 million, or approximately 33.5%, from approximately
HK$95.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2024 to
approximately HK$63.6 million for the year ended 31 March
2025. The decrease was mainly due to the fact that local
citizens tend to travel or spend money in mainland China,
and their willingness to spend in Hong Kong has declined,
which has led to a decline in the foot traffic in our retail

stores.
Wholesales

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s revenue from
wholesale channel was approximately HK$7.6 million which
decreased by approximately HK$4.6 million, or approximately
37.4%, as compared to approximately HK$12.2 million for the
year ended 31 March 2024.

Trading of recycled gold products

The Group’s revenue from trading of recycled gold products
increased by approximately HK$29.1 million, or approximately
84.4%, from approximately HK$34.4 million for the year ended
31 March 2024 to approximately HK$63.5 million for the year
ended 31 March 2025. The increase was mainly attributable
to the fact that the global pure gold prices reached its peak
in 2025 which attracts the customers to sell their own gold

products to us for recycling.

Cost of goods sold

The Group’s cost of goods sold decreased by approximately HK$5.0

million, or approximately 4.9%, from approximately HK$103.1 million

for the year ended 31 March 2024 to approximately HK$98.1 million
for the year ended 31 March 2025.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

BEBE 7z (35 ERE)
(a) FEXFK

(b)

(c)

HE2025F3A31BHIEFE @ AEEK
B T8 XK MW B E 2202453 A 31
AIEFEHNB7TEEBTRLHN321EE
75 J0 3% #933.5% 2 £ £ 2025F 3 A 31 H
LHFEH636EEBT - BRARIEEEMH
FAZR 30 T B A A AR 22 31 Bl R B A H &
EBHBERTR  UBERMAEHEARE
FTE% o

HE

HE2025F3A31BHIEFE @ AEEK
BHERBENUEA/N7T6EEST &
HE2024F3A31ALEFENL1227H
BAETRIH 46 BEBITRAIZ7.4% °

Bl = 2 Em E 5

AEERBEBKRESERE HHRRRE
Z2024F3HA31BIEFEANI44BES
TCIEMNAI291 B & BT HA84.4% E H
E2025F3A31BIEFEHEISHBER
T BEHAERBREZEANZRASEBERBRN
2025 EFEFES Sy - WO EROH T E
BN S EmIEDY -

EEEmA A

AEBEERMMKABRBE202443 A31H
LEFEMNHI1031EEBBTRIHN50EEE T
KA 4.9% EH E2025F3A31 A LFEHL
98.1EBBTT °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE D

Overall Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased by approximately HK$2.6
million, or approximately 6.5%, from approximately HK$39.2 million
for the year ended 31 March 2024 to approximately HK$36.6 million
for the year ended 31 March 2025. The Group’s gross profit margin
decreased from approximately 27.5% for the year ended 31 March
2024 to approximately 27.2% for the year ended 31 March 2025.
There are no significant changes of gross profit margin policy for
the gem-set jewellery products during the year ended 31 March
2025.

Other income

Other income for the year ended 31 March 2025 amounted to
approximately HK$1.0 million (2024: approximately HK$0.7 million),
representing an increase of approximately HK$0.3 million as
compared with the year ended 31 March 2024. The increase in other
income was mainly due to the increase in bank interest income for
year ended 31 March 2025.

Other gains/(losses), net

Other net gain for the year ended 31 March 2025 amounted to
approximately HK$0.5 million (2024: net loss of approximately
HK$0.5 million). The gain was mainly due to net gain on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) of approximately
HK$0.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2025 while net loss
on financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$0.6 million was

recognised for the year ended 31 March 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Finance costs

Finance costs for the year ended 31 March 2025 amounted to
approximately HK$1.0 million (2024: approximately HK$1.2 million).

Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs for the year ended 31 March 2025
amounted to approximately HK$19.1 million (2024: approximately
HK$20.4 million), representing a decrease of approximately HK$1.3
million or approximately 6.1% as compared with the corresponding
period in 2024. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in
other staff’s salaries and other benefits by approximately HK$0.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2025.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2025 amounted to approximately HK$15.3 million (2024:
approximately HK$15.8 million), representing a decrease of
approximately HK$0.5 million or approximately 3.4% as compared
with the corresponding period in 2024. The decrease was mainly
due to the decrease in other staff’'s salaries and other benefits by

approximately HK$0.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2025.
Taxation

Income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2025 amounted to
approximately HK$0.8 million (2024: approximately HK$0.3 million).
The particulars of the Group’s taxation are set out in note 12 to the

consolidated financial statements.
Dividend

The board (the “Board”) of Directors of the Company does not
recommend the payment of any dividend for the year ended 31
March 2025.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEENWE D

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
TREASURY POLICY

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2025, total assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK140.1 million (2024: approximately HK$118.1
million), which was financed by total liabilities and shareholders’
equity (comprising share capital and reserves) of approximately
HK$42.9 million (2024: approximately HK$47.2 million) and
approximately HK$97.2 million (2024: approximately HK$70.9
million), respectively.

The total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31
March 2025 amounted to approximately HK$16.5 million (2024:
approximately HK$22.8 million), and current ratio as at 31 March
2025 was approximately 2.94 times (2024: approximately 1.88
times) mainly due to the decrease in bank borrowings and increase
in bank balances and cash.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing total
debts (total debts are defined to include payables incurred not in
the ordinary course of business) by total equity as at the end of
each of the financial year, decreased from approximately 32.1%
as at 31 March 2024 to approximately 17.0% as at 31 March 2025.
The said decrease was primarily due to the decrease in bank

borrowings.

The Group has no available unutilised bank loan facilities as at 31
March 2025 (2024: Nil).

The Directors are of the view that as at the date hereof, the Group’s
financial resources are sufficient to support its business and
operations.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the reporting period. The management of the
Group regularly reviews the recoverable amount of trade receivables
by performing ongoing credit assessments and monitoring prompt
recovery and if necessary, makes adequate impairment losses
for irrecoverable amounts. In order to achieve better cost control
and minimise the cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are
centralised and cash is generally deposited with leading licensed
banks in Hong Kong and denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Capital Structure

The Company’s shares (“Shares”) were successfully listed on GEM
on 27 March 2019. There has been no change in the Company’s
capital structure since 27 March 2019 to the date of this annual
report. The capital structure of the Group comprises issued share
capital and reserves. The Directors review the Group’s capital

structure regularly.

As at 31 March 2025, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$30,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary shares was
300,000,000.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2025, the Group did not have any pledge of assets
(2024: Nil).

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
any other plans for material investment and capital assets as at 31
March 2025.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of US$
and RMB. Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
impact on exchange difference between HK$ and US$ will be
immaterial as most US$ denominated monetary assets and liabilities

are held by group entities having HK$ as their functional currency.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group did not have
any hedging arrangements. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management of the
Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and considering hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise. The
management of the Group considers the exposure to the foreign

exchange risk fluctuation for the Group is not material.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2025, the Group did not have any capital
commitments (2024: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2025, the Group and the Company had no material
contingent liabilities (2024: Nil).

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2025, the Group employed 55 (2024: 72) staff
(including Executive Directors). We determine employees’
remuneration based on factors such as qualification, duty,
contributions and years of experience. As at 31 March 2025,
the Group had no significant obligation apart from the defined
contributions schemes and there is no forfeited contribution arose
upon employees leaving the retirement benefit scheme and which
were available to reduce contributions payable. In addition, the
Group provides comprehensive training programs to its employees
or sponsors the employees to attend various job-related training

courses.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme and a share
award scheme for the purposes of, among others, providing
incentives and rewards to eligible persons who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Further details in relation to
the share option scheme and share award scheme are set out in
paragraphs headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award

Scheme” under the “Report of Directors” in this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MATERIAL EVENTS
Share Consolidation

On 28 May 2024, the Company implemented the share
consolidation on the basis that every ten ordinary shares (the
“Shares”) of par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company be consolidated into one consolidated Share of par
value of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company (the
“Share Consolidation”), to the effect that the then 1,500,000,000
authorised Shares were consolidated into 150,000,000 consolidated
Shares, of which 75,000,000 consolidated Shares were in issue.
The resolution for the Share Consolidation was duly passed by the
shareholders of the Company by way of poll at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 24 May 2024. Further details of the Share
Consolidation were set out in the Company’s circular dated 9 May
2024 and the Company’s announcements dated 18 April 2024 and
24 May 2024.

Increase in Authorised Share Capital

Upon the passing of the relevant resolutions in relation to the
increase in the authorised share capital of the Company by the
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 8 August 2024, the then authorised share capital of the
Company increased from HK$15,000,000 divided into 150,000,000
Shares with a par value of HK$0.1 each to HK$750,000,000 divided
into 7,500,000,000 Shares with a par value of HK$0.1 each by
creating an additional 7,350,000,000 unissued Shares with a par
value of HK$0.1 each to rank pari passu in all respects with the
existing Shares. Further details of the said increase in authorised
share capital of the Company were set out in the Company’s circular
dated 17 July 2024 and the Company’s announcements dated 25
June 2024, 17 July 2024 and 8 August 2024.
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Rights Issue

The Company implemented a rights issue (the “Rights Issue”) on
the basis of three (3) rights share (the “Rights Share(s)”) for every
one (1) existing ordinary share held at the close of business on 20
August 2024 at the subscription price of HK$0.12 per Rights Share.
The closing price per share of the Company was HK$0.177 on 25
June 2024, on which the terms of Rights Issue were fixed. The net
price (after deduction of transaction and issue costs attributable to
the Rights Issue) per Rights Share is approximately HK$0.12. The
Directors were of the view that conducting fund-raising activities
by way of Rights Issue could strengthen the Group’s capital base
and financial position and enhance its continuous development
and business growth, and at the same time allow the qualifying
shareholders of the Company to maintain their respective pro-
rata shareholding interests in the Company. The Rights Issue
was completed on 12 September 2024 with 225,000,000 Rights
Shares allotted and issued and the aggregate net proceeds were
approximately HK$25.9 million.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiries, set out below is the
shareholding structure of the Company immediately before and after

completion of the Rights Issue:

Immediately before

Ay

RARIER2024F 8 A20 H & £BMAERE S
FAE—(1)RREEBRMNELR = (3) RERKRHD
(Tt iR 43 1) 2 22 - DARBETRERKZHD
0.12HEBTETHKR(TER]) - KRR ERKH
720244 6 A 25 H (AN AR 65K ET =8 B ) B9 Ui
BR0A77ETT - BRRHRRHD #(E & F 58 (H
PROCIRFEIE R 5 REEFT AR ) K1 R0.1278 7T ©
EERA UHRBRARNETEL T ZELRSE
ErEARERRABMRR - RELFEERKE
BHRE  ANEAAREGERREEREESE
FRERRAARREL D o AR 20249 A 12
B5eRk - B3 K 377 225,000,000 B AR AL 15
FTS R IBF A 5259 B BB °

BESLEL —VEEERNEMA - IR
15 - BEMERTHAIEARR AR AR EZRES S0
T ¢

Immediately after

the completion of
the Rights Issue

the completion of
the Rights Issue

SR T RAT EEHRTRE
Number Number
of Shares of Shares
RE % RE %
Mr. FU Chun Keung (“Mr. Fu”) (Note 1) EiER A ([BELE]) 41,250,000 55 165,000,000 55
(Bt 1)
Ms. FU Wan Ling (“Ms. Fu”) (Note 1) mERZE([Hat]) 41,250,000 55 165,000,000 55
(Bt 1)
Ms. CHEUNG Lai Yuk (“Ms. Cheung”) REBEXT([RaL)) 41,250,000 55 165,000,000 55
(Note 1 and 2) (K1 %2)
MGH Limited (Note 1) MGH Limited (Afz# 1) 41,250,000 55 165,000,000 55
Other Public Shareholders HiaARIRE 33,750,000 45 135,000,000 45
Total wat 75,000,000 100 300,000,000 100
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Notes:

. Mr. Fu, Ms. Fu and Ms. Cheung collectively are interested in one-
third or more of the voting power at general meetings of MGH Limited
which held 41,250,000 Shares before the completion of the Rights
Issue and 165,000,000 Shares after the completion of the Rights Issue,
respectively, and they are therefore deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by MGH Limited by virtue of the SFO.

2. Ms. Cheung is the spouse of Mr. Fu and she is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Mr. Fu by virtue of the SFO.

Details of the Rights Issue were set out in the prospectus of the
Company dated 21 August 2024, the circular of the Company dated
17 July 2024 and the announcement of the Company dated 25 June
2024, 8 August 2024 and 11 September 2024.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Other than disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
any significant investments, material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and capital assets during the year ended 31 March
2025.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks and uncertainties involved in the Group’s
current operations, some of which are beyond the Group’s control.
The most significant risks relating to the business such as (i)
price fluctuation of jewellery raw materials of the Group’s jewellery
products could materially and adversely affect its business; (ii) the
Group may not be able to renew the leases of its retail stores which
may affect its business and operation when the relevant leases
expire or terminate; (iii) the Group may not be able to sustain its
profitability; (iv) the Group has high gearing ratio that may expose
it to liquidity risk; and (v) challenges or continued downturn in
economic conditions may affect the demand for the products which
could adversely affect the Group’s sales or growth.
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TEEENWE D

OUTLOOK

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Hong Kong retail market
remained disappointing and challenging, the Group’s business
was not immune to the adverse trend and there was a drop in total
revenue. Despite the changing market environment, the Group
relied on its in-depth understanding of the market and consumer
trends and made good use of operating resources, which allowed

the Group to maintain stable but smaller profits during the year.

Looking forward, the Group will seek to expand the Group’s
jewellery design collection in line with customer needs, preferences
and market trends and expand its retail presence to capture a wider
range of market opportunities when the economic environment and
retail industry in Hong Kong becomes better. We are extending our
marketing campaign to social media in the hope that it will bring a
desirable return to the shareholders and sustain a long-term growth
of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Fu Chun Keung (“Mr. Fu”)

Mr. Fu, aged 57, was appointed as the chairman, the chief executive
officer and an executive Director of the Company in January 2018.
Mr. Fu is the major founder of the Group which was established in
1997, and now responsible for supervising overall management and
strategy planning of the Group as well as its daily operation and

management.

Mr. Fu is the spouse of Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk, an executive Director,

and the younger brother of Ms. Fu Wan Ling, an executive Director.
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk (“Ms. Cheung”)

Ms. Cheung, aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director in
March 2018. Ms. Cheung is the head of the Group’s procurement
department, and is responsible for formulating corporate and

business strategies.

Ms. Cheung has over 20 years’ experience in the jewellery industry
and joined the Group since 1999. Ms. Cheung was awarded by the
GIA a certificate for completing the requirements of the program
in Diamond Essentials in November 2014, and a certificate for
completing the requirements of the program in Diamonds and
Diamond Grading as well as a diploma certificate for completing
the diploma program in Graduate Diamonds respectively in January
2015.

Ms. Cheung is the spouse of Mr. Fu and a sister-in-law of Ms. Fu

Wan Ling, an executive Director.
Ms. Fu Wan Ling (“Ms. Fu”)

Ms. Fu, aged 64, was appointed as an executive Director in March
2018.

Ms. Fu is responsible for formulating the overall strategy,
supervising the administration and overseeing the inventory of the
Group.

Ms. Fu has over 20 years of experience in the jewellery industry and

joined the Group since August 1997.

Ms. Fu is the elder sister of Mr. Fu and the sister-in-law of Ms.

Cheung.
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Mr. Fu Ho Hon

Mr. Fu Ho Hon, aged 24, obtained a bachelor’'s degree of

Economics and Finance from the University of Hong Kong in 2024.

Mr. Fu Ho Hon is primarily responsible for overseeing operations
of our Group, including procurement, marketing and promotion,
management of our human resource and general affairs of our

Group.

Mr. Fu Ho Hon is the son of Mr. Fu and Ms. Cheung, and he is also
the nephew of Ms. Fu.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (“Mr. Chan”)

Mr. Chan, aged 75, is an independent non-executive Director since
September 2018. Mr. Chan is responsible for supervising and

providing independent judgment to the Board.

Mr. Chan has over 32 years of working experience in the Inland
Revenue Department. He was an assistant commissioner

responsible for tax compliance before he retired in 2005.

Mr. Chan is the sole director of a tax consultancy company,
C T Tax Consultants Limited since 2006. Further, Mr. Chan is
an independent non-executive director of Medicskin Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8307) since 2014; and an independent non-
executive director of Hyfusin Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
8512) since 2018, an independent non-executive director of Accel
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1283), since February 2020,
an independent non-executive director of Ye Xing Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1941) since February 2020, an independent
non-executive director of Wasion Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3393) since June 2020, and a non-executive director of
Alpha Financial Group Limited since September 2019. He was also
an independent non-executive director of Man Sang International
Limited (stock code: 938) from 2015 to 2016 and Guangdong
Tannery Limited (stock code: 1058) from 2006 to 2020.
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EERGAREEENBERRE

Mr. Chan graduated from Central Queensland University of Australia
with a master degree in financial management in 1995. He has been
an associate of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known
as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) (U.K.)
since 1974 and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
since 1994. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (formerly known as the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants) since 1986; a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 1983; and
a fellow member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising

Accountants since 1990.
Mr. Chan Chi Ming, Tony (“Mr. Tony Chan”)

Mr. Tony Chan, aged 57, is an independent non-executive Director
since September 2018. Mr. Tony Chan is responsible for supervising

and providing independent judgment to the Board.

Mr. Tony Chan possesses over 20 years of experience in the field of

business advisory, accounting and auditing.

Mr. Tony Chan obtained a bachelor’s degree in Commerce (major in
Accounting) from the Australian National University in 1990. He is a
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since 2012 and a member of the CPA Australia (formerly known as

Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants) since 1993.

Mr. Tony Chan was an independent non-executive director of
Theme International Holdings Limited (stock code: 990) from 2015
to 2021. Mr. Tony Chan was as a non-executive director of Good
Fellow Healthcare Holdings Limited (stock code: 8143) from 2016
to 2018 and re-designated as an executive director in 2018 and
resigned from the position in 2019. Mr. Tony Chan also served as an
executive director of Wan Kei Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
1718) from 2016 to 2018.
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Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick (“Mr. Wong”)

Mr. Wong, aged 67, is an independent non-executive Director since
September 2018. Mr. Wong is responsible for supervising and

providing independent judgment to the Board.
Mr. Wong is currently practising as a barrister-at-law in Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong obtained his Bachelor of Laws from The University of
London in 1987. Mr. Wong was called to the degree of utter barrister
of the Honourable Society of Gray’s Inn in 1989 and obtained Master
of Laws in international economic law in The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2009 and Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate
Governance and Directorship jointly issued by Hong Kong Baptist
University and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2011.
Mr. Wong obtained a degree in Master of Science in Corporate
Governance and Directorship (Distinction) issued by Hong Kong
Baptist University in 2011. Mr. Wong is also a Chartered Engineer,
a member of Institute of Energy, Institution of Mechanical Engineers

and Institution of Engineering and Technology.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Yung Kam Keung (“Mr. Yung”)
Head of Wholesales and Retail Department

Mr. Yung, aged 57, is the head of the Group’s wholesales and retail
department. Mr. Yung is responsible for overseeing the wholesaling
and retailing functions of the Group. Mr. Yung joined the Group in
2012.

Mr. Yung possesses over 20 years of experience in the jewellery
industry.

EXRBEETERED

F ka4 675 B20184F9 B#E BB IEANTT
B - IThAAEEBREEEeRRESTSRES

THEER
FTRERBEAET B EABEMIIE -

M1987 6 - EEERBERAARBEEE LS
A e FHRAERI1BIFEERMAEELEGS
(Honourable Society of Gray's Inn) &% F o1&
FHEAL « JRFA 2009 F EXS B /5 H MK 2 B B 4%
BERERBLT R BP0 FEFEERER
ERASEREeHARENARE RRESMH
REXER - TEER201 FEBSEFBIEAE
BEARE RHEERREEBET B (REER) °
BINREET TIZAD - WARRRES - #ik TRED
ZeRIREEEEES -

EREERE
SREMEETHEED
HERFEHLE

BhE 575 BAEEMERTESNEE -
BAEBEERAERAMNBRTETE - BN
2012 FNARLEHE

DEEEFB0FARBITELR -

2024/25 ANNUAL REPORT 3k

21



22

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRSE

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest
standards of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of the business and its shareholders, and consistent
with the code provisions as set out in part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The
Group has considered the CG Code and has put in place corporate
governance practices to meet the code provisions. Since the listing
of the shares of the Company on GEM, the Company has adopted
and complied with, where applicable, part 2 of the CG Code during
the year ended 31 March 2025 up to the date of this Annual Report,
except for code provisions C.2.1 and D.2.2 in Part 2 of the CG
Code. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer” and “Internal Controls and Risk Management”

below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the role of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the

same individual.

Mr. Fu Chun Keung, the major founder of the Group, is chairman of
the Board and the chief executive officer. With extensive experience
in the jewellery industry, Mr. Fu is responsible for the overall
management, decision-making and strategy planning of the Group
and is instrumental to the Group’s growth and business expansion.
Since Mr. Fu is the key person for the Group’s development and
he will not undermine the Group’s interests in any way under
any circumstances, the Board considers that vesting the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer in Mr. Fu, is in the best interest
of the Group and beneficial to the management of the Group. In
addition, the senior management and the Board, which comprise
experienced individuals, could effectively check and balance the
power and authority of Mr. Fu. Therefore, the Board considers that
deviation from code provision C.2.1 in Part 2 of the CG Code is

appropriate in such circumstances.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and internal control
of the Company. It oversees the Group’s businesses, lays down
strategies and monitors the Group’s operational and financial
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
The Board has general powers to manage and conduct the
Company’s business. The day-to-day operations and management
are delegated by the Board to the senior management of the
Company, who will implement the strategy and direction as laid
down by the Board.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses
for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

Composition of the Board of Directors
The Board currently comprises seven members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Chun Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk

Ms. Fu Wan Ling

Mr. Fu Ho Hon (appointed on 17 January 2025)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat

Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 18 to 21 of
this annual report.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company and each of independent non-executive Directors
has signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years since 27 March 2019 (the “Listing Date”) and is subject
to retirement by rotation at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years.

These service contracts and letters of appointment are subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The
term of the service contracts and the letters of appointment may
be renewed in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), the Listing Rules and other applicable

laws.
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At all times during the year ended 31 March 2025, the independent
non-executive Directors represent more than one-third of the
Board. Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years which
shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated by not less than

three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

During the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board at all times complied with Rule 5.05A of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board, of whom Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony is the Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, and considers them to be

independent.

The Directors have access to the services of the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”’) to ensure that the
Board procedures are followed. The company secretary of the

Company is Mr. Wong Ho Pang.
Continuous Professional Development of Directors

All Directors attended various trainings during the year ended 31
March 2025, including trainings regarding the updated GEM Listing
Rules, the responsibilities and continuous obligations of Directors
and the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide.
The Company had arranged suitable trainings for all Directors in
order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as part of

their continuous professional development.
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Training record of each Director received for the year ended 31

March 2025 is summarised below:

Name of Directors

EEnA

Mr. Fu Chun Keung HEER L
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk REERZLT
Ms. Fu Wan Ling HEERLZT
Mr. Fu Ho Hon RS-
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREELE
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony PRFRAZE A4
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick EIKREAE

The Company is committed to continuously reviewing and improving
its internal systems, including those in relation to internal supervision

and control, and risk management.
Indemnity of the Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
Liability Insurance for its Directors and officers covering the legal

action against the Directors and officers.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Company complied with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2)
and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate

qualifications or accounting or related financial expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective
corporate governance framework. The Board considers that each
independent non-executive Director is independent in character
and judgment and that they all meet the specific independence
criteria as required by the GEM Listing Rules. The independent
non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in all corporate

communications of the Company.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and
timely information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In
compliance with code provision C.5.3 in Part 2 of the CG Code, at
least 14 days’ notice has been given for a regular Board meeting
to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Notice, agenda and
board papers of regular Board meetings are sent to all Directors
within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior to the meetings.
Directors are free to contribute and share their views at meetings
and major decisions will only be taken after deliberation at Board
meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will
abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are
prepared after the meetings and the draft minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comments before the final version of which are

endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, Audit Committee

meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings, Nomination
Committee meetings and general meetings of the Company held

during the year ended 31 March 2025 are summarized as follows:

Board
meeting

EZE82  EhZES

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Fu Chun Keung BEBEE 6/6
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk REELT 6/6
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BERLT 6/6
Mr. Fu Ho Hon (appointed on BEBEE(R20255F

17 January 2025) 1817 B L) 16

Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat MEELE 6/6
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick TkEsE 6/6
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony BRFHEE 6/6
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. All Board committees are established with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority
and duties. The terms of reference for each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee have been
published on the websites of Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company (www.chongfaiholdings.com). Each committee
deals with matters in accordance with its terms of reference so
that they could perform their functions properly, including but
not limited to reporting back to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations. All committees are provided with sufficient
resources to perform their duties and have access to independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense if so reasonably
required. The list of the chairman, members and duties of each of

the committees are as follows:
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent non-executive
Directors. The Board is satisfied that the current mix of experience
of the committee members facilitates an effective functioning of their

roles. The members of the Audit Committee are:

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony (chairman)
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less

exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review, and
provide an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, oversee the audit process, scope of audit
and appointment of external auditors and perform other duties and

responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Audit Committee shall hold at least two meetings a year. The Audit
Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 March
2025 to review and approve the Group’s interim and annual reports

before submission to the Board for approval.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Directors, two of
whom are Independent non-executive Directors.

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony (chairman)
Mr. Fu Chun Keung
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to establish
and review the policy and structure of the remuneration for the
Directors and senior management and make recommendations to
the Board on remuneration packages of executive Directors and
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet not less than once every
year. The Remuneration Committee has held two meeting during the
year ended 31 March 2025 to review the policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
executive Directors and the senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three Directors, two of whom
are independent non-executive Directors and one is executive
Director.

Mr. Fu Chun Keung (chairman)
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and
assessing the composition of the Board and the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of
Directors. In recommending candidates for appointment to the
Board, the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit
against objective criteria and with due regards to the benefits of
diversity on the Board in accordance with the board diversity policy
adopted by the Company. Diversity of the Board will be considered
from a number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, industry experience,
technical and professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge,
length of services and time to be devoted as a Director.
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The Company will also take into account factors relating to its own
business model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has held two meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2025 to review composition of the Board and
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and to adopt a nomination policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

Nomination Policy

According to the Nomination Policy, in evaluating and selecting
any candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee would
consider the criteria, including, among other things, character
and integrity, qualifications (cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience and
diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy), any potential
contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in terms of
qualifications, skills, experience, independence and diversity, and
willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s).

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon receipt of
the proposal on appointment of new director and the biographical
information (or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. The Nomination
Committee should then recommend to the Board to appoint
the appropriate candidate for directorship with a ranking of the
candidates (if applicable) by order of preference based on the
needs of the Company and reference check of each candidate.

Board Diversity Policy

In designing the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee
has considered Board diversity from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, race, language, cultural background,
educational background, industry experience and professional
experience. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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We believe the Board has a well-balance of cultural background,
educational background, industry experience and professional
experience where members of the Board have diversified branch of

learning and working experience in different countries and regions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

According to code provision A.2 in Part 2 of the CG Code, the
Board is responsible for performing the duties relating to corporate
governance functions. The Board has the following responsibilities
in performing the corporate governance duties of the Company
as follows: (i) developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making recommendations;
(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management
of the Group; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and (v) reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclose in the corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings (the
“Required Standard of Dealings”) as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiries of all the Directors, each of them have confirmed that they
have complied with the Required Standard of Dealings during the
year ended 31 March 2025. No incident of non-compliance was
noted by the Company during such period.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the fees paid/payable to the
external auditors in respect of audit was approximately HK$450,000.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

BMEE  EFSEXLER HEER 7%
KEhBXEBRITHAARRINTE  EFEK
BETRBER R ERZT(CHEE M TR

EEEAMAE
RIFBFERTRTRRXFE 28M B A2
EXE2REARTAMLCRE CRENEBE - 25
ERBEITARRIEREABERBUTRE (i)
HERBEHASEEBLEEANBRREER -
WRHEBER (N BHREREERAKHE
SREBENEIRSEZERR (i) FHR
EEAGEARETAENEERENBERERE
B (v)FIE  BRARERERRNEEREEZN
TRTARGRSTRIEE) @ R(v)EHAEE
BFEEREATANERL  YREREBREA
BKEE -

EERHERS

RAEEIRMGEM LM AIZE 5.48 16E5.67 &
FENZZRERE(RGBAEEENIERES
BEARRAFEFMNETTR - MERBESIELE
TEAR  SESHUEBREEREE2025F
SABMBILFEAN—EETRSRTEZE - R E
AMEARE - AR FBEIEIREMASHSZH -

SMNEE A BUEm

REZE2025F3A31HILFE » B EE
B R T ONE I B AT H B A 4 A& 450,000 75

JT °



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRSE

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow
during the reporting period. A statement from the auditors about its
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
is set out on pages 100 to 107 of this annual report. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2025, the Directors of the Company have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimated that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and risk management systems. Such
internal control and risk management systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable but not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board with the supported of the Audit Committee as well as the
management, had conducted a review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control and risk management systems during the
year ended 31 March 2025 which covered financial, operational,
compliance procedural and risk management functions and had
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

Code provision D.2.2 stipulates that the Company should have an
internal audit function. In light of the size and scale of the Group’s
business, the Group does not have an internal audit function. The
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025 and is currently of
the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit
function within the Group. The Board will continue to review annually
and consider to establish such department as and when it thinks
necessary. Therefore, the Board considers that deviation from code
provision D.2.2 in Part 2 of the CG Code is appropriate in such
circumstances.
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The Group believes that good corporate governance practices are
very important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence
and for the sustainable growth of the Group. The Group has
therefore made continued efforts to uplift its quality of corporate
governance. It has established an effective system of internal
controls and adopted a series of measures to ensure its safety and
effectiveness. As a result, the Group is able to safeguard its assets
and protect the interests of the shareholders. The Board is of the
view that the systems of internal control and risk management are
effective and there are no irregularities, improprieties, fraud or other
deficiencies that suggest material deficiency in the effectiveness of

the Group’s internal control system.
Internal Control System

The Company has maintained an internal control system and its
implementation has been considered by the Audit Committee and
the Board as effective. Meanwhile, the Group strives for continual
improvement through efforts to enhance controls by providing
ongoing employee training and development, talent retention, and
other measures. The Group follows a disciplined and balanced
compensation framework with strong internal governance and
independent Board oversight. The impact of risk and control issues
are carefully considered in the Group’s performance evaluation and

incentive compensation processes.

The Group’s internal control system and procedures are designed to
meet its specific business needs and to minimise its risk exposure.
The Group has adopted different internal guidelines, along with
written policies and procedures to monitor and lessen the impact
of risks which are relevant to the Group’s business and control
the Group’s daily business operations. In order to ensure sound
implementation of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, the Group has also adopted various on-going measures as

set out below:

— the Group has performed an internal control review and has

adopted a revised operations and procedures manual;

—  the Group has improved its existing internal control framework
by adopting a set of internal control manual and policies,
which cover corporate governance, risk management,

operations and legal matters;
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— the Group will assess and monitor the implementation of
its internal control manual and policies by the relevant
departments and companies in the Group through regular

audits and inspections; and

—  the Group will provide internal training to staff as appropriate
in order to enable them to follow the internal control

procedures.

With reference to the internal control manual and policies of the
Group, the risk management and internal control systems are
reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis by the Board with
the support of the Audit Committee and the management and will
be further reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the

Board. These systems were considered effective and adequate.

The Group will continuously monitor and improve the Group’s
management procedures to ensure that effective operation of those
internal controls are in line with the growth of the Group’s business

and good corporate governance practice.

Finance Director is responsible for overseeing the Company’s
internal control measures in relation to anti-money laundering and

cash management.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Group has one main IT platform that supports its business
operations, namely POS system. The IT platform was developed
by an independent third party contractors to suit the Group’s
requirements and it is continually refined and upgraded to meet the

Group’s business needs.

The Group’s POS system records sales and inventory movements as
it is linked to every retail store. The Group’s management is able to
manage effectively the retail stores through the POS system which
provides them with the performance of each retail store and its
inventory status. With the ability of the Group’s POS system to track
the inventory movements in each retail store, the Directors are in a
better position to assess what type of products are more popular in
each retail store, which in turn enables the Group to respond more

swiftly to market demands.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The dividend policy of the Company is set out as follows:

Payment of dividends by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company. The
Board will review the dividend policy as appropriate from time to
time. The declaration and payment of dividends shall be determined
at the sole discretion of the Board. The Board shall also take into
account the following factors when considering whether to propose

dividends and determining the dividend amount:
1. the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company

and each of the members of the Group;

8. the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure

requirements and future expansion plans;
4. the Group’s liquidity position;

©. contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by
the Company to the shareholders or by the Company’s

subsidiaries to the Company;
6. taxation considerations;

7. general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and

position of the Group; and

8. other factors that the Board deems relevant.
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SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Pursuant to
the Articles, general meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of any one or more members of the Company deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event
the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. Such meeting should be held within two

months after the deposit of such requisition.

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Directors. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each

general meeting.

Under Article 12.3 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company may at all
times have the right, by a written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company, to require the convening of
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. If, within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The Board is not aware of any provisions allowing the shareholders
of the Company to put forward proposals at general meetings of the
Company under the Articles and the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general
meetings may refer to the preceding paragraph to make a written
requisition to require the convening of an extraordinary general

meeting of the Company.
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Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company are published on the

Company’s website.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may

send written enquiries to the Company as follows:

Address: No. 6-13, Faerie Court, 80 Ko Shan Road, Hung Hom,

Kowloon, Hong Kong
Attention: Company Secretary

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous

enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2025, there have been no

significant changes to the constitutional documents of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Ho Pang is the Company Secretary. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and he has
complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules by taking no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the financial

year ended 31 March 2025 to update his skills and knowledge.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group
is principally engaged in the retail of its own products through its
network of seven retail stores under the brand name of “Chong Fai
Jewellery (BI#EIKE )" strategically located in Kowloon and the New
Territories. The Group also engages in the wholesale of its jewellery
products to other jewellery retailers, and the trading of recycled
gold products from the general public to customers who purchase

recycled gold products from the Group.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set

out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The financial results of the Group for 2024/25 are set out on pages
108 to 215 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, and assets and liabilities of the Group
announced in the past 5 years are set out on page 216 of this

annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

The fair review of the Group’s business is detailed in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 17 of this
annual report. The discussion constitutes a part of this Directors’

Report.
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks faced by the Group are set out in page 16
of this annual report. As it is a non-exhaustive list, there may be
other risks and uncertainties further to the disclosure. Besides, this
annual report does not constitute a recommendation or an advice
for anyone to invest in the securities of the Company. Investors are
advised to make their own judgment or consult professionals before

making any investment in the securities of the Company.
Key Performance Indicators

The key performance indicators are detailed in the financial review
set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to
17 of this annual report. This discussion constitutes a part of this

Report of Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income of this annual report.

No final dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2025, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2024: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 3% of the Group’s total revenue.
The five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 31% of
the Group’s total purchases. In addition, the largest customer
accounted for approximately 2% of the Group’s total revenue while
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 19% of the Group’s
total purchases. None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest
in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the year
ended 31 March 2025.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. During the year ended 31
March 2025, there were no material and significant dispute between
the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial performance of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2025 and the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2025 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 108 and 109 respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the share capital and share options of
the Company are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive right under the Articles
of Association of the Company and the Cayman lIslands law, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year
ended 31 March 2025.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 111 and in note 37 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2025, the Company had distributable reserve of
approximately HK$19,724,000, calculated under the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. Such amount includes share premium which
may be distributable provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts or when they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company and its

subsidiaries made charitable donations of approximately HK$5,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DIRECTORS

The members of the Board during the year ended 31 March 2025

and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Chun Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk

Ms. Fu Wan Ling

Mr. Fu Ho Hon (appointed on 17 January 2025)
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat

Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of

Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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In accordance with article 16.19 of the Articles, at every annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation, provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. Accordingly, Mr. Fu Chun
Keung, Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk and Ms. Fu Wan Ling will retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,

being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with article 16.2 of the Articles, any Director
appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office only
until the first annual general meeting of the Company after his/
her appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. Since Mr. Fu Ho Hon was appointed as an executive
Director by the Board on 17 January 2025 as an addition to the
board, he shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting, and being eligible, offer himself for re-election thereat.
None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has entered into any service contract
with the Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date or agreement date, which shall
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by not less than

three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which shall continue thereafter
unless and until terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other. Save as disclosed
above, none of the Directors including those to be re-elected at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company which
is not terminable within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

There was no transactions, arrangement or contract of significance
connected to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
subsidiaries, or its holding company or any of its fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which any Director and the Director’'s connected
party had a direct or indirect material interest, subsisting at the end
of the year ended 31 March 2025 or at any time during the year
ended 31 March 2025.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has in force
indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant statutes for
the benefits of the Directors. The permitted indemnity provisions are
provided for in the Company’s Articles of Association in respect of
potential losses and liability associated with legal proceedings that
may be brought against such Directors and the payment of any sum

primarily due from the Company that may be liable by the Directors.

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for the

benefit of the Directors is currently in force.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or exited during the year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

In compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix C1
of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has established a
Remuneration Committee to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for all the Directors’
remuneration. The Directors’ remuneration is determined by the
Board with reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities,
the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial

statements of this annual report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules from each of the
Independent non-executive Directors and considers that all the
Independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat,
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick and Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2025, interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”))
which were notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company

Name of the Director Capacity

EEnE 54

Mr. Fu? Interest in controlled corporation
BoEAE? RAEEE

(also a chief executive)

(b B ITHUAEEL)

Ms. Fu? Interest in controlled corporation
Bt AR

Ms. Cheung®®
wit?®

Interest in controlled corporation,
interest of spouse

REEEEs  IREEE

BUHNTESNE LS HER

ARREEERBIUIFATESTREGEM L
7 RIS 5.00 k3t BB S & 17 3 H 0 5 E R
E UYRRERBYUNFATEZ(AREES
H - EBKREERRFAELE)DRBILAL -

EERITHRARRAE QR REMMBEE
B HEROREEFENERR

KA

M2025F3A31H ' EF RITHAHR AR A
S EF WA EE (TR REAEMFE71EFH
HREEGO([BHREEMRE ) E XV ) AR
7 - AR REEZFEEREES RBEK
PIZEXV EE 7 & 8 9 AFA A& AN A A7) R Bk S P Y
Ezm KB (BEBREES RBAERGEBIEX
BEWEFIBERBEENERRAXR) - SRR
BHRBABIROIEI2IRATRNEARRAFE
HECMERIOXE - IRIEGEM L5 Al
FEL546IKEFE567RAMNEA R A REERATH
ERIORBIT

RAQXDEBRDREBEROHNTRE

Percentage of

Number of Shares’ shareholding

BRBEA " IR AEEL B
165,000,000 55%
165,000,000 55%
165,000,000 55%
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Notes:
. All interests stated are long positions.
2. Mr. Fu, Ms. Fu and Ms. Cheung collectively are interested in one-

third or more of the voting power at general meeting of Mythe Group
Holdings Company Limited (“MGH Limited”) and they are therefore
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by MGH Limited by virtue
of the SFO.

. Ms. Cheung is the spouse of Mr. Fu and she is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Mr. Fu by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed herein, neither the Directors nor any of their
associates had any interests or short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 March 2025 as defined in Section 352 of
the SFO. In addition, at no time during the year had the Directors
and chief executive of the Company (including their spouses and
children under 18 years of age) any interest in, or been granted,
or exercised any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or
debentures, if applicable) of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO). Save as disclosed
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 March 2025, the interests or short positions of person in the
shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who
is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members of the
Group, or any other substantial shareholders whose interests or
short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company
Name Capacity
=18 14
MGH Limited?® Beneficial Interest
sl
Notes:
1. All interests stated are long positions.
2. Mr. Fu, Ms. Fu and Ms. Cheung collectively are interested in one-third

or more of the voting power at general meetings of MGH Limited and
they are therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by MGH
Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and
chief executives of the Company) who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who is, directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other members of the Group, or any other
substantial shareholders whose interests or short positions were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and share award scheme as
set out below, no equity-linked agreement was entered into by the

Group, or existed during the year ended 31 March 2025.

RAQXDEBRODREBEROGHNTRE

Percentage of
Number of Shares'
RAEE"

shareholding
IR AELEL I

165,000,000 55%

Bt -

i, SRR BRSO RER -

2. BEAE BRERRZEIHFREFMGH Limited =
DZ—HALBRRASREENES - FIt - RIE
FEHRRAEGD - HEWEARMGH Limited 85
R R A R

B EXFTREESN - R202563A31H  EF

W AFFER AR B Pt S8 B B0 o B IR iR 7

% REFERBIE XV BB 58 2 %2 3 79 AP A R SR M AN

REAFBENERIORRNEMEMAL(RAE

EEZRBEHTHRAERIN)  EELEEES

MR R R 1B T EAR S B E A E MK 8

RAIMKRR ARG RENERERRAEES% 3k

A LRSI AL  HEESIARERALRAF]

IRA5 5 5 I BB 15:(01 58 336 1R B 17 B By & ao it &Y

R EMEZRRE -

iR A 9 16
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The share award scheme was adopted by the Board on 19
March 2021 (the “Share Award Scheme”). Under the Share
Award Scheme, the Board may, from time to time, at its absolute
discretion, select any eligible persons and grant awarded shares
of the Company (the “Shares”) to them at no consideration. The
said eligible persons of the Share Award Scheme includes (i) any
individual or businesses that purchases the goods and services
from the retail stores or online sales services or its subsidiaries or
its consignment sales agent operated by the Company whom the
Board or its delegate(s) consider, in their sole discretion, to have
contributed or will contribute to the Group; (ii) any individual, being
a full-time employee, Director (including executive, non-exclusive
and independent non-executive Directors) whom the Board or its
delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion, to have contributed
or will contribute to the Group; and (iii) any individual or business
whom the Board or its delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion,
to have contributed or will contribute to the Group. The awarded
Shares shall be acquired by an independent trustee, at the costs
of the Company, and held under a trust on and subject to, among
others, the terms and conditions of the Share Award Scheme.
Awarded Shares will be vested in the selected eligible persons
according to the terms of grant determined by the Board. Further,
since the Shares awarded will be granted to the said eligible
persons under the Share Award Scheme at no consideration,
the basis of determining the purchase price of the Shares is not
applicable.

During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, there is no
purchase of awarded Shares by the Bank of Communication Trustee
Limited (the “Trustee”). As at 31 March 2025, the Trustee held
1,063,000 (2024: 10,630,000) Shares of the Company purchased but
not yet awarded under the Share Award Scheme. For the avoidance
of doubt, the Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect
of any Shares held in the Shares Pool (as defined below).

As at 31 March 2025, no awarded Shares had been granted, vested
and lapsed pursuant to the Share Award Scheme. A summary of the
Share Award Scheme is set out below, with more details set out in
the announcement dated 19 March 2021:

Purposes and objectives

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to (i) recognize and
reward the contributions or potential contributions made or to be
made by the eligible persons to the Group; (ii) align the interests of
the eligible persons with those of the Company, and strive for the
future development and expansion of the Group; and (iii) attract
high-calibre personnel to join the Group and provide them with
incentives to participate in the continual operation and development
of the Group.
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Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a term of eight (8) years commencing on 19 March 2021 (the
“Adoption Date”).

Administration

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration of
the Board in accordance with the terms of the Share Award Scheme.
In addition, as provided for under the Share Award Scheme, the
Board entered into a trust deed (the “Trust Deed’) with Bank of
Communications Trustee Limited and appointed it as the trustee
to assist with the administration and vesting of the awards granted
under the Share Award Scheme and in accordance with the Trust
Deed.

Scheme limit

The maximum number of share awards which may be awarded (or
issued, as the case may be) under the Share Award Scheme shall
be 30,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the total number of
issued Shares of the Company as at the date of this annual report.
The Board shall not instruct the Trustee to subscribe for and/or
purchase any Shares for the purpose of the Scheme when such
subscription and/or purchase will result in such threshold being

exceeded.

The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a
selected participant shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
issued Shares of the Company as at the date of this annual report
(i.e. 3,000,000 Shares).

Operation of the Scheme

The Board may from time to time, in its sole discretion, select any
eligible persons (other than any excluded persons) to participate in
the Share Award Scheme as selected participants and determine
the number of Shares to be awarded to such selected participants
out of the pool of Shares from which award shall be made (the
“Shares Pool”). The Board shall have the power to impose any
conditions on the rights of selected participants when deemed

appropriate.
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In order to satisfy any Award to be granted under the Scheme
from time to time, the Trustee shall maintain a Shares Pool which

comprise the following:

(i) such Shares as may be purchased by the Trustee on the
Stock Exchange by utilising the funds allocated by the Board
out of the Company'’s resources;

(i) such Shares as may be subscribed by the Trustee by utilising
the funds allocated by the Board out of the Company’s
resources, subject to the Company having obtained the
requisite shareholders’ approval in general meeting under
general mandate or specific mandate for the allotment and
issue of new Shares, the grant of listing of and permission to
deal in such Shares by the Stock Exchange, and compliance
with the applicable requirements under the GEM Listing Rules;

(iii)  such Shares as may be allotted or issued to the Trustee
as a holder of Shares, whether by way of scrip dividend or
otherwise; and

(iv) such Shares which remain unvested and revert to the Trustee
due to the lapse of the Award.

The Trustee may purchase the Shares on the Stock Exchange at the
prevailing market price (subject to such maximum price as may be
from time to time prescribed by the Board).

Where any award is proposed to be made to a connected person
(as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) and the relevant award
of the Shares is to be satisfied by an allotment and issue of
new Shares, such award shall be separately approved by the
shareholders in general meeting with such connected person and
his associates abstaining from voting and shall comply with all other
requirements of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules applicable to
such award.

Termination and the Remaining Life of the Scheme

This Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of: (i) the eighth
anniversary date of the Adoption Date; and (ii) such date of
early termination as determined by the Board provided that such
termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of any selected
participant.

Share awards in respect of 7,500,000 and 30,000,000 shares of the
Company were available for grant under the Share Awards Scheme
as at 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025, respectively.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the written resolutions of

the sole shareholder passed on 6 March 2019 (the “Share Option

Scheme”). The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in compliance

with the provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Since the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme to the 31

March 2025, no share option was granted, exercised, outstanding,

cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

Summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as

follow:

(a)

(b)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
the Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b) below)
have had or may have made to the Group. The Share Option
Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants an opportunity
to have a personal stake in the Company with the view to
achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and

(i)  attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining
on-going business relationships with the Eligible
Participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the long term growth of the Group.

Participant of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with
paragraph (c) below to the following persons (the “Eligible
Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i)  any Directors (including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries;

(iiiy any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(iv) such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group,
the assessment criteria of which are:

(a) contribution to the development and performance
of the Group;

(b) quality of work performed for the Group;

(c) initiative and commitment in performing his/her

duties; and

(d) length of service or contribution to the Group.

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and

(iiiy ~ the nominal value of a Share.
Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
twenty-one days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option
is HK$1.

Maximum number of Shares of the Company available for
issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 30,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.
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(f) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted to any participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed

1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of grant.
(g) Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from
the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination

thereof.
(h) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of ten years commencing on 6 March 2019, subject to early

termination provisions contained in the Share Option Scheme.

Share options in respect of 7,500,000 and 30,000,000 shares of the
Company were available for grant under the Share Option Scheme
as at 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025, respectively.

Since there was no option or award granted for the year ended 31
March 2025, the number of shares that may be issued in respect of
the options and awards granted under all schemes of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2025 divided by weighted average
number of shares in issue of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2025 is nil.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient public float
of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued share as required
under the GEM Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions which were undertaken in the normal
course of business are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements. For those related party transactions that
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions (as the case may be) under the GEM Listing Rules,
those transactions are exempt from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there were no other
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions with
related parties which are required to be disclosed in this annual
report in accordance with the requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules and the Company confirms that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2025.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2025, none of the Directors or
their respective close associates (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) had any business or interests in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business

of the Group.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to protect the Group’s interest in its business activities,
on 6 March 2019, each of Mr. Fu, Ms. Cheung, Ms. Fu and
MGH Limited, the controlling shareholders of the Company (the
“Controlling Shareholders”) as covenantors executed the deed
of non-competition in favour of the Company (the “Deed of Non-

Competition”).
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In accordance with the Deed of Non-Competition, the Controlling
Shareholders jointly and severally agreed, whether as principal
or agent and whether undertaken directly or indirectly (including
through any close associate, subsidiary, partnership, joint venture
or other contractual arrangement of theirs), not to do the following
from the Listing Date and ending on the occurrence of the earlier of
(i) the date on which the shares of the Company cease to be listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange; or (ii) the date of which (a) the
Controlling Shareholders, individually or collectively cease to own,
directly or indirectly, 30% or more of the then issued share capital
of the Company and (b) the Controlling Shareholders, cease to

control the composition of a majority of the Board:

(a) directly or indirectly, either on their own account, in
conjunction with, on behalf of, or through any person, firm
or company, among other things, in any form carry on,
participate or be interested, engage or otherwise be involved
in or acquire or hold shares or interests in (in each case
whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and
whether for profit, reward or otherwise) or assist or support
a third party to engage in or participate in the current and
potential business engaged or to be engaged by the Group
including but not limited to design, production, retail and
wholesale of jewellery products (the “Restricted Business”)
and where they become aware of such engagement of the

Restricted Business they shall notify the Company forthwith;

(b) solicit or procure any of the suppliers and/or the customers
of the Group from time to time to terminate their business
relationships or otherwise reduce the amount of business with

the Group;

(c) solicit or procure any of the Directors, senior management or
other employees of the Group from time to time to resign or

otherwise cease providing services to the Group; and/or

(d) unless with the prior written consent of the Company, disclose
any confidential information of the Group to any other third

parties.
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The Company has received a confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders on their compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition
during the year ended 31 March 2025.

Details of the undertaking has been set out in the section headed

“Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

BANK BORROWING

Particulars of bank borrowing of the Group as at 31 March 2025 are

set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of contributions to the retirement benefits schemes of the
Group are set out in notes 9 and 32 to the consolidated financial

statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with terms of
reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee include the review
and supervision of the financial reporting process, the internal
monitoring system and risk management system of the Group. As at
the date of this annual report, the audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong
Tat, Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick and Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony

(chairman).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, except for the deviation from code
provision C.2.1 in Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”), the Group has no material deviation from Part 2 of the
CG Code as set forth in Appendix C1 to the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the accounting period covered by this annual report.
Code provision C.2.1 in Part 2 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Fu is both
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. In
view that Mr. Fu has been assuming day-to-day responsibilities in
operating and managing the Group, the Board believes that with
the support of Mr. Fu’'s extensive experience and knowledge in the
business of the Group, vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company in Mr. Fu strengthens the solid
and consistent leadership and thereby allows for efficient business

planning and decision which is in the best interest of the Group.

The Directors consider that the deviation from code provision C.2.1
in Part 2 of the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstances.
Notwithstanding the above, the Board is of the view that this
management structure is effective for the Group’s operations, and

sufficient checks and balances are in place.

The Directors are committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance with a view to safeguarding the interests of
the shareholders as a whole. The principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to enhancing environmental protection to
minimize the impact of its activities on the environment. It is the
policy of the Group to promote clean operation and strives to making
the most efficient use of resources in its operations, and minimizing
wastes and emission. Details are set out in Environmental, Social

and Governance Report on pages 57 to 99 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s operations are
mainly carried out by the subsidiaries of the Company in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group. There was no material breach
of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
committed by the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There is no material subsequent event affecting the business or
financial performance of Group which has come to the attention of

the Directors after 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2025 have been audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited,
who will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (the
“AGM”) and offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-appoint

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as the auditors of the Company.

As at the date of this report, there has been no change in the

auditors of the Company in the preceding 3 years.

By order of the Board

Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited

Fu Chun Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2025
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INTRODUCTION, ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we”)
is a vertically integrated jeweller based in Hong Kong. The Group
is primarily engaged in the retail of its own products through its
network of seven retail stores under the brand name of “Chong
Fai Jewellery (B#EZk% )" strategically located in Kowloon and the
New Territories. Being vertically integrated, the Group possesses
the means to control the diversity, quality and pricing of its own
jewellery designs produced in-house at its production facility in
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The Group’s principal products are jewellery products,
including gem-set jewellery and gold jewellery products.

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) summarises the environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) initiatives, plans and performances of the Group and

demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

The Group adheres to the management policies of sustainable ESG
development. We are also committed to handling the Group’s ESG
affairs effectively and responsibly, which is integrated as one of the
core components of our business strategy as we believe this is the

key to our continuous success in the future.
The ESG Governance Structure

The Group has established the ESG Taskforce (the “Taskforce”).
The Taskforce comprises core members from different departments
and is responsible for collecting relevant information on our ESG
aspects for preparing the ESG Report. The Taskforce reports
to the Board of Directors (the “Board”), assists in identifying
and evaluating the Group’s ESG risks and the effectiveness of
the internal control mechanisms. The Taskforce also examines
and evaluates our performances in different aspects such as
environment, health and safety, labour standards and product
responsibilities in the ESG aspects. The Board sets up a general
direction for the Group’s ESG strategies, ensuring the effectiveness

in the control of its risks and internal control mechanisms.
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SCOPE OF REPORTING

Unless specified otherwise, the ESG Report covers the Group’s
operating segments, including seven retail stores under the brand
name of “Chong Fai Jewellery” which are strategically located
in Kowloon and the New Territories in Hong Kong, office located
in Hung Hum and the production facility in Shenzhen. The ESG
Report covers the Group’s policies, compliance issues as well as
key performance indicators (“KPI”) in two subject areas, namely,
environmental and social of the above segments under the Group’s
operation from 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025. We will continue
to expand the scope of disclosure in the future as the Group’s
data collection system and sustainable development work further

develop.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with all
applicable provisions set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”)
contained in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

For the Group’s corporate governance practices, please refer to
pages 22 to 36 for the section “Corporate Governance Report”

contained in the Group’s 2024/25 Annual Report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and
measures taken by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2025.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their views related to its
business and ESG issues. In order to understand and address
stakeholders’ concerns, we communicate with our key stakeholders,
including but not limited to shareholders and investors, customers
and business partners, employees, suppliers, regulatory bodies
and government authorities, and media and the public through
different channels such as conferences and electronic platforms.
In formulating operational strategies and ESG measures, the Group
takes into account stakeholders’ expectations and strives to improve

our performance through mutual cooperation to create greater value
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Stakeholders

Expectations and Concerns

Communication Channels

. GIESFALEd:

FOE HMEREE BERE
Suppliers . Fair and open procurement . Supplier management meetings and
AR . D RN F R EREE events

. Sustainable sourcing . HEREESRNEH

o Supplier audit
o HEmER

° Procurement manager
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Regulatory bodies and o Compliance with laws and o Compliance manager
government authorities regulations U AR
EEEHE RIS S . ErPEEER 0 On-site inspections
. Support economic o BERE
development o Project manager of regulatory bodies
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Media and the public o Involvement in communities o Community activities and partner
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and staff of the Group’s respective major
operations have participated in the preparation of the ESG Report to
assist the Group in reviewing our operations and identifying relevant
ESG issues and assess the importance of related matters to our
businesses and stakeholders. Based on the assessed significant
ESG issues, a data collection questionnaire was prepared to collect
information from relevant departments and business units of the

Group.

The following is a matrix showing the Group’s material ESG topics in
the ESG Report:
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MATERIAL ESG TOPICS RIE - HEREREEERE
il Emission management 2. Waste management
PR ER REEYE R
& Water management 4. Energy management
KRERE B BERE
5. Use of packaging materials 6. Working environment
BEMEER THERE
7. Remuneration and benefits 8. Recruitment, promotion and dismissal
¥ B LA A R - B KRR
9. Equal opportunities 10. Internal health and safety management
FEHE ARG B K 22 2 B 38
11. Safety production 12.  Training management
LEREE 2HlE TR
13. Supply chain management 14. Quality assurance
HrEsEE R HBERE
15. Protection of intellectual property (“IP”) Rights 16. Customer services
FERERE([ABER ) IRE BF R
17. Advertising and labelling 18. Protection of privacy
B RRE FhBS (R &
19. Anti-corruption 20. Corporate social responsibility
RE)S rEHERE

The Group confirmed that it has established appropriate and
effective management policies and internal control systems for ESG
issues and confirmed that the disclosed contents are in compliance
with the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.

CONTACT US

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and
suggestions. You can provide valuable advice in respect of the ESG
Report or our performances in sustainable development by email:
info@chongfaijewellery.com.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL

A1l.

Emissions

The Group adheres to the strategy of sustainable
With the aim to
reduce energy consumption and greenhouse gas

development in its operations.
(“GHG”) emissions, the Group has always been
exploring protection operating models of less impact
to the environment, recognising the importance of
environmental management, and striving to protect the
environment in order to fulfil the Group’s commitment to

social responsibility.

The Group’s mission is to minimise pollution to
the environment, make continuous improvement,
and comply with relevant environmental laws and
regulations. To achieve so, we have identified the
opportunities to reduce exhaust gas emissions,
wastewater discharge, water use, waste generation and
disposal, as well as energy consumption by analysing
the environmental risks within our operations, and
conducted regular monitoring to ensure the issues were
well managed.

The Group closely follows the latest national and
regional environmental protection laws and regulations,
thereby focusing on strengthening environmental
protection measures to comply with related local laws
and regulations and fully implement environmental
policies. The Group complies with applicable laws
and regulations,
Law of the PRC”,

Impact Assessment”,

including “Environmental Protection
“Law of the PRC on Environmental
“Administrative Regulations
on the Environmental Protection of Construction
Projects”, “Category-based Administration Catalogue
for Environmental Impact Assessment of Construction
Projects”, “Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution”, “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC”, “Law of
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution”, “Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste”, “Work Safety Law of the PRC”,

on Administration of Precursor Chemicals” and Hong

“Regulations

Kong’s “Waste Disposal Ordinance” etc.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group did
not have any violation of relevant local environmental
laws and regulations in relation to exhaust gas and
GHG emissions, water and land discharge, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes that

have a significant impact on the Group.
Emission Management
Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group has generated limited amount of exhaust
gas emissions in its production facility. To mitigate
the exhaust gas emissions, the Group has engaged
independent qualified inspector to monitor and test the
water, air, soil, and other environmental conditions of its
production facility. It has also implemented its emission
control guidelines for cleaner production, for example,
dust filtering system, filtering system with activated
carbon absorbent and exhaust scrubber system were
installed to treat air pollutants which were mainly the
fugitive dust emissions and volatile organic compounds,
and met the legal emission standard before releasing
to the atmosphere. The installed systems, not only,
effectively reduce the exhaust gas emissions, but also

protect its workers’ health.
GHG Emissions

The major sources of the Group’'s GHG emissions are
direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) from combustion
of petrol for transportation and energy indirect GHG

emissions (Scope 2) from purchased electricity.

The Group actively adopts electricity conservation and
energy saving measures to reduce GHG emissions,

including:

o Adopts environmental conservation and energy
saving measures. Relevant measures are
described under “Energy Management” in Aspect
A2;

o Conducts monthly vehicle maintenance to reduce
fuel consumption effectively, thereby reducing

carbon and exhaust gas emissions;
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Conducts annual inspections to ensure the

compliance with national emission standards; and

Reduces the number of business trips through
utilising electronic communication such as video

conferences and WeChat meetings.

The employee’s awareness of reducing GHG emissions

has been increased through these GHG mitigation

measures.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s total

GHG emissions' was approximately 89.78 tCO,e, and its

intensity? was approximately 1.63 tCO,e per employee.’

The Group’s direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) from

petrol consumption of vehicles was approximately 1.00

tCO,e, and the energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope

2) from purchased electricity was approximately 88.78
tCO.e.

Notes:

1.

GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon
dioxide equivalent and are based on, but not limited to,
“The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
latest released emission factors of China’s regional power
grid basis and CLP Power Limited, “Global Warming
Potential Values” from IPCC Fifth Assessment Report
(AR5).

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had 55 full-time
employees in total which includes the office, retail
shops and production facility. The data is also used for
calculating other intensity data.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s total
GHG emissions was approximately 135.79 tCO,e, and its
intensity was approximately 1.89 tCO,e per employee.
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Waste Management
Hazardous Waste Handling Method
Production facility

The Group produces a wide range of wastes across the
operations; therefore, it has established comprehensive
procedures to manage wastes — no matter whether they
are recyclable, non-recyclable or hazardous. Hazardous
wastes such as flammable materials (such as waste
cloth, waste gloves, waste cotton swabs and waste
cotton yarn) and corrosive wastes (such as container,
hydrochloric acid, electroplating rinse-wastewater) are
generally required more efforts and clear guidance
provided for the workers to follow including wastes
segregation, labelling, storage and transportation. The
Group has established guidelines in governing the
management and disposal of hazardous wastes, all the
hazardous wastes are collected by licensed contractors
for treatment, and complied with “The Measures for the
Administration of Permit for Operation of Dangerous
Wastes”. The Group purchases any precursor chemical
should report the type and quantity in demand, prior to
the purchase, to the public security authority of the local
people’s government at the county level in compliance
with the “Administrative Regulations on Precursor
Chemicals”. To promote waste reduction and recycling
practices, the Group encourages its employees to
recycle the recyclable materials and reuse useful parts
of the waste such as jewellery pieces and packaging to

divert the waste from landfills.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s
production of related products has decreased, leading
to the amount of hazardous wastes generated was

regarded as immaterial.
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Non-hazardous Waste Handling Method

The Group adheres to the waste management principles
and strives to properly manage and dispose all
wastes produced in its business activities. The waste
management practice has been complied with related
environmental protection laws and regulations. The non-
hazardous wastes generated by the Group’s business
activities mainly consist of paper, ink cartridges and
waste battery. After collection and sorting by the Group,
such wastes will eventually be collected and processed
by general waste service providers. Recyclables (such

as paper and ink cartridges) will be recycled.

The Group regularly monitors the consumption of paper,
ink cartridge and battery, and implements various
reduction measures. The Group emphasises the waste
management principle of “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle”
to encourage employees to sort waste at source and
recycle to achieve the objectives in waste reduction in
its operations. The Group maintains a high standard
in waste reduction, educates employees about the
importance of sustainable development and provides
relevant supports in order to enhance their skills and

knowledge in sustainability.

The Group has implemented measures to handle such
non-hazardous wastes and launched different reduction

initiatives, including but not limited to:

o Educated all employees on reducing the use of

disposable items such as plastic tableware;

. Purchased microwaves in offices to encourage
employees to take lunch boxes by themselves
instead of ordering takeaway food, which could

largely reduce the waste of food packages;
o Advocated the reusing of office stationeries; and

o Provided glass cups to clients and guests instead

of disposable ones.
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Paper Management
Office

One of the main natural resources consumed by the
Group is paper from its office printing machines. To
minimise the use of paper, the Group has put great

efforts into the implementation of following initiatives:

. Chosen suppliers with more environmentally
friendly paper source, so as to indirectly reduce
the amount of tree losses while consuming the

same amount of paper;

o Promoted paperless office, and disseminate
information by electronic means (i.e. via email or

e-bulletin boards) as much as possible;

o Set duplex printing as the default mode for most

network printers when printouts are needed;

o Disseminated the idea of “Think before print” by
using posters and stickers in offices to remind the

staff of avoiding unnecessary printings;

o Reconsidered boxes and trays as containers
beside photocopier to collect single-sided paper

for reuse and recycling;

o Used the back of old single-sided documents for

printing or as draft paper;

o Recycled used stationery whenever possible; and
. Used as less as paper whenever possible.
Retail shops

The Group’s retail shops has also consumed paper,
which are mainly the sales receipt notes. To minimise
the use of paper, the Group has put great efforts into

the implementation of following measures:

o Tried to minimise printing excessive sales receipts

notes whenever possible;

o Effectively distributed the sales receipts notes
to each retail shops according to their sales

performance; and
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. Used as less as sales receipts notes whenever

possible.

Through the above non-hazardous waste reduction
measures, the employee’s awareness in waste reduction
has been enhanced. For the year ended 31 March
2025, the Group’s total non-hazardous waste amount
was approximately 0.42 tonnes, its intensity was
approximately 0.007 tonnes per employee; in which
approximately 0.36 tonnes were paper, approximately
0.01 tonnes were ink cartridge and approximately 0.05

tonnes were waste batteries.*
Note:

4. For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s total
non-hazardous waste were approximately 0.38 tonnes
of paper, approximately 0.01 tonnes ink cartridge and
approximately 0.05 tonnes of waste battery.

Wastewater

The Group’s major use of water occurs at its production
facility in the course of jewellery processing. The
wastewater may contain acids, alkali, various chemicals
and heavy metals. At the production facility in Shenzhen,
there is an onsite facility for neutralization, deionization
and sedimentation of the wastewater. The treated water
is certified safe to discharge into the municipal network,
and the slag is properly handled by licensed operators.
The Group’s operation complies with the laws and
regulations, including but not limited to “Water Pollution
Control Ordinance” of Hong Kong, “the Law of PRC on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”.

Since the office and retail shops’ wastewater discharged
by the Group will be disposed through the municipal
sewage pipe network to the regional water purification
plant, its water consumption amount is considered as
the amount of sewage discharged. The data on the
discharge of sewage will be described in the section

“Water Management” in Aspect A2.
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A2.

Use of Resources

The Group upholds and promotes the principle of
effective use of resources so as to monitor the potential
environmental impacts in our business operations.
Through the 3Rs principles, namely, “reduce, reuse
and recycle”, we promote green office and operation
environment, and minimise the environmental impacts of

the Group.

As mentioned in Aspect A1, the Group has set out
related environmental management policies and
procedures on resource usages such as water,
electricity and petrol. Monthly usage statistics are
used for focused management of the main energy
consumption equipment and regulation of equipment

operation for effective resource usage.
Energy Management

The major energy consumption of the Group in daily
operation are electricity consumption in the operation

and petrol consumption via transportation.

The Group has formulated rules and regulations to
achieve the goal of electricity saving and efficient
consumption. The relevant specific measures are as

follows:

o Selects energy-efficient equipment and electrical
appliances for production facility, office and shops

electricity use;

o Forbids the use of large-power electrical
appliances such as heaters, kettles, refrigerators,
etc., to avoid electricity overload. Employees
should turn off all electrical appliances that come

with them when they leave office;

o Turns off all unnecessary lights, air conditioners,
computers and other office equipment in office
areas, conference rooms and corridors when they

are not in use to avoid waste of electricity;

o Standardises office, production facility and even
retail shop lighting (when feasible) with energy

saving lights and LED lights;
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o Maintains indoor temperature at an optimal,

comfortable level to conserve energy;

. Switches off shop lightings by 11 p.m. as a
commitment to the “Charter on External Lighting”

organised by the Hong Kong Government;

o Regulates the use of air conditioners strictly to

prevent waste of electricity;

o Turns off computers (host and monitor) when
employees go out for a long time, and switch
computers to standby or sleep mode when

employees go out for lunch; and

. Enhances the maintenance and overhaul of
equipment, maintain the best condition of
all electronic equipment for effective use of

electricity.

As a result, the employee’s awareness was increased
by implementing these electricity and energy mitigation

measures.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the total energy
consumption of the Group was approximately
176,563.94 kWh and its intensity was approximately
3,210.25 kWh per employee.® Petrol consumption from
vehicles was equivalent to approximately 3,631.94 kWh°,
and electricity consumption was approximately 172,932
kWh.

Notes:

5. For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s total
energy consumption was approximately 267,470.27 kWh,
and its intensity was approximately 3,714.86 kWh per
employee.

6. For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s petrol
consumption was approximately 374.8 litres.
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Water Management

The Group’s major water consumption is from the
production facility, office and retail shops’ fresh-water
consumption. The Group encourages all employees
and customers to develop the habit of conscious water
conservation. The Group has been enhancing its water
conservation promotion. Environmental messages are
posted on pantry and washrooms to remind employees
to save water. The employees’ water conservation

awareness has been increased with the above water-

saving measures.

Due to the Group’s business nature and its operations
are mainly in the cities, while the mining and
alchemy processes are performed by subcontracted

organisations, the procurement of suitable water sources

is not relevant to the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the total water
consumption of the Group was approximately 433.53

cubic meters, and its intensity was approximately 7.88

cubic meters per employee.”

Note:

7. For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s total
water consumption was approximately 1,404.04 cubic
meters, and its intensity was approximately 19.50 cubic

meters per employee.

Use of Packaging Materials

Since the Group has retail business, it uses packaging
materials including paper box, paper bag and jewellery

pouch. The Group is actively promoting the packaging

reduction measures, including:

. Tried to minimise excessive packaging when

customers make a purchase;

o Encouraged the use of reusable shopping bags
and offered customers an incentive for using

a reusable shopping bag instead of plastic or

paper; and

o Promoted buy-back programs or upcycling
programs to encourage new sales with a trade-in

of old gold that can be recycled and reused.
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http://harmony1.com/4-ways-to-reduce-the-waste-of-plastic-bags/
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http://harmony1.com/recycling-upcycling-and-eco-cycling-trends/
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For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group
consumed approximately 0.47 tonnes of packaging
materials, which is approximate 0.008 tonnes per
employee. There were no paper boxes being consumed,
the consumption packaging materials consisted
of approximately 0.32 tonnes of paper bags and

approximately 0.15 tonnes of pouch bags. ®
Notes:

8. For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group's
packaging material consumption were approximately 0.54
tonnes, consisted of approximately 0.37 tonnes of paper
bags and approximately 0.17 tonnes of pouch bags.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s operations generate limited impact on its
environment due to its business nature. The Group still
pursues the best practice for environmental protection.
In addition to complying with related environmental laws
and regulations and international standards for proper
natural environment preservation, it has integrated
the concept of environmental protection and natural
resource conservation into its internal management
and daily operations in order to achieve the aim of

environmental sustainability.
Working Environment

The Group strives to provide employees with a
comfortable working environment to enhance working
efficiency. The Group maintains production facility,
office and retail shops discipline and environmental
hygiene, and ensures personal area and common areas
are neat and tidy. Employees monitor the conditions of
the community and workplace from time to time, set up
emergency plans in advance for risk mitigation, adopt
preventive and control measures for problem and risk
identification, and deal with the identified problems
and potential risks in time to maintain a sound working

environment.
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A4.

On the other hand, the Group regularly monitors
and measures indoor air quality of the workplace. It
maintains indoor air quality and filters pollutants and
dust via air purification equipment and regular cleansing

of the air conditioning system.
Climate Change Impact

The world’s climate has changed significantly in the
past decades — global temperatures have increased and
extreme weather events are becoming more frequent
and severe, which may cause disruptions to business
operations globally, and in turn adversely impact the

macro economy.

The Group mainly engages in the sale of self-
designed fine jewellery products. The increase in
global temperature may lead to an increase in energy
consumption by the Group’s offices and stores. The
Group will continue to monitor the potential risks
of climate change and its impacts on the Group’s
operations and customers, and devise and implement
preventive and emergency measures accordingly.
Besides, the Group will continue its efforts to control

energy consumption and carbon emissions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HEREAHE

B.

SOCIAL

B1.

Employment

Employees are the greatest and most valuable asset
of the Group and its core competitive advantage.
Therefore, its success highly depends on the ability
to attract, cultivate and retain employees. The Group
adheres to a people-oriented approach, standardises
labour employment management to respect and protect
the legitimate interests of every employee. At the
same time, the Group strives to ensure its employees’
occupational health and safety for protecting labour
rights, stimulating employee’s enthusiasm, initiatives

and creativity to build a harmonious staff relationship.

The Group actively complies with labour laws and
regulations, including but not limited to, the “Labour
Law of the PRC”, “Labour Contract Law of the PRC”,
“Regulations on the Implementation of the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC”, “Social Insurance Law of the
PRC”, “Interim Regulations on Levying Social Insurance
Premiums”, “Provisional Measures on Maternity
Insurance of Enterprise Employees”, “Regulation on
Unemployment Insurance”, “Regulation on Work-Related
Injury Insurances” and Hong Kong's “Employment
Ordinance”. The Group has accordingly formulated a
series of related personnel management policy to guide
employees to actively integrate personal pursuits into

the long-term of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group did not
aware of any material non-compliance of laws and
regulations in respect of employment related issues
including but not limited to recruitment and dismissal,
remuneration and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination and

benefits and welfares.
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As at 31 March 2025, the Group had 55 full-time
employees in total, the following shows the details of the

Group’s human resources information:

RIERNE D ETAK

36%  51% —__

64%

W 21 Male W 3054 T Below 30 years old
W 30-50 5% 30-50 years old
513k LAk 51 years old or above

B % Female

Remuneration and Benefits

The Group has established a fair, reasonable and
competitive remuneration system, and paid employees
based on the principles of fairness, competitiveness,
motivation, reasonableness and legitimacy. The
remuneration package of employees includes salary,
bonuses, allowances and commission. Salespersons are
entitled to guaranteed commission based on retail sales
amount, and will also be entitled to further commissions
subject to whether they can meet the sales target laid
out by the Group. Generally, employee salaries are
determined based on the employees’ qualification,
experience, position and seniority. The Group believes
that its remuneration package is competitive in the

market.

The Group has signed and executed the labour
contracts with employees in accordance with the
“Labour Contract Law of the PRC”, and Hong
Kong’s “Employment Ordinance”. The signing rate
of labour contracts is 100%. In accordance with
the law and ordinance, the Group pays “five social
insurance and one housing fund” for its employees,
namely, endowment insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, employment injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund, to

ensure employees are covered by social insurance.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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The Group earnestly safeguards the legitimate interests
of labour in accordance with the requirement of the
national and local laws and regulations of the “Labour
Law of the PRC”. The Group respects the rights of
employees to rest and leave and the Group believes that
sufficient rest is good for employees to work efficiently
and so as increase productivity. The Staff Regulations
has issued to the employees to regulate the procedure
applying annual leave. The Group has also followed
the “Regulation on Paid Annual Leave for Employees”
and other relevant regulations, regarding the policies
about working hours, working overtimes and wages,
and paid annual leave. The Group puts emphasis on the

employees’ rights of rest periods and holidays.
Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group has continuously established and improved
its recruitment system. In the recruitment process, the
Group has standardised the hiring procedures and
recruitment principles, adhering to the hiring principles
of morality, knowledge, ability, experience and physique
applicable to the job positions. In such ways to
continuously attract talents by upholding principles of

justice, fairness and openness.

The Group has implemented a fair and open assessment
system to evaluate employees’ working performance and
internal assessment results. The results would be the
basis for employee promotion. The Group also creates
opportunities for their promotion and development as

well as explore their potential at work.

The Group specifies the basis and procedures for
staff promotion, transfer and demotion management,
and regulations for departure process to protect the
interests of both employees and the Group and reduce

the conflicts in between.
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The management believes that employees are important
assets of the Group, and remains committed to
attracting and retaining talent with diverse backgrounds
for achieving sustainable growth and maintaining a
stable turnover rate. The turnover rates of the Group’s

workforce as at 31 March 2025 are as below:

By Region #Zih&E
Hong Kong &% 26%
Mainland China A B Ay 50%
By Gender 1% 3|

Female & 24%
Male 5 20%
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By Age REi#
<30 22%
30-50 31%
>51 14%
By Work Location & T {£ith B
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B2.

Equal Opportunities

The Group strictly complies with national and local
standards by adopting a fair, equitable and open
requirement process and develop relevant system files
to eliminate discrimination in the recruitment processes.
Employees face no discrimination regardless of race,
sex, colour, age, family background, ethnic tradition,
religion, physical fitness and nationality and thus
allowing them to enjoy fair treatment in every aspect
including recruitment, remuneration, training and

promotion.
Health and Safety

The Group highly recognises the importance of health
and safety of the employees. The Group commits to
provide employees with a healthy, safe and comfortable
working environment and strives to eliminate potential
health and safety hazards at the workplace. The Group
strictly enforces relevant laws and regulations such as
the “Labour Law of the PRC”, “Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases”,
“Measures for Declaration of Project with Occupational
Hazards of the PRC”, “Work Safety Law of the PRC” and
“Fire Protection Law of the PRC”, “Occupational Safety

and Health Ordinance” in Hong Kong, etc.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023, the Group did not aware of any
accidents that resulted in death or significant physical
injury no lost days due to work injury, and no claims
or compensation were paid to its employees due to
such events. No material non-compliance of laws and
regulations relevant to health and safety of employees

were found.
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Internal Health and Safety Management

The Group maintains an internal audit and inspection
system to ensure the health and safety of customers
and employees during its operation in compliance with
“Measures for Declaration of Project with Occupational
Hazards of the PRC”. The review processes are
designed to ensure the workplace is under constant
monitoring, so as to identify and correct the deficiencies
that do not meet the standards. The Group regularly
inspects and reviews the safety issues of production
facility, offices and retail shops and actively encourages
employees to report health and safety incidents and

risks.

On the other hand, the Group provides staff with health
and safety notifications to provide related information
and increase their awareness. The Group also arranges
body checks for employees, particularly pay attention
to those who have abnormal examination result and

provide treatment advice.
Safety Production

The safety issue is highly concerned by the Group. The
Group has also cooperated with independent consulting
firm to ensure the production safety by establishing
GB/T 33000-2016 “Guideline of China Occupational
Safety and Health Management System”, and AQ/T9006-
2010 “Basic Norms for Work Safety Standardization
of enterprises” which in compliance with “Work Safety
Law of the PRC”. The mishandling of machinery in the
jewellery production may cause injuries. To safeguard
the workers, inspection on production facilities would
take place on regular basis to prevent the safety hazard.
The inspection includes the proper usage of safety
equipment aligning with safety production procedures,
and the cleanliness of the production facility. Any
hidden safety danger would be immediately treated by
the technical staff to protect the personal safety of the

workers.
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B3.

Fire Safety

The Group has also formulated fire safety system in
accordance with the “Fire Protection Law of the PRC”
and “Provisions on the Supervision and Administration
of Fire Protection of Construction Projects”. To raise
employees’ fire prevention awareness, fire drills are
conducted regularly and staff are instructed to the
correct use of fire extinguishers and the Group’s
fire evacuation plans are improved. In response to
emergencies, different places of the Group’s workplaces
are also equipped and clearly located with first aid kits

and fire extinguishers.
Development and Training

The Group aims to build a strong sense of community
and a positive environment for its employees to enhance
employee loyalty and work dedication. The Group
believes that its ability to recruit and retain experienced
and skilled labour is key to growth and development.
The Group provides employee orientation to its new
employees to explain the Group’s internal rules and to
enhance employees’ safety awareness. The Group also

provides various types of employee training regularly.
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Training Management

The management formulates the Group’s annual
training proposal and conducts regular reviews on
the effectiveness of the training courses to improve
the quality of the training system. The Group provides
relevant on-the-job training for each employee to
facilitate their business abilities. For examples,
salespersons in the retail shops would be trained
with the sales skills and etiquette with facing the
customers; the workers in the production facility would
be trained with the advanced skills. Through various
trainings, employees are able to strengthen related
professional knowledge, professions and management
skills. It benefits the Group by enhancing employees’
professional skills and attracting more talents. The
Group also provides subsidies, remuneration and

promotion incentives to encourage employees to

participate in external training courses.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, all employees of the
Group have attended trainings. The average training
hours for male and female were approximately 10 hours
and 12 hours respectively, in which employees with
managerial grade or above attained approximately 10
hours of trainings on average, while employees with

managerial grade or below attained approximately 12

hours of trainings on average.

The Group also recognises the importance of
occupational safety training to ensure employees’
personal safety. The relevant policies have been

described in details in Aspect B2 “Health and Safety”.

B4. Labour Standards

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group complies with the “Labour Law of the PRC”,
“Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour” of
PRC, and Hong Kong’s “Employment Ordinance”.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with any laws

and regulations in relation to the prevention of child or

forced labour.
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B5.

The Group strictly prohibits the use of any child and
forced labour in the PRC and Hong Kong operations.
The Group demands all new employees to provide true
and accurate personal information when they join the
Group. The recruitment staff will stringently verify their
information, including body check results, academic
certificates, identity card and hometown information.
Regular reviews and checking are conducted to guard
against child or forced labour in the operations. The
Group also avoids using the supplies and services of
those suppliers and contractors with records of using
child or forced labour. Furthermore, employees work
overtime on a voluntary basis, and the Group promises
not to force employees to work overtime to prevent any
breach of labour standards. The Group also prohibits
any punishments, management methods and behaviours
involving verbal abuse, physical punishment, physical
abuse, oppression, sexual harassment, etc. against its

employees for any reason.
Supply Chain Management

The Group highly values the importance of potential
environmental and social risks management in its supply
chain. For the effective monitoring of procurement
procedures and cost control, increasing management
transparency in procurement, the Group has established
a stringent and standardised procurement system and a
systematic selection process for suppliers. For the year
ended 31 March 2025, the Group had approximately 20

suppliers, all of them were from the PRC.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group expects suppliers to fulfil the standards
in terms of environment, society and corporate
governance, commercial ethics and quality. The Group
selects suppliers that create positive influences on
environmental and social matters, the scopes of which
mainly includes operational compliance, employees’
safety and health, social responsibility, business ethics
and environmental protection. Since the Group does
not enter into long-term contracts with suppliers, it can
switch the suppliers flexibly. The Group will terminate
cooperation at instant with those suppliers who may
cause severe contamination or seriously social harms or
have caused material environmental or social incidents.
With the above assessment processes, the Group can
minimise potential environmental and social risks of

supply chain.
Fair and Open Procurement

The Group’s procurement procedures strictly abide by
the “Bidding Law of the PRC” and related regulations.
The Group makes procurement on an open, fair and
impartial basis without any discrimination against
any particular supplier nor corruption and bribery.
The Group sources the raw materials of diamonds,
gemstones and precious metals from suppliers at stable
and competitive market prices. The Group believes it
does not rely on any single supplier for sourcing any
raw material to material extent. In addition, the Group
forbids employees and any parties who are related
to the relevant supplier to take part in the subject
procurement. The Group stresses the integrity of its
suppliers, it only selects those with good business track
records and no material non-compliances or unethical

behaviours.
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B6.

Product Responsibility

The Group actively safeguards the quality of the
products with its internal control process. The Group
also maintains on-going communication with the
customers to ensure understanding and satisfaction
of their demands and expectations, and to improve its
service quality by learning their satisfactory rates. The
Group earnestly complies with laws and regulations
in relation to consumers’ rights such as the “General
Principles of the Civil Law of the PRC”,
Law of the PRC”,

Consumer Rights and Interests”,

“Product Quality
“Law of the PRC on Protection of
“Tort Law of the PRC”,
“Law of PRC on Imported and Exported Commodity
Inspection”, “Advertising Law of the PRC”, “Patent Law
of the PRC”, and Hong Kong’s “Personal Data (Privacy)

Ordinance” and “Trade Descriptions Ordinance”.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group was
not aware of any material non-compliance with any
laws and regulations in relation to privacy issues
and compensation regarding health and safety,
advertisement and labelling on products and service
provided. For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group
was not aware of any products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons, nor receiving

material complaints related to products and service.
Quality Assurance

The quality of the jewellery is one of the key factors
that customers highly concern. The Group has a quality
monitoring requirement and quality control inspection
before the delivery of the products. The Group has
set up a centralized Quality Control Team, which is
responsible for monitoring the entire production process.
The Group performs quality control in each stage,
ensuring the products are with satisfactory quality. We
would have overall inspection in the last stage to ensure
the product is made according to the specification
stated. The Group would also conduct random sample
checking by the experienced professionals on the
finished jewellery products to ensure that it is up to

standard.
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The quality of products is reliable and has been ensured
by different organisations. Hong Kong Jewellers’ and
Goldsmiths’ Association and The Kowloon Pearls,
Precious stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament
Merchants Association have recognised the quality of
our gold products with the “Quality Gold Mark”. Besides,
the Group is also recognized by the Quality Tourism
Services (“QTS”) Scheme of Hong Kong Tourism Board,
as the reliable retail store in Hong Kong. The products
are highly qualified to ensure customers would not
receive products that are substandard to safeguard the

consumers’ right.
Protection of IP Rights

The Group focuses on pioneer innovation in its own
jewellery design. The Group has sufficient and all-
rounded management system for IP. The Group
continuously strengthens the management of
trademark, domain right, designs and trade secrets
in the product development processes. The external
graphic designers, who outsourced for certain product
development stages, would be required to sign an
agreement to acknowledge that the designs produced
during the engagement are the IP of the Group. For
new employees, the Group focuses on training their
awareness of conserving trade secrets. The IP, which
mainly related to the trademark and designs, are well
protected by the Group and it values the intellectual

properties as the important assets of the Group.
Customer Services

The Group would provide after-sales service like
resizing of rings and complimentary cleaning services
to maintain a good relationship with customers. The
Group reviews all complaints from customers, suppliers
and partners in accordance with internal procedures
and guidelines, and appropriate follow-up measures
will be taken. If applicable, the Group will conduct
relevant investigations and generate case reports and
correcting action plans to resolve complaints and make
improvements accordingly. The Group believes that
complaints are good opportunities to get feedback
from the community and customers, so as to assure the

necessity of improving the services and policies.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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B7.

Advertising and Labelling

The Group has adopted a multi-channel advertising
strategy to promote the brand and improve the brand
image. The Group takes care of the advertisement and
labelling issues to ensure that only accurate products’
information would be published. Any misleading
message is prohibited for publishing after the strict

monitoring of the teams of professionals.
Protection of Privacy

The Group recognises the protection of customers’
and partners’ privacy is the key for success. Therefore,
protecting and maintaining customers’ privacy always
remain in the first priority of the Group. Security
measures have established to provide adequate
protection and encryption for all data and information
upon operation. At the same time, the Group has
implemented policies and procedures to the collection

and use of personal data.
Anti-corruption

The Group believes that a clean corporate culture is
the key to its continuous success. Therefore, the Group
stressed on anti-corruption work and system building,
devoted in creating a clean and transparent corporate
culture. It has already developed adequate codes and
provide anti-corruption trainings to ensure all employees
(including directors) adhered to the highest standards of
business, professional and ethical practices. The Group
strictly complies with the requirements under laws and
regulations such as the “Company Law of the PRC”,
“The Tendering and Bidding Law of the PRC”,
Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery”, and Hong

“Interim

Kong’s “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance”.

The Group’s major operation formulated such policies
on the control and prevention of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering between shareholders and
related parties in each business operation and trade

activity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group did
not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering. There is no concluded legal
case regarding corrupt practices brought against the
Company or its employees during the year ended 31
March 2025.

Anti-bribery

The Group has an anti-bribery function, which is
responsible for developing the overall framework of anti-
bribery, fraud and corruption policies and procedures.
It also guides and monitors the implementation of such
policies and procedures in different aspects of the
Group’s operation. Each of the Group’s subsidiaries
will immediately report any suspected bribery, fraud
and corruption to the person in charge of the Group’s
internal control. The internal control advisor was
engaged to perform internal control review on the Group
and determine the appropriate course of actions if

necessary.

The Group fully complies with relevant anti-money
laundering laws. The Group minimises the risk
of establishing relationships with individuals or
organisations involved in money laundering or terrorist
activities through “understanding customers” and

assessment procedures.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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B8.

Community Investment

The Group believes in shouldering the responsibility
of contributing society. As a responsible corporate
citizen, the Group has fulfilled our social responsibilities
by being committed to supporting various charitable
and community activities. The Group hopes to
foster employees’ sense of social responsibility,
thus encouraging them to participate in charitable
activities during their work and spare time to make
greater contributions to the community. The Group
has also encouraged its employees to participate in
environmental and charitable activities, make donations
to assist underprivileged students and engage in social
services. The Group believes that the participation in
activities that repay society can increase its employees’

civic awareness and establish their correct values.
Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group has also joined different chambers of
commerce to support the charity activities. The Group
has become the members of Kowloon Chamber of
Commerce and New Territory Chamber of Commerce
and has supported many of the charity activities to
repay the community. Besides, the Group has also
donated to the Youth Outreach’'s “YO! Let's Walk the
Road” to support the service provided by the Youth
Outreach on rescuing the teenagers who are in needs.
The Group will seek opportunities to identify more
suitable projects and contribute to the community and

environment to bring positive progress to society.
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RIE -HE8KRE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

a8 &

kE

BERBEXSGMERQIAN(RE g
AWMERSDRBRRLIX

Subject Areas, Aspects,

BASEAE UEIR A1 .1

emissions data.

PER R M AR E R -

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
BH - - —REERBARERIER #ut -1 1]
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA1: BB
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to Exhaust Gas and GHG
emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
— R ER BRAERIOREREBYN - mAKR LA | HERY
5 BEMEBZTBERZVNELSTH
(a) HZE: R
(b) BETFHETABEATENHEMEE
KR OIEE RS
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Emissions — Emission Management,

Waste Management
e — BEEIRE  BEEMERE

KPI' A1.2

RS AR AL.2

GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and
intensity.
BERBLRYRE(UNETE) RETE -

Emissions — Emission Management

PR — PR E R

KPI' A1.3

RS IEIR A1.3

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.

MEEBEREEDRE(UEAE) RBE -

Emission — Waste Management
(not applicable — explained)
R — BEERDER(TNER — BERE)

KPI' A1.4

MASERUIEIEA1.4

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.

FEEEEEEYEE UHAE) REE

Emissions — Waste Management

PERy) — R ERE

KPI A1.5

BASEMIEIRA1D

Description of emission targets set and
steps taken to achieve them.
RMFTEI L WEEE B E R AEREE AR
FRERERE 5K o

Emissions — Emission Management,
Waste Management

HE) — BRI EE - ERYMER

KPI A1.6

RARAEMIEIR A6

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled and a
description of reduction targets set and
steps taken to achieve them.

R BRIR A = REEEREY A - R
RIS AYRRE B IR MR E DS L B R P ERELE

Emissions — Waste Management

BERRY) — BEEME IR
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8 R E

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

BE - —RIEERBERERIER

Description
it

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EBHEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources,

including energy, water and other raw

Use of Resources

materials.
— AR ER ARFERER(BERR - KREMEME) | ERER
R o
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Use of Resources — Energy
consumption by type in total and Management
intensity.
RIS IR AR IR A2 RERISWERER SHEEREEER |BRER — RERE
KPI' A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. | Use of Resources — Water Management
R IEIEIR A2.2 BREKEREE ° BERER — KERER
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Use of Resources — Energy

BREBIEIRA2.3

targets set and steps taken to achieve
them.

fet e IRE AN B R R RERE L B IR
PREREY 28R

Management

BRER — elRERE

KPI A2.4

RREBIEIRA2.4

Description of whether there is any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency targets set and steps
taken to achieve them.
FAUSKEGE A 7KR R B A BAKRFR
FI M H KR B AR R A E RS B R PTER
EHY B o

Use of Resources — Water Management

BRER — KERER

KPI A2.5

RARAEMIEIRA2.5

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and with
reference to per unit produced.

SR mA B EEMHNAE (AEE) R E
HEBMNGE -

Use of Resources — Use of Packaging

Materials

BRER — BEMEHER
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RIE -HEBRE

A8 s

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs

—REERBARERER

Description
it

Section/Declaration

i1

EHEA3 : BERRXARER

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

General Disclosure

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment

and natural resources.

The Environment and Natural Resources

RSB MEIR A3 A

activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

R EBEBHRITERRANERNEAZE
MEFREREFATZENTTY -

— M BRAIREHE L RAGRGHBETAEETXE | RIEZTENECE -
HNERREEEEE
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of | The Environment and Natural Resources

— Working Environment

RIENANER — TIERE

Aspect A4: Climate Change
EH A4 : RiIRE{

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may

impact, the issuer.

Climate Change Impacts

RS AE MUEIR A4

related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
BRI GHBETAEETLENER
RIFIERISE - REHTE -

— AR ER BRIREHERLARSHBETAEETE | RIEE(LTE
WERRIRIEEEENBE -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate- Climate Change Impacts

ARBPE
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8 R E

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

BE - —RIEERBERERIER

Description
it

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B1: Employment
EBEB1 : Ef#E

General Disclosure

—RRIEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, antidiscrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

BRFMRERE  BEREA - TERE

BE - 2ok FERE  REBARHEA

@ RN

(a) BX: Rk

(b) BETFHETABEATENEMERE
KRG ERL -

Employment

(=

KPI B1.1

FASE A ME1R B1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical
region.

IR - EIEEE - Fhodnl iR E 5
BEHEE -

Employment

(=

KPI B1.2

BARAEMIEIRB1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age

group and geographical region.

RIER - FRAR RILESI D MERMKL

Employment

B
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a8 &

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs

BE - —REERBERERIER

Description

E:pus

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: REHEZE

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  Anti-corruption compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

BRRM L 2 TERE RMRIERE S B RBE

HEER

(a) BX: Rk

(b) ETFHBITABEAZENMEBEE
KRB E RS

Health and Safety

KPI B2.1

R E IR B2.1

Number and rate of work-related fatalities
occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year.
BEIF(BEERFE)FFRETEBRM
SR AB LR o

Health and Safety

[EE e

B E MR B2.3

safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.

R T ER A B R (R B 2 2 15 - DA KRR
BT RERAE -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
BB RUIETR B2.2 EITEEATIERS - ERET S
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and Health and Safety
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

—RILERBERERIER

Description

E:pus

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EmEB3 : HERIEZI

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging duties

at work. Description of training activities.

Development and Training

— M FRRAREBITIERENMH LA | &R EET
R - HEFINES
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Development and Training

BASAE ST B3.1

by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle
management).
RUEBIREESEN(NERERE « PRE
BEZ)EINTIEETIL

KPI B3.2

BASRAE 51T B3.2

The average training hours completed

per employee by gender and employee

category.

RIERREERFE D - BRESTHZI
H S RF 8L o

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
EmEB4 : & T%H|

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced

Labour Standards

labour.
— AR ER BRADI IEE Takaa g5 TH) 25 T8
(a) BXR: &
(b) HETFHETABEATENEMEE
KRB E RS
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Labour Standards

BASEAEME1R B4.1

employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

st i T R AR B I eV FE e LA SR B T R 5
BT o

& TR

KPI B4.2

FASRAENIEIE B4.2

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.

fie s A2 35 BB AR B UL AS HER B B B L P ERER
R o

Labour Standards

T2
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs

BE - —REERBERERIER

Description

E:pus

Section/Declaration

i1

BEBS : fEEERE

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and

social risks of the supply chain.

Supply Chain Management

BASEAE 451 B5.1

region.

@S D HEREE -

— R ER ERHEENRE R GRERBUR - HrEEER
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Supply Chain Management

R 2

KPI B5.2

BASEAEMIEIR B5.2

Description of practices relating

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored.

fi 5 RS A AR A S B - mEHITHRE
B HEREE - ARBRELINHMITR
BERTIEK -

Supply Chain Management

HiEsEEE

KPI B5.3

B E M IE1E B5.3

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along

the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

it G B B B IR IRIE R
BV EH - ARMBRBERITRER A -

Supply Chain Management

it gt

KPI B5.4

M MIEIRE B5 .4

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products

and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and
monitored.

Fir AR PR R R 8 2 R BRAREE mm S IR
BEED - URBBERITRERTE -

Supply Chain Management

HreEes
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

BE - —RIEERBERERIER

Description
it

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating

to products and services provided and

methods of redress.

BRFREERTRBOERELZS &

& BEERLEEEARBR A AR

(a) BX: Rk

(b) ETFHBTABEAZENEBEE
KRB ERL

Product Responsibility

KPI B6.1

BASEAE 51 B6. 1

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.
EEREEXEmBET AR 2 BERIEH
MmZE B EI B 7L, o

Product Responsibility

EmAfE

KPI B6.2

RASR A 515 B6.2

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

BRI E fm M RIS VAR R B B A R B 75
% e

Product Responsibility

EmEF

KPI B6.3

RSB MIEIE B6.3

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

Fie st B A o N (RIS AR E B R RVIE I -

Product Responsibility

EmAE

KPI B6.4

FASRAEMIEIR B6.4

Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures.
fie it & BT B2 R E m B AEFF -

Product Responsibility

EmAE

KPI B6.5

FASERUEIR B6.5

Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.

it B & B RHMRIE RALRBUR - PARABRE
MITRERTIE °

Product Responsibility
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a8 &

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs

BE - —REERBERERIER

Description

E:pus

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EmEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering.

Anti-corruption

FASE A M HE1R B7 .1

regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERPAHEHTAIEESROTEFE
BT FARMHIEIE RAFARER o

— MR BRI IEFRER - B - BGFROERER R&=
(a) BX: R
(b) BEFHBTABEAZENEBEE
KRB E RS
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Anti-corruption

k&S

KPI B7.2

FASRERUETR B7 2

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

fe st [y B i SR R EAE T - A RAMBBIAT
BERTIEK -

Anti-corruption

REF

KPI B7.3

RS 515 B7.3

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.
futmEE R 8 TRENREFE -

Development and Training

R A
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

BE - —RIEERBERERIER

Description
it

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEB8 : #HERE

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the

communities’ interests.

Community Investment

— MR EE AR R2EREBEREEMELRBFEN |EEKRE
BREEBZHEE BiEFEOEE o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. Community Investment

RAS A 515 B8 1

education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
EIERER(NHE  BRFH HI1FH
k@R 3k BE) -

HEIRE

KPI B8.2

RS AE 215 B8 .2

Resources contributed (e.g. money or
time) to the focus area.
EFEIHREMBAER(NSEFFR) °

Community Investment

HERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHBERE

Q Grant Thornton
- EE

To the members of Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings

Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chong
Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 108 to 215, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2025, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting

policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURHEARE

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) as issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”). We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional judgment,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on this matter.

Key audit matter

BRETEE

ERpER

EEORBEEESHMASRABOTERALER
(IBFRBFEADETET - BEFEXFER
THRENEFCEARSZBRERETZEM
BHRJAENRE IO FEE TR - RIE
ARG ASBRMNEXSFEERTA( T
1)) EFBURN BEEE - XCETTATH
HiEREREE - EFHE  SEMESHE
FAHREREAD MNEEMAEETNETEREHRE

it o

REESEE

FRETFEERBEESFNEERHE - RAHAN
MG AR BREANEITR/ERNER - LR
HARAEBSETBEEFAMBHRRREASTRRE
ETRIEN - B HELFERERERENE
=

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EENETNAIREEEREE

FEEE
ERAE I EIREMNE3.8 4K 18

Valuation of inventories
Refer to notes 3.8, 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial

Statements

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of inventories Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of

was HK$66,577,000, net of provision for inventories of inventories included the followings:

1 1 [o)
HK$4,910,000, representing approximately 48% of the = R (A R R T

Group’s total assets.

. . e obtained an understanding of the Group’s process and
720253 A31H - FHE R EREE /& 66,577,0008 7T (H]

el g control over the valuation of inventories;
FRIFERE4,910,000/870) 15 EEBMBEEN48% °

T EREHEFE[ENEFRIES

e understood how management identifies slow-moving
inventories and management’'s process in monitoring
the quality of work of the independent professional
gemologist appointed;

THREEBNABNFHEERBERTZSE  URE
BEEAREREB U EXEAEEMI(FERNER
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
EENETNARERRESEE
FEEE — &

Key audit matter

BRENSEE
Valuation of inventories (Continued)
Refer to notes 3.8, 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial ERA A BREN 38 4% 18

102

Statements

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, in estimating the amount of provision
on inventories, it is the Group’s policy to review the
net realisable values of inventories periodically with
reference to current market condition and the historical
experience in selling goods of similar nature. The
Group’s management reviewed, on a regular basis, the
suitability of its inventory provision policy and has applied
the policy consistently. The Group’s management also
reviewed, on a regular basis, the inventory ageing list to
identify any slow-moving inventories and estimated the
amount of provision primarily based on the pricing policy
and strategies and the historical experience in selling
goods of similar nature. The Group also engaged an
independent professional gemologist to perform valuation
and assess the conditions of certain items based on
gemstone testing for gem-set jewellery products with
reference to international diamond prices, its expertise

and the current market situation.

WAAR G MR 4P E A FERBENS
ERENBRR2RERTAREELERUNE R BE
EREEEE T Sma
HIFEREIRNEET  YEL—BEAFERE - &
SEEEETTHRMERBE - AREMFHEFS  Lx
BB KR KRBT HE B RIS RERERT
BB - 1o EEEMEREB L EFIRE & TR0 AE
IfhE  T2REREAER  EFEEMBRRETOR - H
KRB SR H N E QRBETHENTZE TEENMRR

Accordingly, we identified the valuation of inventories as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined
with the judgments associated with determining the amount

of provision on inventories.

Hit - ERESRE GV BERRNEBERZEUANEEFE
RETENERAE  FENEERGE SBEREASFE -

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

assessed the appropriateness of provision on
inventories made by management and the accuracy of
the net realisable values by comparing the subsequent
selling prices of similar products less estimated costs
to be incurred for completion and disposal, to their

carrying amounts on a sample basis;

AHEEREMEFERENSENL - WEBKEREL
EmrHEBERRMAT TR EBEEN B ERAEERK
EEFL LR - R o A SRR E A R

evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent professional gemologist and
obtained an understanding of the scope of work and

the terms of engagement;

AEBUEXEAETMNER eI RFEILE X7
AT HEREREENRBHER

understood the valuation process carried out by the
independent professional gemologist on selected
jewellery items and checked the carrying amounts
of selected jewellery items to the jewellery appraisal
report to test that these items were recorded at lower

of cost and net realisable value;

THRB BEE O E TR R E E TR AERE
Fo iR EHRE e e R E AR E (A ERE ST
¥ BURIE S B iR A AR R AT B IR E R & R R BUR
ENER
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Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRETEE EENETNAEREAREE
Valuation of inventories (Continued) FEGE — &

Refer to notes 3.8, 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial & 2474 BIFEHRZN7+3.8 4% 18
statements

e attended the annual physical inventory count at
year end date with assistance of an independent
professional gemologist engaged by us to compare
the net realisable values of selected jewellery items

held by the Group with their costs;

ERRMEROBIEERESROBH T - NERHE
SREEENERRY - (THARESTORERE
6 8560 AT B E R A AL ¢

e checked the accuracy of the inventory ageing list, on
a sample basis, by tracing to the invoices and delivery

documents; and
FRBEERRRINM  EREFEREH ERE
"R

e assessed the reasonableness of provision on identified
slow-moving non-diamond gem-set jewellery products

by checking the ageing profile, historical sales pattern
and the subsequent sales of these inventories.

FRRETARAR  BEHERARERZSFEERH
& A HBI AR ENIFECE R RRIREER °
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
2024/2025 annual report of the Company, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,

or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagements and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

BREMMEBET G BRRAIENET
EZENER  RUHGEMBRREEEEMFE

=) k:’ﬁi%:ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁzﬁﬁéﬁﬁEﬁﬁ%}iﬂﬂﬁ.:lE
tReE - WIRIRE FATIHE MR IS R E R 2 8 AX
RHEABEESEROZBENRE - BRILASN
EENHRE N REEMAR - EELTRAR
FZABHEMEMBALTE ESEESE -

BEABIRKFNRE - BETERERRBER
BT EAETNET  EX - BEAERRATHE
R ABREZEIR o SR RRMRAM AT A B ERF Sk R BR 5 -
IMRAERHACHEBREMLRALTERE
PR E R E KBRS M EHRAEHDOLHE
RTE - AIB BRI AR EE K ©
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o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

° plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis
for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of
the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

106 CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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From the matter communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine the matter that was of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
is therefore the key audit matter. We describe this matter in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11" Floor, Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong SAR

30 June 2025

Lam Wai Ping
Practising Certificate No.: P07826
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEeRaRkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2025 # % 20254 3 A 31 H L F &

OTHER

2025 2024
2025 F 2024 &
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Htat FET FET
Revenue g 5] 134,678 142,274
Cost of goods sold B &R mA A (98,057) (103,091)
Gross profit ER 36,621 39,183
Other income H A A 6 970 688
Other gains/(losses), net Hib Wz (BE)F5E 7 502 (498)
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SHAAR (19,131) (20,366)
General and administrative — R RATE R X
expenses (15,270) (15,804)
Finance costs B 76 B AR 8 (1,018) (1,249)
Share of losses of associates LB E N E 2 BE (1,327) (102)
Profit before income tax BREE AR R 9 1,347 1,852
Income tax expense TS i = 12 (847) (260)
Profit for the year FRER 500 1,592
Other comprehensive expense FREMZEBAX
for the year
Item that may be reclassified HERGEE IR
subsequently to profit or loss: Bamh)HEE
Exchange difference arising on HE HNG FE TS EE A R E K
translation of a foreign operation =7 (75) (933)
Item that will not be reclassified ERTeREmosBEBan
subsequently to profit or loss: #IE H
Actuarial (losses)/gains on long RORBEREENREE
service payment obligations (B518) e 26 (40) 69
Other comprehensive expense for FAHMEEMASE -
the year, net of income tax R FTS i 1& (115) (864)
Total comprehensive income FREMBAHAE
for the year 385 728
(Restated)
(R&E A1)
Earnings per share BREF
Basic and diluted (HK cents) FLR R 58 (B AL 10 0.24 1.96

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A MR R R

As at 31 March 2025 7 20254 3 A 31 H

2025 2024
2025 F 2024 4

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt FET FEIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB R&E 14 15,069 13,530
Interests in associates REEE QA 2 iEm 15 14,981 17,322
Deferred tax assets EERIBE B 17 4,681 5,528
Other receivables A fiE U 5118 19 1,338 704
36,069 37,084
Current assets REBEE
Inventories & 18 66,577 62,890
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk EH fb fE U FRIE 19 4,617 5,151
Financial assets at fair value BAFEF ABZRD
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) TREE 16 1,613 1,844
Bank balances and cash WITHEBREIRS 20 31,229 11,159
104,036 81,044
Current liabilities =
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAER A 21 5,480 6,171
Contract liabilities AHAaE 22 6,035 5,882
Refund liabilities BREE 23 334 444
Lease liabilities HEARE 24 7,008 7,769
Bank borrowings RITIER 25 16,513 22,799
Long service payment obligations RERBEEE 26 4 11
35,374 43,076
Net current assets REBEEFE 68,662 37,968
Total assets less current liabilities BE&ERASHAE 104,731 75,052
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 24 6,642 3,433
Long service payment obligations RERBEE 26 892 695
7,534 4,128
Net assets EEFE 97,197 70,924
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B AR R R

As at 31 March 2025 72025 3 A 31 H

2025 2024
2025 £ 2024
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt FET FEIT

Capital and reserves BEARRGHE
Share capital N 27 30,000 7,500
Reserves & 67,197 63,424
Total equity e 97,197 70,924

Fu Chun Keung
fEiER
Director

EZE

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Cheung Lai Yuk
REE
Director

EF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEmBBR

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

Shares
held for
the Share
Share Share Award Other Exchange Retained
capital premium* Scheme* reserve* reserve* profits* Total

HR 5

#0
R \
BE  RGEE 2RO EUEE  EXEE  REEA i
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
Far  FEr AT FEr  FEr  FET  FAT

(note 27) (note 29) (note)
(KizE27) (Krit29) (Hiit)
As at 1 April 2023 K2023F481H 7,500 35,242 (753) 20,489 (1,8086) 9,524 70,196
Profit for the year F AT - - - - - 1,592 1,592
Other comprehensive FRAMEERT -
expense for the year:
Exchange difference MBI TS A A

arising on translation BE =R

of a foreign operation - - - - (933) - (933)
Actuarial gains on long ~ REIR®E S EEH

service payment BE

obligations (note 26) (KizE26) - = = = E 69 69
Total comprehensive FHEERABE

income for the year = - = = (933) 1,661 728
As at 31 March 2024 and 720243318 %

1 April 2024 2024F 4 F1H 7,500 35,242 (753) 20,489 (2,739) 11,185 70,924
Profit for the year FR%EF - - - - - 500 500
Other comprehensive FREMPEAZ

expense for the year:

Exchange difference MBIV TS R A

arising on translation BE S EH

of a foreign operation - - = = (75) = (75)
Actuarial losses on REORBEEEN

long service payment REEE

obligations (note 26) (BizE26) - - - = - (40) (40)
Total comprehensive FREERALZE

income for the year - - - - (75) 460 385

Issuance of shares upon 1T
rights issue (note 27) (fiizro7) 22,500 4,500 - - - - 27,000
Share issuance cost of  HEEKRHBEITHA

rights issue (note 27) (Kizx27) - (1,112) - - - = (1,112)
Transactions with owners E#A AETHR S 22,500 3,388 - - - - 25,888
As at 31 March 2025 R2025F3 5 31H 30,000 38,630 (753) 20,489 (2,814) 11,645 97,197
* The reserves accounts comprise the Group’s reserves of . ZERERREAERNERE B RNER T B
HK$67,197,000 (2024: HK$63,424,000) in the consolidated statement #567,197,0007% 70 (2024 £ : 63,424,000/ T ) °
of financial position.

Note: Other reserve represents the difference between paid-in capital and Biit - EtEEREEEERAELEZ AR R B KRR AREE 3
issued share capital of the Company arising from group reorganisation. TERAZEZER -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SERETMER

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

2025 2024
2025 £ 2024 F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HteE FET FAET
Cash flows from operating RETRIEEN
activities HERE
Profit before income tax B A5 B g A 1,347 1,852
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation on property, plant and  #% - BE M REFTE
equipment 14 9,235 9,429
Write-down of inventories to net 177 B MR = Al SR E
realisable value 18 497 152
Reversal of provision for expected B EWGEESREE
credit losses (“ECL”) allowance of E5 18 O]
trade receivables 19 9) (2)
Fair value (gains)/losses on financial &R FEF ABZRA
assets at FVTPL, net TRIEENQTE
(Wz) /B85 7 (282) 26
(Gains)/Losses on disposal of HERAFET ABEDN
financial assets at FVTPL, net SHMEEMN(WRER),EE 7 (151) 583
Interest expenses FEMS 1,018 1,249
Interest and dividend income B K B B A (438) (195)
Share of losses of associates FEAGESE & R B 2 518 1,327 102
Unrealised foreign exchange NI I R
realignment (3) (866)
Expenses recognised in profit or RHRBEEEERERT
loss for long service payment RN EH
obligations 26 150 259
Operating cash flows before working “:E& & &AL E
capital changes Behe 12,691 12,589
Decrease in financial assets at RATE ABES
FVTPL LREERD 664 613
Increase in inventories FEIE M (4,184) (4,058)
Decrease in trade and other B 5 I Ho A fE W R IR
receivables 923 610
Decrease in trade and other B 5 & E At FE A~ FRIE R
payables (691) (24)
Increase in contract liabilities A HREEEN 153 980
Decrease in refund liabilities RRBERD (110) (19)
Net cash generated from operating  &&/EBELRR S FEE
activities 9,446 10,691

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

2025 2024
2025 F 2024 4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HteE FET FEIT
Cash flows from investing RETHREFKE
activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE  BERLRE
equipment 14 - (21)
Interest and dividend received B B &R E i 438 195
Net cash generated from investing REEBELENREFRE
activities 438 174
Cash flows from financing AMEETHRERE
activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares AT ITAIRE TS FIE
upon rights issue 27 27,000 -
Share issuance costs of rights issue #HAZAIEEITAA 27 (1,112) _
Repayments of bank borrowings BEERITER 31 (6,286) (6,057)
Repayment of amount due to 1832 e {~F 2 B B B 2l
controlling shareholder 31 - (5,000)
Payment of lease liabilities HEBERNR 31 (8,326) (7,990)
Interests paid [ERNENY 8 (1,018) (1,249)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEBEL (TR
financing activities BReHEE 10,258 (20,296)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HeRELEEY
and cash equivalents B, ORd)EE 20,142 (9,431)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FREMBECEEY
beginning of the year 11,159 20,657
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEFE R FEh i 8
changes (72) (67)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FXEERELZEY
end of the year 20 31,229 11,159
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a
public limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of
the registered office of the Company is PO Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman lIslands and the
principal place of business of the Company is at No. 6-13
Faerie Court, 80 Ko Shan Road, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company of the Company is Mythe Group Holdings Company
Limited (“Mythe”) which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Fu Chun
Keung (“Mr. Fu”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set

out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2025 were approved for issue by the board of directors
on 30 June 2025.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

2.1

Amended HKFRS Accounting Standards that are
effective for annual periods beginning on 1 April
2024

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following amended HKFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are
relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual

period beginning on 1 April 2024:

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and

HKFRS 16 Leaseback
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current and

related amendments to Hong

Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with
HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS

7 and HKFRS 7

Covenants
Supplier Finance

Arrangements

The adoption of the amended HKFRS Accounting
Standards had no material impact on how the results
and financial position for the current and prior periods

have been prepared and presented.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRS 2. HERMFITIRKBITEBMBEREE
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS - continued Rlgst &Rl — &
2.2 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting 22 EHEMGEMKRERZEBHMERS

Standards ZRAlE %R

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated REEEMBRREEEZR A%

financial statements, certain new and amended HKFRS B 3 £ 12 F A E T B B E R

Accounting Standards have been published but are not ERBFE] KRBT BB BRE

yet effective and have not been adopted early by the ER|@ R o

Group.

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in EEMBEREER  WBRRNEINNRE

Financial Statements® F185 7’
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public BEAMBREERL  FRAXFREHM
Accountability: Disclosures® E 195 BLF: BE®

Amendments to Amendments to the ERMBRERN SRIANEKTE
HKFRS 9 and Classification and EORREAME MBI
HKFRS 7 Measurement of Financial SRR 75

Instruments® CHES)

Amendments to Contracts Referencing Nature- ERUBREER  FRIKBEARERE
HKFRS 9 and dependent Electricity? FORLERHE  ETANAL’
HKFRS 7 EERIFT5R

CHES)

Amendments to HKFRS Sale or Contribution of Assets AEMBEREEL  REEEHEBENG

10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FI0HRRERE HEE DA
Associate or Joint Venture® SHERIZE 28 57 BEHERZAN"
CHES)

Amendments to Lack of Exchangeability 1 EEeEd i el B L
HKAS 21 ERALACHEY

Amendments to Annual Improvements BEUBREEN S BFEMERSENS
HKFRS Accounting to HKFRS Accounting SR (B ETA) SR FEE
Standards Standards - Volume 11? —F1E°

Amendments to Hong  Presentation of Financial BHRBESTR BHREOZT] —
Kong Interpretation 5 Statements — Classification (B3I A) ERAL B E R

by the Borrower of a kK ERER KT
Term Loan that Contains EHEFRHNAE®

a Repayment on Demand

Clause®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS - continued

2.2

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards - continued

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2025

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2026

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2027

Effective date not yet determined

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for
the first period beginning on or after the effective date
of the pronouncement. The new and amended HKFRS
Accounting Standards are not expected to have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation and presentation

These annual consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the HKICPA, which
collective term includes all applicable individual
HKFRS accounting standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations (“HKFRS Accounting
Standards”) and the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. The consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and include the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

The material accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new and
amended HKFRS Accounting Standards and the impacts
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements, if any,

are disclosed in note 2.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
assets at FVTPL (see note 3.6) that are measured
at fair values at the end of the reporting period.
The measurement bases are fully described in the

accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgment of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R T E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.2

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries

made up to 31 March each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power over the entity, only
substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the

Group and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements from
the date it gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised losses on sales of
intra-group asset are reversed on consolidation, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the
Group’s perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting

policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net

identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MR AR R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.2

Basis of consolidation — continued

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners of the

Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the

subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of

investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the end of the reporting period. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R T E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.3

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence, which is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control of those

policies.

In consolidated financial statements, investments
in associates are initially recognised at cost and
subsequently accounted for using the equity method.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the
carrying amount of the investment and is assessed
for impairment as part of the investment. The cost
of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable

to the investment.

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in
the associate is carried at cost and adjusted for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
associate’s net assets less any identified impairment
loss, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
The profit or loss for the year includes the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associate
for the year, including any impairment loss on the

investment in associate recognised for the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.3

Associates — continued

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Where unrealised
losses on assets sales between the Group and its
associate are reversed on equity accounting, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from
the Group’s perspective. Where the associate uses
accounting policies other than those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
adjustments are made, where necessary, to conform the
associate’s accounting policies to those of the Group
when the associate’s financial statements are used by
the Group in applying the equity method.

When the Group’s share of losses in associates equal or
exceed its interests in the associates, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s interest
in the associate is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s other
long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate, after applying
the ECL model to such other long-term interests where

applicable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.3

Associates — continued

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment
in its associate. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group determines whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in associate is impaired. If
such indications are identified, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as being the difference between
the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) of the associate and its
carrying amount. In determining the value in use of the
investment, the Group estimates its share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associate, including cash flows arising
from the operations of the associate and the proceeds

on ultimate disposal of the investment.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from
the date when it ceases to have significant influence
over an associate. The difference between (i) the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part interest in the associate; and (ii) the
carrying amount of the investment at the date the equity
method was discontinued, is recognised in the profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MR AR R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.4

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (HK$), which is also the functional

currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the end of the reporting period retranslation of
monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit

or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated (i.e. only translated using the exchange

rates at the transaction date).

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into Hong
Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the end
of the reporting period. Income and expenses have
been converted into the Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the exchange reserve in
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R T E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses (see note 3.16), if any. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment (other than right-
of-use assets) comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its
working condition for its intended use. The cost of right-
of-use assets are determined in accordance with note
3.11.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using

straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term
or 25% per annum,

whichever is the shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 30%

Machinery 20%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
Accounting policy for depreciation of right-of-use assets

is set out in note 3.11.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.6

Financial instruments
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or when the financial asset and substantially all of its
risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged,

cancelled or expires.
Financial assets
Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

Except for those receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component and are measured at
the transaction price in accordance with HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (“HKFRS 15”),
all financial assets are initially measured at fair value, in
case of a financial asset not at FVTPL, plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets

carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified into amortised cost or
FVTPL.

The classification is determined by both:

- the entity’s business model for managing the

financial asset; and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the

financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets
that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within
finance costs, general and administrative expenses,

other income or other gains/(losses), net.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)

B 5 ¥ R MY RE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.6

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

- they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and collect

its contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in “other income”
in profit or loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect

of discounting is immaterial.

The Group’s bank balances and cash and trade and
other receivables fall into this category of financial

instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES — continued
3.6 Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Subsequent measurement of financial assets —

continued

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established. Dividends from

investments in equity securities are recognised in profit

or loss as “other income”.

Financial liabilities

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank borrowings,
lease liabilities and trade and other payables. They

are separately shown on the face of the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable,

adjusted for transaction costs unless the Group

designated a financial liability at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.6

Financial instruments — continued
Financial liabilities — continued

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities —

continued

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease
liabilities) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method except for derivatives which
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships and financial liabilities designated at
FVTPL, which are carried subsequently at fair value with

gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes
in an instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit or

loss are included within finance costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in note
3.11.

Bank borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the end of

the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

They are recognised initially at their fair values and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES — continued

3.7 Impairment of financial assets

The impairment requirements of HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) use forward-looking
information to recognise ECL - the “ECL model”.
Instruments within the scope included loans and other

debt-type financial assets measured at amortised cost

and trade receivables.

The Group considers a broader range of information
when assessing credit risk and measuring ECL,
including historical credit loss experience adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the

current conditions at the end of the reporting period as

well as the forecast of future conditions.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction

is made between:

- financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial

recognition or that have low credit risk (“Stage 1”);

and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial

recognition and whose credit risk is not low

(“Stage 2”).

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have

objective evidence of impairment at the end of the

reporting period.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1 category

while “lifetime ECL” are recognised for the Stage 2

category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life

of the financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.7

Impairment of financial assets — continued
Trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL and recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at the end of each
reporting period. These are the expected shortfalls in
contractual cash flows, considering the potential for
default at any point during the life of the financial assets.
In calculating the ECL, the Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience and external indicators, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been

grouped on the following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s

trade receivables are assessed as a separate

group);
. Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share

similar credit risk characteristics.
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for other
receivables equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increase in
the likelihood of risk of default occurring since initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES — continued

3.7 Impairment of financial assets — continued

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost —

continued

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
assets at the end of the reporting period with the risk of
default occurring on the financial assets at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical

experience and forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into

account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase

in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices

for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected

to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’'s

ability to meet its debt obligations;

= an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a

significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R T E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.7

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost —

continued

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
end of each reporting period. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if it has a low risk of
default, the borrower has strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and
adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a financial asset
to have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally

understood definition.

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when there is a
breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or
when (i) information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collateral held by the
Group) or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables and other financial assets measured at

amortised cost are set out in note 35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MR AR R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.8

3.9

3.10

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted
average method for gold jewellery products and specific
identification basis for other jewellery products. Net
realisable values represent the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion

and costs necessary to make the sale.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding

receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a

net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R T E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.11 Leases

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers whether
a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as
“a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right
to use an identified asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration”. To apply
this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract

meets three key evaluations which are whether:

o the contract contains an identified asset, which
is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the time

the asset is made available to the Group;

o the Group has the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering
its rights within the defined scope of the contract;

and

o the Group has the right to direct the use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Group assess whether it has the right to direct
‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used

throughout the period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease and non-lease component on the basis of

their relative stand-alone prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MR AR R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.11 Leases — continued

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee —

continued
Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The right-
of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of
the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial
direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset at
the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in
advance of the lease commencement date (net of any

lease incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-
use asset or the end of the lease term unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership at the end of
the lease term. The Group also assesses the right-of-

use asset for impairment when such indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate
(“IBR”).

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable payments based on an index or
rate, and amounts expected to be payable under a

residual value guarantee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R T E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.11 Leases — continued

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee —

continued

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee —

continued

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be
reduced for lease payments made and increased for
interest cost on the lease liability. It is remeasured to
reflect any lease modification, or if there are changes
in in-substance fixed payments. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expense in profit or loss in the period on
which the event or condition that triggers the payment

occurs.

For lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of modification. The
only exception is any rent concessions which arose as
a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic and
which satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of HKFRS 16 “Leases”. In such cases, the Group
took advantage of the practical expedient set out in
paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change

in consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit
or loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to

Zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases
using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising
a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these leases are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of

12 months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MR AR R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.11

Leases — continued

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee —

continued

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee —

continued

On the consolidated statement of financial position,
right-of-use assets have been included in “property,

plant and equipment”.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included

in the cost of right-of-use assets.
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of

the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting

period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless

the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE R

I 75 3R MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.13

3.14

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity attributable
to the equity holders. The amount of the share capital
recognised is recognised using the nominal value and
any related transaction costs are deducted from the

share premium.
Revenue recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the sales of jewellery

products.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group

follows a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer
2. Identifying the performance obligations
8. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance

obligations

8, Recognising revenue when/as performance

obligation(s) are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is
allocated amongst the various performance obligations
based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The
transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts

collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over
time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or

services to its customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES — continued

3.14 Revenue recognition — continued

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant

performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances

an asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the

Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time

when the customer obtains control of the distinct good

or service.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

Sales of jewellery products and recycled gold

products

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
jewellery products and recycled gold products are

delivered to the customers and the respective control

has been passed.

Provision of jewelcrafting services

The revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

jewelcrafting services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

B 5 ¥ R MY RE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.14

3.15

Revenue recognition — continued
Refund liabilities

The Group would estimate the sales return at the time
of sale at a portfolio level (expected value method)
based on its historical experience and recognise a
refund liability if the Group expects to refund some or
all of the consideration received from customers. When
customers exercise their right to recover the product,
the Group recognised “right of return assets” included
in “trade and other receivables” and a corresponding

adjustment to cost of goods sold.
Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive

payment is established.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis
using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying

amount of the asset.
Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions. Government grants are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that the grants

are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to income is presented

in gross under “other income” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MR AR R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.16 Impairment on non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets), interests in associates and the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries are subject to impairment

testing.

All assets are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be

recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of

time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Corporate assets are allocated
to individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and

consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R T E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.16

3.17

Impairment on non-financial assets — continued

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units
is charged pro rata to the assets in the cash-generating
units, except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less cost of

disposal, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss

had been recognised.
Employee benefits
Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans. In addition, the employees
employed under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
are also entitled to long service payment (“LSP”) if the
eligibility criteria are met. The LSP is a defined benefit

plan.
Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit plan under the MPF Schemes Ordinance, for all
of its employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme, and the state-managed retirement benefit
scheme in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the

employees’ basic salaries.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as employees render services during the year. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited to the

fixed percentage contributions payable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES — continued
3.17 Employee benefits — continued

Defined benefit plan

The amount of long service benefit that an employee
will receive on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances is defined by reference to the employee’s
length of service and corresponding salary. The legal

obligations for any benefits remain with the Group.

The LSP obligations recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position is the present value of the
LSP obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Management estimates the LSP obligations annually.
This is based on the discount rate, the salary growth
rate, turnover rate and the expected investment return
on offsetable MPF accrued benefits. Discount factors
are determined close to the end of each annual
reporting period by reference to high quality corporate
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which
the benefits will be paid and have terms to maturity

approximating the terms of the related defined benefit

liability.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

- service cost (including current and past service

cost, and gains and losses on curtailments and

settlements);
= net interest expense or income; and

= remeasurement.

Service cost on the Group’s defined benefit plan is
included in employee benefits expenses. Employee
contributions, all of which are independent of the

number of years of service, are treated as a reduction of

service cost.

Net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability

is included in employee benefits expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.17 Employee benefits — continued

Defined benefit plan — continued

Gains and losses resulting from remeasurements of the
net defined benefit liability, comprising actuarial gains
and losses, are included in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent

periods.
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS Accounting Standards
require or permit the inclusion of the benefit in the cost

of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries) after deducting

any amount already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I 75 8 & MY &

R a B

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.18

3.19

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.
Taxation
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a

component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available
to be carried forward as well as other unused tax
credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit, including existing taxable temporary differences,
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits

can be utilised.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

3.

EXRSTHRBE — 2

3.18

3.19

BB A

T 7 1 BB ZS 70 A HA ) A 18 2 T
2,

HiE

PSR AR MR R KRR IR -

MEMMmEHREER /XA ERER
MEHERARICBERESHEE
28 i 7 ¥R & B R i RS2 H B (K
FR-ZE2BNREBEFAERK
BEAMZEESEHRERANTRER
BOARE - NHRIBEERAGBHN
PRE BB NIEEAERRTIARX

W—&D -

BIETRIA TN R E MARP B HK
NEEERARREEELFERNE
RNEREZREERABETE - &
ERBBRE-REUFTBEERNY
REBEER  BENBEERME
ANBREREZE  JEBHEAER
AREMARBERRBEDHER - HE
e B RRABEN(BHERA R
AR ERER) AMEHE AR ERZ
7 AERMEEEMARERRE
HemBERRR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R T E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.19 Taxation — continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss and does not give rise to equal

taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
the requirements in HKAS 12 to the lease liabilities and
the related assets separately. The Group recognises
a deferred tax asset related to the lease liabilities to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised and a deferred tax liability for

all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the

reporting period.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income

or directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MR AR R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.19 Taxation — continued

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are

presented in net if, and only if,

(a)

(b)

the Group has the legally enforceable right to set

off the recognised amounts; and

intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a)

the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities;

and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority on either:
(i) the same taxable entity; or

(iiy  different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are

expected to be settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 REZ= 202543 A 31 HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 3. BEASHBEHE —#
POLICIES — continued
3.20 Related parties 3.20 EAEETT
For the purposes of these consolidated financial MZESRAPBRRMS  WFE
statements, a party is considered to be related to the ATIER - MTFALT &R FER
Group if; SEEREE -
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that (a) MHRFENATER Bz ALk
person’s family and if that person: ZATHERERNEE S
Bt
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; (i) = 3k R 4E Bl AR &
H
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEEBESEAZE
7K
(i) is a member of the key management (i) AAKEEXAEEFR
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the AMEEERENKE -
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MR AR R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.20 Related parties — continued

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following

conditions applies:

(0

(if)

(iiif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the

same group.

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the

parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R T E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities,

are described below.

At T REMN EERIR

£ FE PP FE 3 P A O A 5% B & B UK
ARAESRRBEEEREMIREENE
ENAENREEELDHE SRR
& ZFHARBERRIBRBBELR
RS SHEENECRREL - BRER
AIRER BIMRZ F(hAT

ZEHFRBERRESEEER - I
SEHEEHETIERTR - MERTEREETT
BRI EIME - AERT SRt AR S EZ I E
R eI EE BRI - Al
{EET B N R SR A R R o

THRRBERRBREARAREZERR KM
THEEMEMNEMERRIR - ERRLE
TR B PR T (B A A 7R £ Hh K B B O
EXER -

Valuation of inventories FEMRE
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable FEEKAEIEE FERETHREE
value. Net realisable values of inventories are based on PR - FEABIFEDENGTEER

estimated selling prices less any estimation costs to be
incurred for completion and disposal. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical

experience in selling goods of similar nature.

The Group’s management reviewed, on a regular basis, the
suitability of its inventory provision policy and has applied the
policy consistently. The Group’s management also reviewed,
on a regular basis, the inventory ageing list to identify
any slow-moving inventories and estimated the amount of
provision primarily based on the pricing policy and strategies
and the historical experience in selling goods of similar
nature. The Group also engaged an independent professional
gemologist to perform valuation and assess the conditions of
certain items based on gemstone testing for gem-set jewellery
products with reference to international diamond prices, its

expertise and the current market situation.

TR R EEEMNERMGERAE o ZEF M
ANEREMMAMEEEEREERK
BELRRAETT ©

AEEEEEEHRTEFERERRY
BEN YR -BRMABHEBER - A%
BERENEMBREEREE - HRER
WHEE  TETRREBBERKLERIAR
BEHEBRUEEEmOERBMEBE
SR WH ARENLTBEBIEXRE
EERMAETHE  T2RERERE
% HEXRMBRBETN - HIREHER
BEMNELQARETHEATEETER
AR ©
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY — continued

Valuation of inventories — continued

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of inventories
was HK$66,577,000, net of provision for inventories of
HK$4,910,000 (2024: HK$62,890,000, net of provision for
inventories of HK$4,413,000) (note 18).

Leases — Estimation of IBR

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, therefore, it uses its IBR to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to
pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available
(such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases
are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone

credit rating).

Estimation of impairment of trade and other receivables
within the scope of ECL under HKFRS 9

The Group makes allowances on items subjects to ECL
(including trade and other receivables) based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period as set
out in note 3.7. As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of
trade and other receivables within the scope of ECL under
HKFRS 9 amounted to HK$5,228,000, net of ECL allowance
of HK$21,000 (2024: HK$4,965,000, net of ECL allowance of
HK$30,000).

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
nE B Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE

AT REENEERR — 2

FEfhE — &

R2025%F3A31B TEMERBEES
66,577,000 % 7T (1R 17 E &% 4,910,000
77T ) (2024 4F : 62,890,000 7 7T (F1 K 15
B 4,413,000 7)) (FIzE18) ©
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RHE)RERHEMNTETHEARKREE
B 1R B AR A s (911 4R AR B30 FE LAB B 2 )
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ERERBABBAMAE  AEEfERT
BRHABBWMSEHNR)EEEERK
MEIWAERETERSEMA (WHEBA
BB EEFR)
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HEEANE S R H i ERECRRRE ST

AEEBERERENRR KEHBEEBEN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R T E

For the year ended 31 March 2025 REZ= 202543 A 31 HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY — continued

Estimation of impairment of trade and other receivables
within the scope of ECL under HKFRS 9 — continued

When the actual future cash flows are different from expected,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables within the scope of ECL under HKFRS 9 and
credit losses in the period in which such estimate has been

changed.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets)

Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation
and impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2)
whether the carrying amount of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-
of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the assets belong. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount rate or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially

affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) was
HK$15,069,000 (2024: HK$13,530,000) (note 14). No
impairment loss has been recognised in respect of property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) (2024: Nil)

at the end of the reporting period.

A TREMENEEZRER — 2

REBUBEBRSEAFTIORARFEER
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BHEEBEREEANE ZREFERE
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY — continued

Estimation of LSP obligations

Management’s estimate of the LSP obligations is based
on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as
the discount rate, the salary growth rate, turnover rate and
the expected investment return on offsetable MPF accrued
benefits. Variation in these assumptions may significantly
impact the amounts of LSP obligations and annual defined

benefit expenses.

Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying

amount of LSP obligations.

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of LSP
obligations was HK$896,000 (2024: HK$706,000). Details
of key assumptions and impact of possible changes in key

assumptions are disclosed in note 26.
Income tax and deferred taxation

As detailed in note 12, the Group is subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax. Significant judgment is required in determining
the amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxations. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the

period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the period in which such estimate is changed. The

outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets was HK$4,681,000 (2024: HK$5,528,000) (note 17).

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MR AR R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents amounts received and receivable for the
sales of jewellery products and recycled gold products, and

provision of jewelcrafting services during the year.

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, regularly review revenue analysis
by nature of business (including jewellery business and
trading of recycled gold products), and by jewellery
products (including gem-set jewellery products (representing
diamond/karat gold/jade/pearl/platinum jewellery products
and provision of jewelcrafting services) and gold jewellery
products). The executive directors of the Company
considered the operating activities of sales of these products
as a single operating segment. The operating segment has
been identified on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with accounting policies conform
to HKFRS Accounting Standards, and is regularly reviewed
by the executive directors of the Company. The executive
directors of the Company review the overall results, assets
and liabilities of the Group as a whole to make decisions
about resources allocation. Accordingly, no analysis of this

single operating segment is presented.
Entity-wide information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from contract with

customers is as follows:

Wk o EBER

Yozt 48 5F IR B an I (B MO < 2 m O 86
EMEHAENTRENC W RERESEE

RARABMTEZ(BEEEEREE)EH
EHREBEE(DEREESROKES
ERBS)MEHREER(BIEEAERE
%Eﬁ:’u BER K& FEER BK/Ae
EEMMAKRENTIRE)ARESIKREE
%)%J PEIMER DT o ARRHMITEER
EmiHEREEDRE—KEHHL -
HHEREBEBU B RS EREE
WS ERAER AR IR R E ) ELE
WEHARARRITESEHEM - K
MITEFEHNANEEER FBERBE
- BENRBEMEEBERAERS BLAA
E o Bt BIEENZE—KES LA °

=
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1
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%
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EERESR
AEBEFEHNRADHMT :

2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEr

Jewellery business: RE T
— Retail operation of jewellery shops — KBETEED 63,584 95,662
— Wholesales of jewellery products — KRBEEmILE 7,625 12,188
71,209 107,850
Trading of recycled gold products BlEEEMES 63,469 34,424
Total wst 134,678 142,274

2024/25 ANNUAL REPORT 3k



156

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION —

continued

Entity-wide information — continued

5.

Wi R EER — @

ERRES — &

2025 2024

2025 F 2024 F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FA&ET

Jewellery business by product: REREIDIKREER :

— Gem-set jewellery products — BELERKEER 47,233 55,456

— Gold jewellery products — BSUEEM 23,976 52,394
71,209 107,850

Trading of recycled gold products Bl ESEMES 63,469 34,424
Total HET 134,678 142,274
The Group is engaged in the retail of its own products NEFEZBENREENZTEERETERE

through its retail stores in Hong Kong. Wholesales of jewellery
products represent sales to jewellery retailers with stores and
provision of jewelcrafting services to the wholesalers. The
Group also purchase recycled gold products from the general
public for sale to gold product collectors and dealers for

trading purpose.

Revenue from sales of jewellery products is recognised at a
point in time when the jewellery products and recycled gold
products are delivered to the customers and the respective
controls has been passed. When the Group receives a deposit
for jewellery order or contribution to customer reward scheme,
this will give rise to contract liability at the inception of a

contract, until the revenue is recognised.

Revenue from provision of jewelcrafting services is recognised
at a point in time when the jewelcrafting services are

rendered.

No individual customer contributing revenue which accounted
for more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue during both
years.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

ERZTE KREEMUBERENEANRKE
TERHHE AL EFIBHIKE MR
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mARFEEEMPERRZZELEFEE
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TEMERNTEF RABEHEEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION —

continued
Entity-wide information — continued

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, customers have
a right to exchange/refund within a year. The Group uses its
accumulated historical experience to estimate the exchange/
refund rate. A refund liability is recognised when the Group
expects to refund some or all of the consideration received
from customers. The Group’s right to recover the product is
recognised as a right of return assets included in “trade and
other receivables” and a corresponding adjustment to cost of

goods sold.

All sales contracts have an original expected duration of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction

price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

All of the Group’s revenue from external customers are
generated in Hong Kong. An analysis of the Group’s non-
current assets including property, plant and equipment and

interests in associates by their physical geographical location

ERREs — &

REAKENRESOER  TEAER
—FRERBRRR - AEREREBER
BHERMETRE RRX - EAKER
HRERDAEHEFPRER - AISER
RRBE o ANEE U E m Ao R R
REREREEBRERIE S REMEUKK
B WHREREEEEMmAAR

FIBHER MR RMERS —FHIA
A o BARIBE B IR EERISE 1558
e TEEBIEERERAGONRS
i

AEBERBINBEPHMERRTEES
FE - AKBEREBRMBMES DA
MBEE(BREME - BB RREA KRB
BRARZ )T

is as follows:
2025 2024
2025 & 2024 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets: EmBNE E -
- Hong Kong - B 30,050 30,852
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

6.

OTHER INCOME 6. HflWA
2025 2024
2025 & 2024 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Bank interest income ERITHBUA 381 136

Dividend income from financial assets EAF{EF ABRHNEREE

at FVTPL HY A% B 57 59
Government grants (note) WIS B (A7) 488 432
Sundry income HETEUA 44 61
970 688

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group received cash

subsidies of HK$336,000 (2024: HK$432,000) from the PRC
government in respect of its operating activities.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group recognised
government grants in relation to the funding support received
amounted to HK$152,000 from the Technology Voucher
Programme under the Innovation and Technology Fund,
which is set up by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. The Technology Voucher Programme
aims to promote the effective use of technological services
and solutions by the small and medium enterprises to enhance
their operational efficiency. No such government grant received
during the year ended 31 March 2024.

There were neither unfulfilled conditions nor other contingencies
attached to the receipt of those grants. In addition, there is no
assurance that the Group will continue to receive such grant in
the future.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Kiet - HE2025F3A31HIE  AEEESHEH

B ASELE TBMRMHOREE
% ¥ /3 336,000% T(2024 4F : 432,000 %
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2025 REZ= 202543 A 31 HILFE

7. OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

e

Hir s/ (B18) WS FH

2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Net foreign exchange gain ME 5 W e 5E 69 111
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial BAFEFAERNESBREEDN
assets at FVTPL, net NEEK(EB)FE 282 (26)
Gains/(Losses) on disposal of financial HERZRAFEFABRENEHE
assets at FVTPL, net EmleEEFE 151 (583)
502 (498)
8. MBMA
8. FINANCE COSTS
2025 2024
2025 2024 F
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FREIT FAET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEFANE 704 959
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEABROREER 314 290
1,018 1,249 ;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. MKRBiaNER
Profit before income tax has been arrived at after charging/ B B BT B T B (GE ) T HI & E R
(crediting): EEC
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETL
Lease charges: HEHRX :
- Short-term leases - RHEE 96 519
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% « & KR EHTE
(note 14) (Hzt14)
- Owned assets - BEEE 1,186 1,206
- Right-of-use assets - EREEE 8,049 8,223
Total depreciation of property, plant and mE - BERFEOTELE
equipment 9,235 9,429
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - K= &R &R E
(note 14) (Hit 14)
- Recognised as selling and distribution - BRAHEE XD HKA
costs 7,092 7,285
- Recognised as general and administrative - BRR—RRITHAX
expenses 2,143 2,144
Total depreciation of property, plant and mE - BERFEOTELE
equipment 9,235 9,429
Directors’ emoluments (note 11) Exfe iz 11)
- Fees - e 4,171 4,034
- Retirement benefit scheme contributions - RINEFIETE 154 152
4,325 4,186
Other staff's salaries and other benefits Hfﬁélﬁﬁ%&ﬁ Waaﬂ
- Recognised as cost of goods sold 352 693
- Recognised as selling and distribution i
costs 9,264 9,939
- Recognised as general and administrative - BRA B RTRES
expenses 3,675 4,063
Other staff's retirement benefit scheme Hih 8 TRINEFIFH B4R
contributions
- Recognised as cost of goods sold - BRREERMAAR 83 178
- Recognised as selling and distribution D RIHE RO AR
costs 429 451
- Recognised as general and administrative - BRA B RTERES
expenses 156 319
Expenses arising from LSP obligations REOABRBEEFEENT L
(note 26) (HiF26) 150 259
Total staff costs BIMAAE 18,434 20,088
Reversal of provision for ECL allowance of B RWHENEREER
trade receivables (note 19) B IERE (M7 19) (9) (2)
Auditor’s remuneration Z R EN & ) 450 520
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense  HBRAFRXHFERA 96,673 97,518
Write-down of inventories to net realisable SR E AT ZH
value (note) FENE) 497 152

160 CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 REZ= 202543 A 31 HILFE

10.

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX — continued

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group recognised
write-down of inventories to net realisable value of certain
finished goods of HK$497,000 (2024: HK$152,000) (note 18).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to

owners of the Company is based on the following data:

10.

BRBL AN — &

Hist : B E2025F3 AR ILFE  MAFE
A T 8K e A 8 3% 8 497,000 7T
(2024 4 : 152,000 7T ) (M £ 18) B B8 A&

BREFN
FRERBN TR TIEEAE

2025 2024
2025 F 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
Profit i Al
Profit for the year F W Al 500 1,692
2025 2024
2025 & 2024 F
(Restated)
(&&E5)
Number of share R&OEE
Weighted average number of shares B hIAE 5k
(note) (B13E) 205,961,954 81,376,518

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year
ended 31 March 2024 has been restated to take into account
the effect of the bonus element in ordinary shares issued as a
result of the Rights Issue (as defined in note 27(c)) completed
during the year ended 31 March 2025.

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.

Hfat - BZE 202443 A 318 IEFE T3 N
FHHEET - LAar REE 202543 A 31
HIEFE RO HKRGEZE RKTE27(c)) B
BT L BRPAFK D HFZE -

HE2025F N 20243 A31HIEFEE -
MR ED FHITEEEE L @R - s
SRAFHSRERZFER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 11. EX - - BETBRAEBREEHMH
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERBETBASHM
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the RIELEMABA - BBRAIENE
executive directors, chief executive and independent 383N IERAARI(HEBEESFmE

FORBIDE 2B RBENENHEMAK
RAIATEERBERHITRABER
REBIIFATESOFHMA BN

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of T

non-executive directors of the Company, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
benefits contributions
HH K BIREF
Hi3gFl HE G
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2025 HZFE2025%3A31H
LEFE
Executive directors: HWITES :
Mr. Fu (Chief Executive) BELE(1THRER) 3,100 120 3,220
Mr. Fu Ho Hon (note (i) ﬁrﬁ?‘;ﬁ%i{ﬂf&(/)} 76 - 3 79
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BER 325 16 341
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk RE Eﬁt(%?f(//))
(note (ii)) 310 - 15 325
3,811 - 154 3,965
Independent non-executive BUFRITES :
directors:
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat BREELE 120 120
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick k&5t 4 120 - - 120
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony BRFERELE 120 120
360 - - 360
4171 - 154 4,325
Year ended 31 March 2024 %‘652024¢3H 31H
IH5E
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Fu (Chief Executive) ﬁ?ﬁi(ﬂw 150 3,025 = 120 3,145
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BERRL 328 - 16 344
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk (note (ii)) ?E)%Iﬁ:t(/fffu}‘(//)) 321 = 16 337
3,674 - 152 3,826
Independent non-executive BUFRTES :
directors:
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat BREETAE 120 = = 120
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick —~ Ek3&%E4 120 120
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony BRFBLEE 120 - 120
360 - - 360
4,034 - 152 4,186

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 11. EX -  BSTTBRAEBREEHH —
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS — continued iz
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments — (a) EZERBETHRASHMH — &
continued
Notes: KiaE -
(i) Mr. Fu Ho Hon, who is the son of Mr. Fu, was appointed (i) BEREE REBEENR T R
as an executive director of the Company on 17 January 2025F 1 A17TBEZERARRAAIH
2025. TESE -
(i)  Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk is the spouse of Mr. Fu. (i)  REEXTABLEMNRS -
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were EXFRRITES O EE B

RARREBENER EBRMANR
BER LXATRBIHATES

for their services in connection with the management

of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The B AN A 2 RS
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments o B £2025% 20244 3 A 31
shown above were for their services as directors of BIEFE  SESTEAMNBHIR

BAKEKQRNRRATHEN
WEMREE - RMEFE  ~N&EHE

the Company. There were no bonuses paid or payable

to directors which are discretionary or are based on GEAAATES S A EMESR
the Group’s or Company’s performance for the years 3| A0 A AR £ @ 8 0 A 7N £ [ B Y 5
ended 31 March 2025 and 2024. No remuneration was BISEABBEE HESREES
paid by the Group to the directors of the Company as PREE K [R B R E (A 3 B 2 2 BE -

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years. There is
no arrangement under which a director has waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

Bt 75 ¥ 3R MY RE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS — continued

(b)

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group include
one (2024: one) director of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2025, details of emoluments are
included above. The emoluments of the remaining four
(2024: four) highest paid employees who are neither

a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

11.

EE  BETHRAEBREEHM —

=]

=]

(b)

EEREHFHMES

REZE2025F3 A31 HIEFEMNTR
FhRmTMEERIEAARMNIRE
F(2024F :18) - EFHFB R
MEX - Hfp4%(20245F : 458K
BHHES BIERAREE NS
SITBAB )M FHMIAT

follows:
2025 2024
2025 &£ 2024 &
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Employees (=]
— Salaries and other benefits - He LA 1,684 1,661
— Discretionary bonus - BIBIEAL 618 731
— Retirement benefit scheme - RIREFE IR
contributions 72 72
2,374 2,464

The emoluments of these remaining four highest paid
individuals in the Group for the year were within the

following band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T

2025
2025 F

RAEE  AEBEZFERIARD
FENE AR FEN S E T

2024

2024 F

Number of Number of
employee employee
4 4

Certain employees of the Group are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined based on a percentage
of the profit before income tax of the relevant

subsidiaries during both years.

There were no amounts paid by the Group to any of the
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office (2024: Nil).

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

AEBETEEREZENRIEL B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 REZ= 202543 A 31 HILFE

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FifSHiMAxX
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBEFEH
- Current year - REE - =
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) FERECEMSH([EEMER])
- Current year - REE - =
Deferred tax (note 17) EEREIB (K 17) 847 260
Income tax expense iR 847 260

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had available tax losses brought forward from prior
years to offset the assessable profit generated during the
years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiary in the PRC is
25% for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.

HRAEE A SR FEAERN A AREE
B S E E= 2025 F K% 20243 A 31 H
IEFEEENERBRH - T EHES
S FE LB -

RIER B ERERIELRBEMBRE
EEIEH - B = 20254 K% 2024 4F 3 A 31
A IEFE R BB R R ER25% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE — continued 12.

The tax for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

P8 —

FARRRAFE He R E A2 W R EG

BiADE M E R FHBEDT

2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Profit before income tax R 25 A A 1,347 1,852
Tax charge at the applicable income  #RERFAEHHE16.5%
tax rate at 16.5% ECGRRRE 222 306
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A FNH B sz MO T I& 52 &
for tax purpose 237 118
Tax effect of income not taxable for BAERBIMANT B E
tax purpose (94) (79)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERRHBBENTHLE
recognised 252 2
Effect of different tax rate applicable  REMEDEE R KEEHB QT
to a subsidiary operating in the EANTRBEZE
other jurisdiction 11 (99)
Tax effect of share of losses of BN REENENRETE
associates 219 17
Income tax expense FISHiAx 847 260

13. DIVIDENDS

13.

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Group during
the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. V¥ BERRE

Furniture,
Right-of-use Leasehold fixtures and Motor
assets  improvements equipment vehicles Machinery Total
HENE KA EE
ERELEE ¥RIE EERRE RE He @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT AT AT FAT TAT
Cost KA
As at 1 April 2023 202354410 46,952 7,163 4,568 1,368 331 60,382
Additions hE - - 21 - = 21
Modification EH] 7,004 - - - - 7,004
Written off e - - = = (40) (40)
As at 31 March 2024 M2024E3 31 AR
and 1 April 2024 20244818 53,956 7,163 4,589 1,368 291 67,367
Modification 5] 10,774 - - - - 10,774
As at 31 March 2025 202563 A31A 64,730 7,163 4,589 1,368 291 78,141
Accumulated e
depreciation
As at 1 April 2023 120234 A1R 35,042 4,586 3,602 887 331 44,448
Provided for the year ~ FR&EMRE 8,223 759 34 106 - 9,429
Eliminated on writen ~ #is5E %
off - - - - (40) (40)
As at 31 March 2024 R2024%3 318K
and 1 April 2024 2024F 4811 43,265 5,345 3,943 993 291 53,837
Provided for the year FREE 8,049 758 324 104 - 9,235
As at 31 March 2025 1202537318 51,314 6,103 4,267 1,097 291 63,072
Net carrying amount  fREFE
As at 31 March 2025 #2025 3 318 13,416 1,060 322 271 - 15,069
As at 31 March 2024 20243318 10,691 1,818 646 375 - 13,530
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 # £ 20254 3 531 HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT —

continued

14. 9%  BERRE — &

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, included in the net carrying

amount of property, plant and equipment are right-of-use

R2025F 220243 A31H W% - B
ENREBFEANTERESE :

assets as follows:

Carrying amount as at 31 Depreciation for the year
March ended 31 March

RZF3HSB1H BEZF3HBLEEE
ZIREE ZiE

2024

2024

2024 F 2024 F

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FETT FET FET FAET

Retail shops TEE 12,202 8,264 6,836 7,010

Office FER/NE 1,214 2,427 1,213 1,213

13,416 10,691 8,049 8,223

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 15. REEE N Rz =

2025 2024

2025 F 2024 4F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Cost of investments in associates KB &R R 2 B KA 17,800 17,800
Share of post-acquisition losses and ~ EEWEEREEREMEE

other comprehensive expense, net 2 (HIBR B A8
of dividends received (2,819) (478)
14,981 17,322
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 REZ= 202543 A 31 HILFE

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — continued

Set out below are details of the associates of the Group as at
31 March 2025 and 2024:

Name of associate

BENTHB

Dia Myth Jewelry
(MFY) Co., Limited
(“Dia Myth”)

EEURERRAA
([=#1)

Grand Rise Creation
Limited (“Grand Rise”)

EERIRER AR
(EERIZD

Form of
business
structure

EBRBEA

Limited liability

BRAA]

Limited liability

BRAF

Place of
incorporation
and business
AR S R
2 B

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

BB

The associates have a reporting date of 31 March.

Set out below are the summarised financial information of the

associates:

15. REEEATZMSE — 4

VAT & 72N 55 B Bt i 8 B 2025 F K 2024
FIHABBAZFE EERREHAEH
MEBERX -
Particulars of
issued and Proportion
paid up of effective Principal
capital interest held activity
BERTR BB
BEREFHE #E=REH FTEXEH
10,000 shares 20% Property letting

10,000 A%

100 shares

100 fix

(2024: 20%)

20%
(2024 % : 20%)

13%
(2024: 13%)
13%

(2024 : 13%)

MEEE

Property letting

MEEE

FZEBMENRZMERAHR/IA31A -
AT BB E NP2 M IEEREE

Dia Myth

LE

2024

Grand Rise

EEAIE

2024

2024 F 2024 4

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FEITL FET FEL

Current assets mENEE 10,024 10,867 5,749 12,335
Non-current assets EmBEE 66,000 66,000 67,300 75,000
Current liabilities mEBaE (30,312) (31,089) (15,035) (15,060)
Net assets BEFE 45,712 45,778 58,014 72,275
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — continued

RE&ERR 2 EE — &

Dia Myth Grand Rise
-3 HEERIE
2025 2024 2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F 2025 & 2024 F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET FET FAET
Revenue Wz 1,260 1,260 1,703 1,703
Total expenses S 48 %8 (1,326) (12) (8,164) (510)
(Loss)/Profit before AT (E548) /FE
income tax (66) 1,248 (6,461) 1,193
Income tax expense Frsfif > - (103) - (99)
(Loss)/Profit and total FAN(ER),/FIHR
comprehensive 2E(EZH) e
(expense)/income for e
the year (66) 1,145 (6,461) 1,094
Dividend receivables FEU AR B - = 1,014 %

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 REZ= 202543 A 31 HILFE

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — continued 15. REERTzEm — &
A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information NTREEREE REBRAIENREmEY
to the carrying amount of the investments in Dia Myth and B 75 A R R R

Grand Rise is set out below:

Dia Myth Grand Rise

=% EE A
2024

2024

2024 F 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FETL
Net assets FAERTE 45,712 45,778 58,014 72,275
Ownership interests held  AEBEHEA#ER
by the Group 9,143 9,156 7,542 9,396
Elimination of leases THEHH (651) (399) (1,053) (831)
Carrying amount of FERE SR RMREE
the investments in
associates 8,492 8,757 6,489 8,565
The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities or other AN EE B B H IS B N2 N BR A (LAl Ek A
commitments relating to its investments in associates. BEH A o
16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 16. RATFEFAERNERMEE
2024
20244
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong RA&EBERE FHRERE 1,613 1,844
The fair value of the Group’s listed equity investments has AEBM EMRIELMRERED EL
been measured as described in note 35. 2 - BnfiEE 35 At o
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 17. EZEBBEEE
The movements in deferred tax assets during each of the ZMEHANRELETIBE ESSHWOT -
reporting period are as follows:
ECL Temporary
allowance difference
Provision for for trade on
inventories receivables  depreciation Tax losses Total
E R kR
RIEMAE wEn
RERKE GEFERRK ERER BEER Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T8 FET FET 87T T
As at 1 April 2023 R2023%4A1H 703 5 99 4,981 5,788
Credited/(Charged) to  MBzEt A/ (1K)
profit or loss (note 12)  (Hfzt12) 25 - (6) (279) (260)
As at 31 March 2024 R 202453 A31H
and 1 April 2024 K 2024%F4R81H 728 ) 93 4,702 5528
Credited/(Charged) to  MEzE A/ (H1%)
profit or loss (note 12) (Kt 12) 81 (2) 23 (949) (847)
As at 31 March 2025 R2025%3 A31H 809 3 116 3,753 4,681

As at 31 March 2025, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$23,474,000 (2024: HK$29,224,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset of HK$3,753,000
(2024: HK$4,702,000) has been recognised in respect of
losses of HK$22,745,000 (2024: HK$28,497,000) as at 31
March 2025. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to the remaining tax losses of HK$729,000 (2024:
HK$727,000) as at 31 March 2025 due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

202538318 » AEBAREAHIIE
/&5 823,474,000 7T(2024 4 : 29,224,000
BIT) - ATAREEAR IR A o 720254 3
A318 ' B 5t & 1822,745,0007% J1.(2024
4 : 28,497,000/ 7T ) R IE LTI IH & =
3,753,000 7T (2024 FF : 4,702,000 7T ) °
202543 A 31 B I £ 3t & T i 18 & B
729,000/ JL.(2024 4 = 727,000 7T ) FE 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 REZ= 202543 A 31 HILFE

18.

19.

INVENTORIES 18. &
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Raw materials xR 8,037 7,523
Work in progress E&m 618 384
Finished goods RUPK i 57,922 54,983
66,577 62,890
As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of inventories R2025%3H31H # E /M fk @ B
included provision of HK$4,910,000 (2024: HK$4,413,000), B B #4,910,000% (20244 :
which was determined with reference to the net realisable 4,413,000 L) E W2 =7 EEE
value of the inventory items. Additional provision of B Rl 23R R E M E E o Al 220254
HK$497,000 (2024: HK$152,000) was made during the year AR LEFERN" EfELBEINEE
ended 31 March 2025. 497,000 (2024 £ : 152,000587T) °
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. ESRHMEKRFIE
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAEIT FAET
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 1,243 1,877
Less: ECL allowance i TERE B iR RE (21) (30)
Trade receivables, net B SRR (FF) 1,222 1,847
Rental deposits HEZ®
— related parties (note 33(a)) - BEE A (K17t 33(a)) 494 494
— third parties -%=5 2,001 1,879
Prepayments, other deposits and TEfTRIE - Hhige R EA
other receivables (note) FEMERIA (KT 2E) 920 1,252
Dividend receivable from an associate FEYEE & A RIAR B 1,014 _
Right of return assets REEEE 304 383
5,955 5,88
Less: non-current portion of rental i HERSNFERBHS R
deposits and prepayments for Yz - BB REHER
property, plant and equipment FEf FRIE (1,338) (704)
4,617 B, 151
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — continued

Note: Prepayments, other deposits and other receivables mainly
comprised of (i) prepayment to suppliers; (ii) money held in trust
for purchase of shares under Share Award Scheme; and (iii)
deposits for management fee and utilities.

All trade and other receivables are denominated in HK$.

The following is an ageing analysis of the Group’s trade

receivables, net of ECL allowance by age, presented based

ESRHMBERRE — &

Hiet - ERFIE - iz REMEBRREETER
FOBEMER : ()VERAETESBER
BERMEEFE 2RONESR + R (i) BE
BRABRKESD -

2B 5 K E b FEUWGRIB S LA TTATHE ©

T RIEBEEZBHEIIRERESHE
HEERBRRERASEE S RKFIAF

on the invoice date. O
2025 2024
2025 F 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 to 30 days 0FE 30K 480 695
31 to 60 days 31 260X 236 655
61 to 90 days 61ZE 90K 288 340
Over 90 days B3890 X 218 157
1,222 1,847

The Group’s retail sales to customers are mainly made in cash
or through credit card payments. Trade receivables arise from
credit card sales are normally settled in one to two business
day in arrears. For the remaining customers, the Group allows
a credit period up to 90 days. A longer credit period may be
granted to large or long-established customers with good

payment history.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group will internally
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customers. Management closely monitors the
credit quality and follow up actions will be taken if overdue
debts are noted. Credit limits attributed to customers and
credit term granted to customers are reviewed on a regular
basis. Approximately 86% of the trade receivables as at 31
March 2025 (2024: 92%) are neither past due nor impaired
and they were assessed to be of good credit rating by the
Group.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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151=.FH-FH,TALTT Fﬁﬁ-ﬁﬁ%%FEE’UE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 REZ= 202543 A 31 HILFE

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — continued 19.

The movement in ECL allowance for trade receivables is as

ESRHMBEWRIE — &
BHRKFENBREEBREENED

follows: NN
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 %
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year F4 30 32

ECL allowance reversed during the FAREENEREE

year E 1B (9) (2)
At the end of the year FR 21 30

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers with reference
to the historical repayment. The Group collectively assesses
the impairment using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based on share credit risk characteristics of
customers. The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed based on provision matrix as at 31 March 2025 and
2024 within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

EARAEEEERREEN—5 A%
E2EERRHAAERFEARNSEE
FE o AEEFERAEREFHEREER
B RF R IE E 2 B R B R R R (B (RS B
e TERRBEEAHEBIRUFIERGE
BB ER - ZEERIRE2025F Kk
20243 AT HMEFEMEREEEBRE
(WS ERE) BB E BT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — continued 19. ESRHMEKRE — 2
Gross Net
carrying Average ECL carrying
amount loss rate allowance amount
EHEE
IREAE FHEEX EiERE REFEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
As at 31 March 2025 R2025F3 A31H
Low risk (0L 970 1.3% 13 957
Medium risk R R 273 3.0% 8 265
1,243 21 1,222
As at 31 March 2024 R 2024F3 A31H
Low risk 1K [ fez 1,547 1.3% 20 1,527
Medium risk R R 330 3.0% 10 320
1,877 30 1,847
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical HETBEREDRIBEES ATERFHNBE
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors AIEIRENERMGE  WREBENHBZK
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is AN A BRI S B RTRE B RHE L FHEE o
available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is EEEBTHESSMHE  UBRENEHE
regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant EEEANBBEER -
information about specific debtors is updated.
In addition, the directors of the Company considered that the SO KRB ESRE KREEKBAE S
presumption of default has occurred when the instrument is EHFANTEREERELER  THEaH
more than 90 days past due would be rebutted by considering B3 90 K Bl 2 A 32 MMV RIS i HE B o

the expected subsequent and historical repayment from the

trade debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2025 REZ= 202543 A 31 HILFE

20.

21.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20. RITERREAS
2024
2024 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEITL
Bank balances and cash WITHR RS 31,229 11,159
Included in bank balances and cash are the following RITHEBRRESPRETINEHREEER
amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional e B AN B MG ER A ¢
currencies of the respective group entities:
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Renminbi (“RMB") AR 22 71
United States dollars (“US$”) ETT 132 92
154 163
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. EZREMENSRE
2025 2024
2025 F 2024
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Trade payables =) AN E S 1,511 2,160
Accrued staff costs FEETE TR AR 2,660 2,820
Other payables and accrued charges HfbEM KB REEA
(note) (Hiz2) 1,309 1,191
5,480 @, 171

Note: Other payables and accrued charges mainly comprised of (i)

accruals for audit fee; (ii) provision for annual leave; and (iii)

payables for general operations.

Hiat - HtbERRIEREEREZ 0 () BTtz
HAEER (i) FRBER (i) BN —REE

HIRIR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES — continued 21. EZNHEHMENSRE — &

E S ENRIER{EE R A90 H (2024 4 :
90H)  HE=R(2024%F : AR)TEHRE
BHEEHA1FA - L TAREHREH
RREHZAHZ2S| ANEEE F RN T

The credit period of trade payables is within 90 days (2024:
90 days) except for three (2024: five) of the major suppliers
are within 1 year. The following is an ageing analysis of the

Group’s trade payables based on the invoice date at the end

178

of each reporting period:

HRRER DT

2025 2024

2025 % 2024 4F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

0 to 30 days 0&30K 168 118
31 to 60 days 31260K 54 320
61 to 90 days 61ZE 90K 217 14
Over 90 days B 90X 1,072 1,708
1,511 2,160

Included in the Group’s trade payables are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional

currencies of the respective group entities.

AEENEZRNFEABRETIINERE
EEEIERB AR ERNKEA -

2025 2024

2025 fF 2024 4

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FETL

Uss$ ETT 1,475 1,989
RMB AR - 3
1,475 1,992
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 REZ= 202543 A 31 HILFE

22.

23.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 22. AHNEE
2025 2024
2025 £ 2024 %
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer reward scheme (note) K EEET S (A ) 5,977 5,848
Customer deposits BE & 58 34
6,035 5,882
Note: The Group launches a customer reward scheme in its retail Hiat - REBREFBZEEHL —HEF KRB
stores in Hong Kong which requires the customers to make &l o ZETEIERE P A K EE B RAR
regular payments to the Group in return for redemption of the RRHBMAEENER ©
Group’s products in the future.
As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the entire amount of contract 2025 F 20243 A31H » BAIG A
liabilities is expected to be realised within one year at the end ABEEHSBERREHERE—FAE
of the reporting period. I o
The increase in contract liabilities as at 31 March 2025 R2025F3A3TBANAEBEMIEMEE
was mainly due to the increase in payments made by the REPRImE R RE S ZENE S8 5K
customers under the customer reward scheme during the e
reporting period.
Contract liabilities outstanding at the beginning of the year EUHMAEBEALAEE2217,0005 7T
amounted to HK$2,217,000 (2024: HK$2,565,000) have been (2024 % : 2,565,000 ) B R ELZE 2025
recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 March 2025. €3 A31BItEERNERREKZ -
REFUND LIABILITIES 23. EBHEE
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Refund liabilities arising from right of RE#FRELZERREE

return

334 444
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e MR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

24. LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities

24, HEEE
TRIRAEREEEE

BRI & K92 HR

of the Group’s lease liabilities: H:
2025 2024
2025 &£ 2024 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Total minimum lease payments: KR ERIELTE
— Due within one year - R—FRNTH 7,254 8,030
— Due in the second to fifth years - RE_FEZERFEIH 6,920 3,496
14,174 11,526
Future finance charges on leases HEABNRKREEHR
liabilities (524) (324)
Present value of leases liabilities HEAENHRE 13,650 11,202
Present value of minimum lease SEBEERIBRIRE -
payments:
— Due within one year - R—FREH 7,008 7,769
— Due in the second to fifth years - RE_FEFRFEH 6,642 3,433
13,650 11,202
Less: portion due within one year B BIVEREN B ER —F A ZIE
included under current ZED
liabilities (7,008) (7,769)
Portion due after one year included PITEIERBI B BN —F1&
under non-current liabilities 2B 6,642 3,433

For the year ended 31 March 2025, leases are negotiated
for terms of two to three years (2024: one to three years).
Certain operating leases require the Group to pay either
minimum guaranteed amounts or turnover rent that is based
on prescribed rates of corresponding sales, whichever is the
higher.

As at 31 March 2025, lease liabilities amounted to
HK$13,650,000 (2024: HK$11,202,000) are effectively
secured by the related underlying assets as the rights to the
leased assets would be reverted to the lessors in the event
of default by repayment by the Group. During the year ended
31 March 2025, the total cash outflows for the leases were
HK$8,736,000 (2024: HK$8,799,000).

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

BH1E2025F3A31 B IEFE - BLLM
E=F(2024%F : —E=F )MHARETE °
ETREHEERAEEZINHFERES
o IZBEHEEE L Rt EME EEA
ABRBERE) °

7202543 A31H » 13,650,000/87T (2024
% ¢ 11,202,000% ) MHEE A EHBRE
A E(EER - LTI B HE AN B R
HEX  HEAENENESERTHME
A ° B E202593A31H @ AENBIRER
i 78,736,000/ 75 (20244F : 8,799,000/%
7)) &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

24.

LEASE LIABILITIES — continued

Details of the lease activities

24.

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group has entered into

leases for retails shops and an office.

Type of right-of-use

asset

Retails shops

A
i
It

Office

Financial statements
item of right-of-use

asset included in

Property, plant and
equipment

Wx -~ BB &R

Property, plant and
equipment

ME - BE kR

Number of

leases

7 (2024: 7)

7 (2024% : 7)

1 (2024: 1)

1 (2024 : 1)

There is no extension option or termination option on the

leases.

HEsE — &

HEFBNFE

R 2025F & 20243 A31H * A&EE
METEE K — @9

Range of
remaining

lease term

1 to 3 years
(2024: 0.3 to
2 years)

1E34F
(2024 % :
0.3E2%)

1 year (2024
2 years)

146
(2024 £ -
24F)

NEFIUEE °

Particular

Some of the
contracts contain
additional variable
lease payments
depends on
the turnover
rent during the
contract period

BORKNEEUAEH
HAHEER S RIK
BRI #EE
N/

Only subject to
monthly fixed
rental payment

(EESRNESDE

HE W EIEH AR I H)ERERE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

25. BANK BORROWINGS 25. RITER
2024
2024 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Unsecured bank borrowings IR ITE R 16,513 22,799
The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as follows: AEERITERNETEZBBERAOT
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Bank borrowings are repayable (note) $R1T{E A T I EAFR W12
(H7at)
— Within 1 year -1FR 6,408 6,287
— After 1 year but within 2 years - 15F&E2FR 3,411 6,385
— After 2 years but within 5 years - 2F&ESFRA 5,339 8,093
— After 5 years - 5% 1% 1,355 2,034
Total bank borrowings RITE R AREE 16,513 22,799
Comprising: B
— Amounts due within one year -JATBEEEEA
shown under current liabilities REREEER
and containing a repayment on B9 —4F A EI| B FE A
demand clause KIE 6,408 6,287
— Amounts that are not repayable - BAEREHERE
within one year from the end —FANEEESH
of the reporting period but REKERIERERIE
containing a repayment on GIAREBE)
demand clause (shown under
current liabilities) 10,105 16,512
Total bank borrowings IR1TIE K458 16,513 22,799
Note: These amounts are based on the scheduled repayment dates Mt - ZERBEUR TSRS AT ESXE A

set out in the bank borrowing agreements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

25.

BANK BORROWINGS — continued

The Group’s banking facility letters contain a clause which
give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand
immediate repayment at any time irrespective of whether
the Group has complied with the covenants and met the

scheduled repayment obligations.

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024,

borrowings were guaranteed by HKMC Insurance Limited

the unsecured bank

under the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme and personal
guaranteed by Mr. Fu, the ultimate controlling party of the

Company.

All bank borrowings bear variable-rate ranging from Hong
Kong Dollar Prime Rate minus 2.5% per annum to Hong Kong
Dollar Prime Rate minus 2% per annum as at 31 March 2025
and 2024.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal
to contracted interest rates) per annum on the Group’s bank
borrowings as at 31 March 2025 and 2024, is as following:

Effective interest rates: B R A =
— Variable-rate borrowings - FEEE

25.

|RITIER —

AEENRTRERMGTSAE —RER - £
ERANERDRERBREZRIANER
T AEEREE TR MEITHEENR
B

#2025 F & 2024F 3 431 H + EILAR
TEFHEBRBFRBRERAABEH N
REEERTEIREERRBARRAARE
AR 77 {8 S AR R B A FEAR o

2025 % N 20243 A31H * NF A
K BEMEHRITER  AXEHASF
BITREENRE25% =B TREERF
TR 2%

R 2025%F 20243 A31H » A&EE R
TEFRHSFERFERER (IRERETLF
)T

2024
2024 4

HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET F&T

3.0% to 3.5% 3.6% to 4.1%

All bank borrowings are denominated in HK$.

PRARITRERIIABTTAHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MR AR R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE

26.

LSP OBLIGATIONS

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, Chapter
57, Hong Kong employees that have been employed
continuously for at least five years are entitled to LSP under
certain circumstances (e.g. dismissal by employers or upon

retirement).

The amount of LSP payable is determined with reference to
the employee’s last monthly salary (capped at HK$22,500)
and the years of service, reduced by the amount of any
accrued benefits derived from the Group’s contributions to
MPF scheme (see note 9), with an overall cap of HK$390,000
per employee. Currently, the Group does not have any
separate funding arrangement in place to meet its LSP

obligations.

In June 2022, the Hong Kong SAR Government (the
“Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong Employment and
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”),
which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived from
employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to offset the LSP.
The Amendment Ordinance will take effect on 1 May 2025 (the
“Transition Date”). Separately, the Government has indicated
that it would launch a subsidy scheme to assist employers

after the abolition.

Among other things, once the abolition of the offsetting
mechanism takes effect, an employer can no longer use
any of the accrued benefits derived from its mandatory
MPF contributions (irrespective of the contributions made
before, on or after the Transition Date) to reduce the LSP in
respect of an employee’s service from the Transition Date.
However, where an employee’s employment commenced
before the Transition Date, the employer can continue to use
the above accrued benefits to reduce the LSP in respect
of the employee’s service up to that date. In addition, the
LSP in respect of the service before the Transition Date
will be calculated based on the employee’s monthly salary
immediately before the Transition Date and the years of

service up to that date.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

26.

REBRBEEE

RIBCRBHID(ZEEHIFEL7TE) - X
LEERT (R EEFESIRIN)  EEX
BELRAFHNEEREAEENRHRS

BNRERBESEHI2ERERENREA
(LR &22,500% L) & MR 7% 5 HA i &
TE - WHIBR AR E B M58 5 5T B R AT E
EREREEREZSHE(RNGE) 84
EE /& FIRA&390,000%& 7T ° B Al
REBWETMNEBNE S LHUBITH
RERBSEML -

202246 A + EBFAITTERIEBAT ([
FF 1) 72 3B 2R I 22022 4 & & I B R &
ZEGICE S HE) (BT )R B DTS ET &
Bl1) - BUBGEFAE R G RESERATE
AR RE R R AR LHRTE
BETIEBI R 202545 A1 B (EREMBE
B DA - o - BB R TSEEEE
SRR G HE L AL ET ] - DAGBIEE -

F —BECHEEEH AR BEED
BRI RESHRMEENEMZR
Bikan(TwetEERRAZA - EA%Z
RATTERIHR) - SRANIRR 8 fER A HIE
MRS FHNRIREE - AT HES
RBEBMAE MR E AR rAS
VA b ot R E A 25 3R 0B B 7238 0K B HIAT A
R FHNRBARB S - oo FRBREK
HEIRTH RSN RBMRB 2 S IREBEREEHE
ERBEBRANAHLRBEEZ A HNR
BEHFHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

26.

LSP OBLIGATIONS — continued

The benefit payment under LSP remains capped at
HK$390,000 per employee. If an employee’s total benefit
payment exceeds HK$390,000, the amount in excess of the
cap is deducted from the portion accrued from the Transition
Date.

The Group has accounted for the offsetting mechanism and
its abolition as disclosed in note 3.17 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The Group has determined that the Amendment Ordinance
primarily impacts the Group’s LSP obligations with respect to

Hong Kong employees.

The present value of unfunded LSP obligations and its

26.

REBRBEEE — #&

BEEERRERGSNEZSE LRMD
#$390,00078 7T ° fiil & B ## 2= 42 5 R 1B
390,000 7T - # M ERASFE KB BE
HHEAfR R RE 2B R ©

7 ER 18 2 5 35 85 0 ) e EL EROH # R B0 1500
AR UREAMBRRMEIA7THE

==

AEECDEEEIGRITEZEASEY
FERENEMRBEEE -

BEHERMRBEEENREREZFHN

movements are as follows: T
HK$'000
TET
As at 1 April 2023 7202344 B 18 516
Remeasurements recognised in other REMEEKSHERZNETTE :
comprehensive income:
— Actuarial gains arising from changes in — MBBRREHEENFE K
financial assumptions (69)
Expenses recognised in profit or loss: BaPERNAX :
— Current service cost — BIEARR A AR 259
As at 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 R 20243 A31BKX2024F 4811 706
Remeasurements recognised in other REMEEKSZERANETTE :
comprehensive income:
— Actuarial losses arising from changes in — MHRBREHEENBEEER
financial assumptions 40
Expenses recognised in profit or loss: BaPHRNFX
— Current service cost — BIEARR A A 150
As at 31 March 2025 20253 A31H 896
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

26. LSP OBLIGATIONS — continued 26. REBRBESEE —#&
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FRET F&T
Analysed into: =
— Current portion — BENEAERL 4 11
— Non-current portion — FEEDHARE(D 892 695
896 706
The current service cost and past service cost are included BIHARR TS R AN K B E RIS A 5T A B B
in employee benefits expenses. They are recognised in the BAFAY » WHRERE IRER A THA%)IE
following line items in the consolidated statement of profit or BrhiER

loss and other comprehensive income:

2025 2024

2025 F 20244

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Selling and distribution costs 15 K9 SHBKC AR 96 199
General and administrative expenses A RITHFI X 54 60
150 259
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

26.

LSP OBLIGATIONS — continued
Estimates and assumptions

The significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of

LSP obligations are as follows:

Discount rate AL IR &
Salary growth rate g R=
Turnover rate (by age group)
Expected investment return on

offsetable MPF accrued benefits TE HA#% & [B1 3R

MK = (REHRAERIE D)
AR S B R

REBRBEEE — &
st RBR

ErRIARBEEETNERNBERRN
T

2025 2024
2025 F 2024 %

HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET THET
3.38% 3.70%

2% to 5%
10% to 41%

2% to 3%
14% to 45%

2.5% 2.5%

These assumptions were developed by management. Discount
factors are determined close to each period-end by reference
to market yields of high quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid
and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related LSP obligations. Other assumptions are based on
current actuarial benchmarks and management’s historical

experience.

The present value of the LSP obligations was measured using

the projected unit credit method.

The weighted average duration of the LSP obligations is 15
years (2024: 17 years).

ZEMRRBAEEEHE - MBEDERD
ZHRRELLEURENEEFTE
I HHAR AR R HRG & B EHRALN
MEERARMEFNM S REEMEE ° &
RRLDERBEEEREIREMNB

FEHR%E S ETNREFBETELMER
RETE o
EHRESETHONEFLHEHR B15F
(20244 : 174F)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 202543 31 HIEFE

26. LSP OBLIGATIONS — continued 26. RERBESEE —#&
Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted LSP obligations in R20259F 3 A31H k2024438318 -
the next 40 years (2024: 41 years) as at 31 March 2025 and RIA0F (2024 F : 415 ) KRB K
2024 is disclosed as follows: € EEMTEHI B TFEELT

Over 1 year Over 2 years
but within but within

Within 1 year 2 years 5 years Over 5 years
BE1F BA2F
15/ BR2ER BR5FR BB5F

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FAT FET FAT FET FAET

As at 31 March 2025 R2025%63F31H
LSP obligations RARBEER 4 9 61 1,501 1,575
As at 31 March 2024 W2024%3831H
LSP obligations REREEER 23 - 52 1,297 1,372
The LSP obligations expose the Group to actuarial risks such EHRESEESASEEGHERR
as interest rate risk, salary risk and the investment risk of the WA R - FeREBIAEEREST
Group’s MPF scheme’s constituent funds. Sk D EE IR ER R °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 REZ= 202543 A 31 HILFE

26.

LSP OBLIGATIONS — continued
Changes in the significant actuarial assumptions

The calculation of the LSP obligations is sensitive to the
significant actuarial assumptions mentioned above. The
following table summarises the effects of changes in these
actuarial assumptions on the LSP obligations at the end of

each reporting periods.

26.

REBRBEEE — #&
BEABEBRNZD

EHRBEEENFES EREXNBER
RIFEFHE - TRBAZEBEBRRNE
BHEREPREBRGSAENTE -

Impact on LSP obligations
HRORBEEENZE

Changes in Increase in the Decrease in the
assumption assumption assumption
BREH e R AR
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FAET
As at 31 March 2025 M"2025%3 A31H
Discount rate Epinhess 0.25% (33) 34
Salary growth rate FHNE R = 0.25% 3 (3)
Turnover rate (by age group) MAR(RFHRARE D) 25% (65) 65
Expected investment return AR HRR @ AT =AY
on offsetable MPF accrued T8 BA1R & B 3R
benefits 5% 1) 1
As at 31 March 2024 202443 A31H
Discount rate BhIR & 0.25% (28) 29
Salary growth rate R = 0.25% 3 (4)
Turnover rate (by age group)  kE(RFRARIES) 25% (49) 49
Expected investment return AR TE R BT S A
on offsetable MPF accrued T8 A% & Bl 5
benefits 5% (1) 1

The sensitivity analyses presented above may not be
representative of actual change in the LSP obligations as it
is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in
isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may
be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the LSP
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same
actuarial valuation method has been applied when calculating
the LSP obligations recognised in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

There were no changes in the methods and assumptions used

in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior year.

EgEESM AR TR REARB R
Emﬁﬁﬁk'ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ

ARREBELERL - FTERARS
éf&ﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁ“mﬂmfﬁ R
B EEAMBERAR T EERRBRS
SR ERBRRMNBEEBETE -

SR — AL - AR BB 2 T B AT B
B ITAMBR AR B R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BRZA
Details of movements of share capital of the Company are as RARIPEARSEE BT -
follow:
Number of share Nominal value
REEE HE
’000 HK$°000
B FET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (before =R E{E 0.0158 7T (RKRHEHHA0)

Share Consolidation) and HK$0.1 each ~ REREE0.138 T (RKRHAH

(after Share Consolidation) BRINEBER
Authorised: ERE
As at 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024 and 1 1202344 A1H * 2024 4

April 2024 3A31HKR2024F4A1H 1,500,000 15,000
Share Consolidation (note(a)) RD& Gt (B 7E (a) (1,350,000) -
Addition (note(b)) I (H1F (b)) 7,350,000 735,000
As at 31 March 2025 R 2025%€3 A31H 7,500,000 750,000
Issued and fully paid: ERIRMR
As at 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024 and 1 R2023F4 18 20245

April 2024 3A31HK2024%F4A1H 750,000 7,500
Share Consolidation (note(a)) W1 & Bf (HzE (a) (675,000) -
Shares issued upon Rights Issue (note (c)) BT (#:Z(c)) 225,000 22,500
As at 31 March 2025 M 202543 A31H 300,000 30,000
Notes: Wit

(a) On 28 May 2024, the Company implemented the share
consolidation on the basis that every ten issued and unissued
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company be consolidated into one consolidated share of
par value of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company.
The resolution for the share consolidation was duly passed
by the shareholders of the Company by way of poll at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 24 May 2024 (the “Share
Consolidation”). Upon completion of the Share Consolidation,
the authorised share capital of the Company shall remain at
HK$15,000,000, and the number of authorised shares of the
Company decreased from 1,500,000,000 shares of par value of
HK$0.01 each to 150,000,000 consolidated shares of par value
of HK$0.1 each.
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(a)

MN2024F 58280 A AR EHERKRG &
Bt BRERARARAFTF10RFREE
0.01 BILHIEBEITRABITRHEHARR
AR A RTREEOA B TH A HRRHD
(TA&fA & 0 1) o IR 1D & PHRZERE K 2024
F58 24 BRITHHRRAE FEARARR
RIETEA - ROEHTHE - KARBEE
fi% 2N # #E 4% #£ 15,000,000 7T © M AN A A
YA TE BX AN B £ 1,500,000,000 A% & % E &
0.01 7T A& 15 )3 2> & 150,000,000 A% & AR
EfE0.1 BT E R ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL — continued

Notes: — continued

(b)

During the year ended 31 March 2025, in order to accommodate
the Rights Issue and the future expansion and growth of the
Group, the Company increased its authorised share capital from
HK$15,000,000 (divided into 150,000,000 shares of par value of
HK$0.1 each) to HK$750,000,000 (divided into 7,500,000,000
shares of par value of HK$0.1 each) to rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing shares of the Company. This increase
in authorised share capital was approved by the shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 8
August 2024.

On 25 June 2024, the Company proposed to implement the
rights issue on the basis of three right shares for every one
share at the subscription price of HK$0.12 per rights share,
by issuing up to 225,000,000 rights shares, to the qualifying
shareholders of the Company (the “Rights Issue”). The Rights
Issue was completed in September 2024. The gross proceeds
from the Rights Issue were approximately HK$27,000,000, of
which HK$22,500,000 was credited to share capital account and
the balance of HK$4,500,000 was credited to share premium
account of the Company. The net proceeds after deducting
professional fees and related expenses of approximately
HK$1,112,000 were approximately HK$25,888,000.

27- HQZF T /é%
Hist - — &

(b)

(c)

HE2025F3A31BILEE " ARAH#
BREAEERREBEEREKAE W AQ
7% H K 5 B A B 15,000,000 TT(5 A
150,000,000 iR & AR I {E 0.1 7 T I AR 15 ) 3%
% 750,000,000 7% 75 (% A 7,500,000,000
ARG ARE(E 0.1 BT RIR (D ) A BT 75 H EL
AREBRARNZA RSEF o HLIFHE MA
RNEVEERANB R 2024 F 8 A 8 BHERITHIIK
REBIAE FHEADRRELAE

R20245F6 A25H - KRB EZNAT IR
B& 13 M Bl B3Rt IRAR D B B 2 - LB IR
HERRDO12ETHREERARAEGE
1% AR 3R % 17 &% % 225,000,000 A& £ A% A% 15
(TR D) - B R 20249 A A - #
f& P 15 5% 0 48 88 49 /27,000,000 78 7T
H 122,500,000 7T &t AR A RR - 84 FE
4,500,000 % 7T et AR A Al & 7 @ B B o 40
MREZXERRBERMXA1,112,000% 7T
% - FETBFIAX) 25,888,000 7T ©
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28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
6 March 2019. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to attract and retain or otherwise maintaining on-going
business relationships with, and to provide incentive to
eligible participant(s) including employees (full-time and part-
time), executives or officers, directors, advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers, agent, and other persons approved
by the board of directors, to optimise their performance and

efficiency for the benefit of the Group.

The board of directors may, at its absolute discretion, offer to
grant an option to eligible participant(s) to subscribe for the
shares of the Company at an exercise price and subject to
the other terms of the Share Option Scheme. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue at the time dealings in the shares of the
Company first commence on the Stock Exchange.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of

ten years from its adoption date.

No options were granted, exercised or lapsed during the
years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, and no share options
were outstanding as at 31 March 2025 and 2024.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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29.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company’s share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
19 March 2021. The purpose of the Share Award Scheme as
follows: (a) recognise and reward the contributions or potential
contributions made or to be made by (i) any individual or
businesses that purchases the goods and services from the
retail stores or online sales services or its subsidiaries or its
consignment sales agent operated by the Company whom
the board or its delegate(s) consider, in their sole discretion,
to have contributed or will contribute to the Group; (ii) any
individual, being a full-time employee, director (including
executive, non-exclusive and independent non-executive
directors) whom the board or its delegate(s) considers, in
their sole discretion, to have contributed or will contribute
to the Group; and (iii) any individual or business whom the
board or its delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion, to
have contributed or will contribute to the Group (the “Eligible
Persons”); (b) align the interests of the Eligible Persons with
those of the Company, and strive for the future development
and expansion of the Group; and (c) attract high-calibre
personnel to join the Group and provide them with incentives
to participate in the continual operation and development of
the Group.

The board of directors may, at its absolute discretion, offer
to grant awarded shares to eligible persons subject to terms
of the Share Award Scheme. Upon the Share Consolidation,
the maximum number of shares which may be awarded under
the Share Award Scheme was 30 million shares, representing
approximately 10% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at the adoption date and as at the date of this
annual report, respectively. The board shall not instruct the
trustee to subscribe for and/or purchase any shares for the
purpose of the Share Award Scheme when such subscription

and/or purchase will result in such threshold being exceeded.

The maximum number of shares which may be awarded to
a selected participant shall not exceed 1 per cent (1%) of
the total number of issued shares of the Company as at the

adoption date.

29.

B A0 SR Bt &

N A AR A7 B2 =t &I ([ AR 10 22BN = 21 1)
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29.

30.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME — continued

The board of directors may, at its sole and absolute discretion,
accelerate the vesting of awarded shares and/or waive and/or
alter any or all of the vesting conditions attached to the Share

Awarded Scheme.

The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of: (i)
the eighth anniversary date of the adoption date; and (ii) such
date of early termination as determined by the board provided
that such termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of

any selected participant.

During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, there is
no purchase of awarded shares by the trustee. As at 31
March 2025, the trustee held 1,063,000 (2024: 10,630,000)
shares of the Company purchased but not yet awarded under
the Share Award Scheme (after adjustment upon the Share

Consolidation).

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, no awarded shares had been
granted, vested and lapsed pursuant to the Share Award

Scheme.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the lease commitments of

lease not yet commenced are as follows:

29.

30.

R EBEE — &

E=gn 2 ERIFINRER I 0 R E M
SRR R B A R B A Y
Ef AT A BB T -

FTEIHE R AT 8 HEIARE - (i) ER4 B 58
WEEESR - R (i) EFGETHIEA
RIEAH ERRARLETSZETALE
E2BRENEMREER

RBIRITEABRAR(ZTEADBER
BB ER N 55 B AR B AR 1 S 51 81K H Y 42
B Rz R 2 BRI M ERE 224 - BE
20259 3 A 31 H &2024%F3 A31HILF
B ZFEAWEE B REAR(D o 20254
3A31H - X7 AHE A 1,063,000
(20244 : 10,630,000 i% ) 18 14 & 7£ I& {5
SZE)FH B 1F I 42 -

R 2025F K 2024 F3 531 H » SR B L]
DL - BEBAMKRK o

HERE

R 20254 K 20243 A31H - AR
HAENHEEAEDT :

2025 2024

2025 F 2024 F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 32 131
In the second to fifth years EE_FEZFRF 89 537
121 668

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had committed to a lease for
a factory in the PRC in which the lease had been commenced
during the year. The total future cash outflow for this lease
amounted to HK$121,000 (2024: HK$668,000) in aggregate
which are included in the table above.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 31.
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

METHELENEEHER

g

THRERASERETHMELN R ES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

5
arising from financing activities. Liabilities arising from o mETHMELANBERERESRE
financing activities are those for which cash flows were, B ERAEEREESRERAD
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s HARETHRERNENEILE -
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

Amount
due to
controlling Bank Lease
shareholder borrowings liabilities Total
EAERRRTE RTER HESE o
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FETL FET
As at 1 April 2023 R2023F4 R 1H 5,000 28,856 12,188 46,044
Cash-flows: RBeR:
Interest expense paid BRMERE - (959) (290) (1,249)
Repayments of bank borrowings BIBRITER - (6,057) = (6,057)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEERENAE D - - (7,990) (7,990)
Non-cash: ¥8$:
Lease modification EHREH - - 7,004 7,004
Repayment to the controlling EETERRE
shareholder (5,000) - - (5,000)
Interest expenses recognised (note 8)  BREZMF SFX (M28) = 959 290 1,249
As at 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 R 20243318k
2024F 4 1 H - 22,799 11,202 34,001
Cash-flows: REW:
Interest expense paid BAFSREY - (704) (314) (1,018)
Repayments of bank borrowings BRBRITHER - (6,286) - (6,286)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENHEERENAL TS - - (8,326) (8,326)
Non-cash: FBE:
Lease modification BHRAEH - - 10,774 10,774
Interest expenses recognised (note 8)  BHERMH SR (#:28) - 704 314 1,018
As at 31 March 2025 #2025 3831 B - 16,513 13,650 30,163
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32.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs
to the scheme, which contribution is matched by employees
but subject to a maximum amount of HK$1,500 per month for

each employee to the scheme.

The employees employed by the PRC subsidiary are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiary is required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the required contributions under the

schemes.

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the

retirement benefit schemes in future years.

Details of the retirement benefit scheme contributions for both

years are set out in note 9.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Other than the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions with its

related companies during both years:

Interest paid on lease liabilities to AL AT NHEEEE

associates ZHE

Principal paid on lease liabilities to  [A#2 AR NHWAEEE

associates ZRE

33. MBAXRS

(a) BREAMBHRIPEMBY ST
BENX S RERIN NREERM
EEEANRERTEATIRS

2025 2024
2025 £ 2024

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
161 44
2,083 2,920

Included in trade and other receivables as at 31 March
2025 were rental deposits paid to the associates of the
Company of HK$494,000 (2024: HK$494,000).

Included in lease liabilities as at 31 March 2025 were
due to the associates of the Company of HK$2,907,000
(2024: HK$5,709,000).

MR2025F3A31EHME 5 K E b
FRFBEEESMNTFHEQRZ
fl & ¥ € 494,000 Jr(2024 4 :
494,000 7T) ©
M2025463A31EBEHEAEER R
JiE {5 B8 %5 X 5] 2,907,000 7 JT. (2024
£ 5,709,000/87T) °
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33.

34.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS — continued 33. BHARS — &
(b)  The remuneration of key management personnel during (b) ETEZEEEABRZMEFE N
both years was as follows: BT -
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Short-term employee benefits EHEE T 4,982 4,713
Retirement benefit scheme RIRAE A ET B ALK
contributions 177 170
5,159 4,883
Key management personnel include directors of the FTEBFEBAEBBREARTINES
Company and other senior management of the Group. EAEENHEMESREEE - 8
The remuneration of key management personnel is BEEEBAEFHNEARREEER
determined by management of the Company having ZEARB LTS BRAEBE -
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. EXRERER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains

unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
includes lease liabilities and bank borrowings as set out
in notes 24 and 25, respectively and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital and

reserves as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and will balance
its overall capital structure through new share issues and

raising or repayment of bank borrowings.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 35. €T H
Categories of financial instruments SRMIASE
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 &
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REERATTENEREE
— Bank balances and cash - RITHEHR KRS 31,229 11,159
— Trade and other receivables* - B RH A EUGRIE " 5,228 4,965
Financial assets at FVTPL BEATFEFABENEREE
— Listed equity investments - ERERE 1,613 1,844
38,070 17,968
Financial liabilities =R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  IZE KA EH S RIAE
- Trade and other payables** - B 5 R E A A 2,053 2,490
- Bank borrowings — RITIEFK 16,513 22,799
— Lease liabilities - HEEE 13,650 11,202
32,216 36,491

*

are excluded

> Accruals are excluded

Prepayments, right of return assets and non-refundable deposits

*k

TEEENRE REREERTARER
ki

TEEEER
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVTPL, trade and other receivables, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, lease liabilities and
bank borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risks (foreign currency
risk, other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk, and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The directors of the Company manage and
monitor these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
Market risks
Foreign currency risk

The Group has limited currency exposure as majority of the
revenue were denominated in functional currency of the
respective group entities. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities

at the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

35.

EWMTHR — &
MBERREREEBRREE

AEENETE2CR TAEBRERAFEAA
BEmMEREE  BHREMEKTR -
RITEBRERE  BHREMEMNFTR -
HERBERRITER ZFE2BTAN
BRERHEAMNE - EZEEMTAGH
MEREETSER(IMNERR - HMER
REigkMXER) - FERREEBE SR
B - T8 B8 A{ADR S 7% 55 AL B B BUR R
T - RAREFERE REEZEERIA
Tt M B B U B & B R FE I

L

SHE/R R
HRAMBAIWENEEEEERNIIEE
BitE AAKEMESNESERE
R RMERR  AEBERIMEFENE
BEERABNEREELT

2025 2024
2025 & 2024
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Assets EE
Us$ ETT 132 92
RMB AR 22 71
Liabilities aE
Uss x5 1,475 1,989
RMB AR - 3

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risks — continued
Foreign currency risk — continued

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of
US$ and RMB. Under the pegged exchange rate system, the
financial impact on exchange difference between HK$ and
US$ will be immaterial as most US$ denominated monetary
assets and liabilities are held by group entities having HK$
as their functional currency, and therefore no sensitivity
analysis has been prepared. No sensitivity analysis has been
prepared for HK$ against RMB as the amounts involved are

insignificant.
Other price risk

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair values or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than changes in interest rates
and foreign exchange rates). The Group is exposed to change
in market prices in respect of its listed equity investments

classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the Group’s exposure to equity price risk at the end of the

reporting period.

If the price of the listed equity investments had been
5% higher/lower, the profit for the year ended 31 March
2025 would be increased/decreased by HK$81,000
(2024:HK$92,000) for the Group, as a result of the changes in

fair value of financial assets classified as FVTPL.

THMIA — &
MREAREEEERBE — &

mEmEE — &
SMNEEE — &

AEEF ZEERETRAREKINE R
%o IRIREXRBBGEE  BREEERRE
EHABHETEEBEERBENLS
AR E BT T 2 e E R
EZHEMP BT ERTEKN - Bt SR
BREDN - AR SBEALTERKN © K
W RSB T A RBREGUREDNT

R b 1E18 /8%
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?“@W}WI\)“@? CBHERTEZAY
Hx%&ﬁ"*ﬁﬁfﬁ HEMBEEZ LT
P i1 & B IR s R LA R PRI RR B 75
BEE HEMHEEREHIEAR -
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risks — continued
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk and cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to lease liabilities bearing
fixed rates (note 24), bank balances (note 20) and bank
borrowings bearing variable rates (note 25), respectively. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation on Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate arising from
the Group’s HK$ denominated bank borrowings. The Group
currently does not have a policy on cash flow hedges of
interest rate risk. However, management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate

risk should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis points and 10 basis points increase or
decrease in bank borrowings and bank balances, respectively
are used which represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on interest bearing borrowings and bank
balances had been 100 basis points and 10 basis points
respectively higher/lower and all of other variables were held
constant, the profit for the year ended 31 March 2025 would
be decreased/increased by HK$107,000 (2024:HK$179,000).

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at
the end of each reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, management
of the Company has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. Given the Group’s wholesale
customers are widely spread over, management considers
that the credit risk associated is low. In addition, the Group
collectively assesses the impairment for its customers using
a provision matrix with appropriate groupings based on
shared common credit risk characteristics of customers. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

the following categories:

Internal
credit rating
A= E TR

Low risk

e

Medium risk

hERR

High risk

Loss

g

Write-off

3

204

Description
B

The counterparty has a low risk of default and
does not have any past-due amounts

RIREFHFARRENRR - B EEAED
FRIH

Debtor frequently repays after due dates but
usually settles after due date

BEHALERIHBEREN  HEEATRIBMARE

There have been significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources
AIED il E & F SN EIREE R = B R B 156 fE R
WU

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired

BREBRTEEREERE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

ﬁ ﬁ%mﬁ%Aﬁ#@%%ﬁl% i 8 &5 4

Ay B 1% AT Y [l 5118

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

35.

THMITHE — &

BHEREEEEREE — &

EEmLER B ETE —

AEENABEER
85l

Trade receivables
B 5 RrEWMIE

Lifetime ECL (not
credit-impaired)
FEHBRHEEER
— EEERE

Lifetime ECL (not
credit-impaired)

FEEREEER
— EEERE

Lifetime ECL (not

credit-impaired)

FEPEREERE
— BEERE

Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
FEPEREEER
— EERE

Amount is written
off

e

]
b ST AT B 48 T 51
Other financial

assets
HttemEE

12-month ECL

+—1@A
TBHEEEE

12-month ECL

@A
HHERER

Lifetime ECL

(not credit-impaired)

FEPEREEER
— BEERE

Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
FEMEREEER
— EERE

Amount is written off

SRR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

The table below details the credit risk exposures of

the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

assessment:

Financial asset at
amortised cost

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Bank balances

BRBRAEN
SREE

BARNR

M RTR

RiT&H

External
credit
Notes rating

A
g ERRR

19 N/A
TER

19 N/A
TER

20 A-to AA+
A-Z AA+

35.

EETH — &
BERREEEEREEK — &

EERBRBEFG — &

TRYFIAEMSMEEN S EERR (AL

TIREMEEERNE)

Internal
credit
rating

k]
EEFIR

Low risk

(R

Medium risk

Low risk

Ve

N/A
TER

12-month
ECL or
lifetime ECL
T=f8A
SFEPES
REBR

Lifetime ECL
(simplified
approach)
FEREE

FEER
(BlE)

Lifetime ECL
(simplified
approach)
FEHES

REBE
(BiL%)

12-month ECL
128 A%
FEEE

12-month ECL
+=f8A
HHEEBR

Gross carrying amount

REAE

2025
2025 £

HK$°000
TEx

970

273

4,006

29,135

2024
20244

HK$'000
TET

1,547

330

3,118

9,249
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202543 A 31 AL FE

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a

number of counterparties.

The credit risk on other receivables is minimal as the risk of
default is low after considering the factors as set out in note
3.7. No ECL allowance has been recognised as the total ECL

of other receivables is considered as immaterial.

The Group assesses the expected losses on financial assets
and considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of the respective asset and whether there has been a

significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit
risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on
the assets at the end of the reporting period with the risk
of default at the date of initial recognition and considers

available forward-looking information, including below

indicators:
o internal credit rating based on historical information;
o actual or expected significant changes in the operating

results of the debtors;

. significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the debtors, including changes in the

payment status of debtors; and

. the possible impacts associated with the overall change
in the economic environment that has an adverse effect

on the debtors.

The Group applies the simplified approach and assesses the
lifetime ECL for trade receivables at the end of each reporting

period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made.

Relevant information with regard to the exposure of credit risk
and ECL for trade receivables as at 31 March 2025 and 2024

are set out in note 19.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition. Based on
the credit rating, the directors of the Company considered the

ECL for bank balances is insignificant.
Liquidity risk

Management of the Company has built a liquidity risk
management framework for managing the Group’s short and
medium-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking
facilities and by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual
cash flows and the maturity profiles of its financial liabilities.
As at 31 March 2025, the Group has no available unutilised
bank borrowing facilities (2024: Nil).

35.

THMIA — &

BREREEEEREE — &

EERBRBEFG — &

RABEERREEMS  AKEERS
HEHNFEEERRENFERARES
RIEHEM - ARABEERR - BREBEEEAF
& ROEHRNEHEEBETEEX -

RBEZEE

AEEEBEEEEURBE SRR ERIE
B UBEEBEAEENREBAESRREBE
SEEEFER - AEBBARISRITHER
FEERBARERASRENESHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 35. €@iTH — &
Financial risk management objectives and policies — BHEEREEEEREEK — &
continued
Liquidity risk — continued mBELEE — &
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRFAFVWNAEERESHABNOREED
maturities for its financial liabilities. The table has been HARR o TRIBEBEAEE A K EKERN R
drawn up to reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial PHEERE  ARMBBEEENRIER
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group EmE e HEEME - TwmiRITITHEEER
can be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with MR SEREREEEANEITER
a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest BHiwE S AREBHNERERE - TXA
time band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing REEMNERAERERE

to exercise their rights. The table includes both interest and

principal cash flows.

Weighted On demand Over 1 year Total
average or less than but within  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flow amount
i ARER BB1F ABRRE
TRz I-FREE BR5FR RERE REE
% HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
As at 31 March 2025 R2025%3831H
Trade and other payables &5 K E (T 5E - 2,053 - 2,053 2,053
Bank borrowings (note)  $R{TER(AE) 3.10 16,513 - 16,513 16,513
Lease liabilities HEAR 3.22 7,254 6,920 14,174 13,650
25,820 6,920 32,740 32,216
As at 31 March 2024 2024438318
Trade and other payables &5 R E &5 - 2,490 - 2,490 2,490
Bank borrowings (note)  $R{TER(AiZ) 3.76 22,799 = 22,799 22,799
Lease liabilities HEARE 3.47 8,030 3,496 11,526 11,202
33,319 3,496 36,815 36,491
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 K& ZE 2025 3 A 31 HILFE

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Liquidity risk — continued

Note: Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 year” time band
in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2025, the
aggregate carrying amount of these bank borrowings amounted
to HK$16,513,000 (2024: HK$22,799,000). Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company believe that such bank borrowings will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the borrowing agreements with the principal and

interest cash outflows as follows:

Aggregate principal and interest cash outflows repayable:

35.

EETH — &
BERREEEEREEK — &

mBELmE — &

HiaE - RUA ERIEABE S - AETAERERKER
BREORITERDAAIERERS—FR
B8 WERESERN - 202563 A31H -
ZEFRITERRE LS5 /% 16,513,000
TE(2024 4 : 22,799,000 7T ) ° & &t B AN
SENHBR - RRREZRRFAITA
FIREGTIE B HE ZSREANRF B K © AN A
ERHEGE  RERTERGRBERBER
HOTEECERBHESE KN RFSEER
HaT

FEEEAS RABIRE T A%

2025 2024
2025 £ 2024 4

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within 1 year 1ER 6,822 7,030
After 1 year but within 2 years 1E%B2FER 3,669 6,913
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FERBSER 5,736 9,471
After 5 years 5% 1% 1,397 2,150
17,624 25,564
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Fair value measurements

Financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial position are grouped into three levels of
a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on
the observability of significant inputs to the measurements, as

follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets and liabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly, and not using significant

unobservable inputs

Level 38: significant unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial

asset is categorised in its entirety is based on the lowest level

of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025 REZ= 202543 A 31 HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 35. &@TH — &
Financial risk management objectives and policies — BHEEREEEEREEK — &
continued
Fair value measurements — continued AFE;E — &
The financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated BELSEHEREENGEESTBEMRARAILA
statement of financial position on a recurring basis are TEAENEREESD AR TEERD
grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows: S &
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ =~k ] L= st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET FHET
As at 31 March 2025 7"202543 A31H
Financial assets at FVTPL: #ZAFEFAERH
SREE :
— Listed equity - ETiRERE
investments 1,613 - - 1,613
As at 31 March 2024 R 2024F3 A31H
Financial assets at FVTPL: & A F(Ez AIBZH
CRIEE ¢
— Listed equity - FTIRERE
investments 1,844 - - 1,844

There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3

during the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil).

The directors of the Company considered that the carrying

amounts of other financial assets and liabilities are not

materially different from their fair values as at 31 March

2025 and 2024 because of the short maturity period on their

inception.

HE2025F3A31BHILFER » WiEE
AFKEHEE—F - £ -KNE=H(2024
o) e

ARBEERR  eRMEERABZERE
BEHEHEMR2025F K 2024F3 A31HZA
TEITEEREZRE  REARHEBFBES
REAIREIE] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. FEMBARINFE
At the end of each reporting period, the Company has indirect RNEREHR - ZRARRATEZHNBA
equity interests in the following principal subsidiaries: AlEA EERE

Equity interest attributable

Place of Issued and paid up to the Group
incorporation/ Type of legal Place of capital/registered ARERERRE
Name of subsidiary establishment entity operation capital 2025 2024 Principal activity
ERTRCARE/
KEAAER AfAT/HIEE ERRERA mens AfEx 20055 N04%F  FEED
SERE (RN ER AR The PRC Limited liability The PRC HK$8,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of jewellery
company
SERE (M) ERAR i BRAR i 8,000,007 EERE
Chuk Fung Jewellery Hong Kong Limited liability Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Manufactory Limited company
SEREEHHARAR B BRAR Bk 10,0007 RAER
W-Rich Company Limited Hong Kong Limited liability Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Procurement, marketing,
company promotion, distribution

and wholesale of jewellery
BETRRAA & BRAA &k 14T RERE  TRRER
BE HERHE

Chong Fai Group Holdings  Hong Kong Limited liability Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Procurement, marketing,
Company Limited company promotion, distribution of
jewellery and trading of

recycled gold products

HESERRERAA B BRAR & 10,0007 HERE  MARER
5E HEREK
Chong Fai Jewellery & Gold ~ Hong Kong Limited liability Hong Kong HK$20,010,000 99.99% 99.99%  Procurement, marketing,
Company Limited company (note) (note) promotion, distribution

and retail of jewellery
BBKE L TERAR & BRAR & 20,010,000/87 (Wit (W) HERE  nHEER
5 HHRZE

King Jewellery & J Company Hong Kong Limited liability Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Dormant
Limited company
ETRERRERAA 2% BRAT & 1T 2
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36.

37.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. TEMBATINFE — &
— continued
Note: As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the amount of the non- Kiat - 12025 F k20243 A31 8 » I ER
controlling interests is less than HK$1,000. Z & FPRAIT 1,000 TTIE °
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the TBE 4 B JB 8 ) A B 4R 5l A 2N 4 [ £ ] BRp
end of the year or anytime during the year. BIIERERES o
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. ARATMBMRRRE
COMPANY
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries (note) RETE A B8R E (H7at) - =
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H fth fE U 5k IE 247 247
Amount due from a subsidiary FEUZ —FE BT BB A B 5K08 64,289 37,289
Bank balances and cash WITHBR IR 194 202
64,730 87, 188
Current liabilities REBaE
Other payables H i &~ 5RIE 10 10
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAS — R BT B A A1 KT8 14,996 13,874
15,006 13,884
Net current assets/Net assets REBEERE EEFE 49,724 23,854
Capital and reserves EXEK#HE
Share capital [N 30,000 7,500
Reserves i 19,724 16,354
Total equity R 49,724 23,854

Note: The amount of investments in subsidiaries is less than HK$1,000.

1E °
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. RXRAMBRREK — £
COMPANY — continued

Movement of the Company’s reserves iN/N LR = o
Shares held
for the Share
Share Award Accumulated
premium Scheme losses Total
R4 52 B
EEE
R R E 2R RitEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETL FET FET FHT
(note 29)
(Kt:£29)
As at 1 April 2023 MN2023F4A1H 35,242 (753) (18,123) 16,366
Loss and total comprehensive  EEN&EANZEMALAHE
expense for the year = = (12) (12)
As at 31 March 2024 and R2024F3A31 B R
1 April 2024 2024F 4 A1 H 35,242 (753) (18,135) 16,354
Loss and total comprehensive  EREN&EANZEMASLESHE
expense for the year - - (18) (18)
Issuance of shares upon HRBEITRG (H2E27)
Rights Issue (note 27) 4,500 - - 4,500
Share issuance cost of AR & AR 10 B AT B AR
Rights Issue (note 27) (Hta27) (1,112) - - (1,112)
As at 31 March 2025 7202543 A31 0 38,630 (753) (18,153) 19,724
As at 31 March 2025, the Company had distributable reserve R2025F3HA31H KR ARBEAEAD
of approximately of HK$19,724,000 (2024: HK$16,354,000), fid fi# 5 #919,724,0007% JL(2024F :
calculated under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 16,354,000/87C) * IIRIBEHASHS A A
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman JRE 22 FE (1961 FADI3 » K478 RIERT)
Islands. Such amount includes share premium which may Mat &S - MR BEBEEZHEREANR
be distributable provided that immediately following the date Hife - ARRIREHEER —MEKBREF
on which the dividend is proposed, the Company will be in Az EE  FHESBRESATH RN
a position to pay off its debts or when they fall due in the P8 o

ordinary course of business.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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38.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 10 April 2025, Depasser Group Holdings Company
Limited (“Depasser”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement
with Mr. Fu, who holds 87% of the total issued share capital
of Grand Rise, the associate of the Group, pursuant to which
Depasser has agreed to acquire, and Mr. Fu has agreed to
sell, 17% of the total issued share capital of Grand Rise for
a cash consideration of approximately HK$9.7 million (the
“Acquisition”). Upon completion of the Acquisition, the Group
will indirectly hold 30% equity interest in Grand Rise, which
remained the associate of the Group. The Acquisition has
been completed in April 2025. Please refer to the Company’s

announcement dated 10 April 2025 for further details.

38.

BEHENER

MR2025F4A108 " "RARIME2E R
¥ Iff |8 A 5] Depasser Group Holdings
Company Limited ([Depasser|) £ 1% 5
HEERR(AAEBEMEBE QR )E BT

BAREERN 7% RENBE AT LER
W3k o #B 1tk - Depasser @ = U BE - &
EERBHEEZAZEE BITRABREN

17% B - MERENRIT0EBT([Z
WiED) - ZWEBTHR - AEBEREER

BEZRIEI0%KRE  MESEIEDR
REBEOWEE AR - ZWEE R 2025 F 4
R - EZFIE - BS2HEAARBHA
2025F 4 A 10 BRI RE o
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MBEHRE

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &% 20254 3 A 31 HILFE

RESULTS E4
For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31BALEE
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
2025 £ 2024 £ 20234 2022 4F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FET FET F&T FET FET
Revenue Uras 134,678 142,274 136,822 107,344 101,702
Profit/(Loss) before BREADEF,(EBE)
income tax 1,347 1,852 (2,911) (9,065) (1,244)
Income tax (expense)/credit FrEH (), H % (847) (260) 741 1,382 964
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEREF,(EE) 500 1,592 (2,170) (7,683) (280)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
As at 31 March
MW3A31A
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
2025 £ 2024 2023 fF 2022 4 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FET F&T FET FET
Total assets BEME 140,105 118,128 128,316 129,168 136,234
Total liabilities BfERE (42,908) (47,204) (58,120) (56,218) (55,293)
Total equity (Tt 97,197 70,924 70,196 72,950 80,941

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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